
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255519 

v. 

RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, 

dob 05/06/46; 

GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 

dob 02/06/ 56; 

ALEXANDER KIEV i\IARTINEiZ, 

doh 12/19/77; 

RUBEN MARCIAL M1\RTINEZ, 

doh09/16/56; 

ee 

Plaintiff, DA No. ADY479 

INDICTMENT 

. 

Defendants 

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY 

Defendant 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

GRUSD, RONALD SELWYN 

PAREDES, GONZALO ERNESTO 

i\IARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KrEV 

MARTINEZ, RUBEN i\IARCIAL 

DNA Testing Requirements 

D N 1 \ sample required upon conviction 

DNA sample required upon conviction 

DN_t\ san1plc required upon conviction 

DNA san1plc required upon conviction 

The Grand jury of the County of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Dcfendant(s) of committing, in the County of 
San Diego, State of California, before the fJ nding of this Indictment, the following erime(s): 

CHARGES 

COUNT l - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December 16, 2012, RON1\LD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV i\[ARTJNEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate, refund, con1n1ission, prcfcrcncc1 patronage> dividcnd 1 discount and other consideration \Vhcthcr in the forn1 of 
n1oney or other\vise, as con1pensation or inducen1cnt for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation ofLi\BOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 2 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December 28, 2012, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAlU"~DES, 
ALEXANDER KJEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL M1\RTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate, refund> con1111ission) preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhether i.n the forn1 of 
n1oncy or othcr\visc, as con1pcnsation or inducctTlCnt for referring cLicnts or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECI'ION 32'15. 

COUNT 3 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about ~larch 13, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1rnission) preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhcthcr in the forn1 of n1oncy ot 
other\vise, as con1pcnsation or induccn1cnt"for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 4 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about March 18, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO P1\REDES, 1\LEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
comn1ission, preference, patronage> dividend, discount and other consideration \vhethcr in the forn1 of n1oncy or 
othcr\visc, as con1pensation or inducernent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits · 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT S - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about June 7, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
IUEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
cornn1ission, preference, patronage) clividend> discount and other consideration \vhethcr in the forn1 of n1one)' or 
other\vise, as con1pcnsation or inducen1cnt for referring clients or patients to pcrf~rn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 6 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about June 'JO, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL M1\RTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1ission, prcfcrcnce 1 patronage, dividcnd 1 discount an<l other consideration \vb ether in the forn1of111oncy or 
othcr\vise, as con1pe11sation or inducen1cnt for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about June 11, 2013,RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,1\LEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
cornn1ission, prcfcrcncc 1 patronagc1 dividend, discotint and other consideration \vhcthcr in the fo1:1T1 of 1T1oncy or 
other\vise, as con1pensation or inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 8 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about June 20, 2013, RONALD SEL\VYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV 1'.IARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1nlission, preference, patronage, clividcncl, discount and other consideration \vhcthcr in the forn1 of rnoncy or 
othet\vise, as con1pensation or induccn1cnt for referring clients or patients to pcrfor111 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the CaLifornia Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 32l5. 

COUNT 9 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about August 30, 2013, RONALD SEL\VYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN 1'.!ARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1ission, preference, patronage, cUvidend, discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or 
other\vise, as con1pensation or induccnicnt for refcrrin_g clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of Lt\BOR CODE SECl10N 3215. 

COUNT 10 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about September 4, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
AIEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate) refurid, con1n1ission) preference) patronage) dividend) discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forn1 of 
n1oney or other\vjse, as con1pensation or inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the Califomia Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 11 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about September 9, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rehate, refund, con1n1ission) preference, patronage) dividend) discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forn1 of 
money or othct\visc, as con1pcnsation or induccn1ent for referring clients or patients to pcrfor111 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 12 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about September 12, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV l\IARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate) refund) con1n1ission, preference) patronage, dividend1 discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forn1 of 
n1oney or othet\Vise, as .corTipensation or inducen1ent for referring cUents or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 13 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about September 17, 20'13, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate, refund 1 con1n1ission, preference1 patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forn1 of 
n1oney or othet\vise, as con1pcnsation or inducen1ent for referring cUents or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LA130R CODE SECTION 32'15. 

COUNT 14 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December 11, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV l\!ARTINE:Z, and RUBEN MARCIAL l\!ARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate) refund, con1111ission, preference, patronage, dividend) discount and other consideration \Vhcther in the forn1 of 
n1oncy or other\vise, as con1pensation or inducen1ent for referring clients Or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 15 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December 17, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV l\!ARTINEZ, and RUBEN l\lt\RCIAL lv!ARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate> refund) con1n1ission, preference) patronag~) dividend, discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of 
n1oney or other\vise, as con1pensation or inducen1e11t for referring cLients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pumiant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 16 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REPERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about March 11, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV l\IARTINE:Z, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept" rebate, refund, 
commission, preference) patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or 
othcr\vise1 as con1pensacion or inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to pfrforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of L1\BOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 17 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about l\lay 1, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV l\!ARTINEZ, and RUBEN /..[/\RCIAL l\!ARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1111ission) preference, patronage, dividend) discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of 111oney or 
othct\visc, as con1pcnsation or incluccn1cnt for· referring cLicnts or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 18 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL l\IARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an_d kno\vingly assist and conspire \vi th another person to 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right 
and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1enti and the an1ount of a benefit and payn1ent to \Vhich the person 
was entitled (Am Trust North Amcrica-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 19 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, 1\LEXANDER KIEV J\l!\RTINEZ, and RUBEN Mi\RCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawful!)' 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and kno\vlngly assist and conspire \Vith another person to 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence 0£1 an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1c~t1 and the an1ount of a benefit and payn1ent to \vhich the person 
was entitled (ESJS Jnsurance-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 20 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV Mi\RTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vingly fail.to disclose the occurrence of1 and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent) and the an1ount of a bcn'efit and payn1ent to \Vhich the person 
was entitlc<l (Berkshire Hathawa)'-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 21 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SEL\\IYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAIUo:DES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN l\!ARCIAL i\!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial aJ1d continued right 
and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent, and the an1ount of a benefit and payn1cnt to \vhich the person 
was entitled (Llberty Mutual Insurance-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECfION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 22 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCL'\L MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right. 
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the a!110L111t of a benefit and payment to which the person 
was entitled (Zenith Insuranee-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 23 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 20·15, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV !v!ARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARClAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person 
was entitled (Zurich North America Insurance-MRI), in viola ti.on of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 24 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAIU2DES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCI1\L MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person 
was entitled (Insurance Company of the Wcst-MRl), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 25 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SEL\v'YN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER IUEV 1\!ARTINEZ, and RUI3EN 1\!ARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and enti_tlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent, and the an1ount of a benefit and payn1ent to \vhich the person 
was entitled (Zurich North America-Shockwave), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 26 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and bet:weenJune 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZ1\LO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER IUEV MARTINEZ, and RUI3EN MARCl1\L lv!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person 
was entitled (1\pplied Risk Services--EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 27 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RON1\LD SEL\\'YN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUI3EN MARCIALJ\IARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail t:o disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's inicial and continued right 
and entitlcn1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent, and the an1ount of a benefit and payn1ent to \vhich tbe person 
was entitled (Liberty Mutual !nsurance--Shockwave), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 28 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 20H and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUI3EN MARCIAL l'v!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person 
was entitled (Meadowbrook Insurance----Shockwavc), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 29 • INSURANCE· CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and betwcenjune25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZ1\LO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV :Vlt\RTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL i\!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of) and kno\vingly assist and conspjre \Vith another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent1 and the an1ount of a benefit and payn1cnt to \vhich t11e person 
was entitled (State Compensation Insurance Fund--EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 
550(b)(3). 

COUNT 30 • INSURANCE. CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SEL\'\IYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV i\IARTIJ\:EZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1enti and the an1ount of a benefit and payn1ent to \vhich the person 
was entitled (State Compensation Insurance Fund--Shockwavc), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 31 • INSURANCE· CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and bet:weenjune 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SEL\'\IYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV i\!ARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 

conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlcn1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent1 and t.he an1ount of a benefit and payn1ent to \Vhich the person 
was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--i\!RI), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 32 • INSURANCE. CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SEL\V'YN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO t'AREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person 
was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--Shockwave), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 33 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER JUEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL M1\RTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to 

conceal and kno\vingly frtiJ to disclose t11e occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlcn1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1cnt 1 and the an1ount of a benefit and paynient to \vhich the person 
was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 34 ·INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 20'14 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN I\!ARCIALJ\!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vingly fnH to disclose the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to 
conceal an<l kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affcctcJ a person's initial and continued right 
and entitle1T1cnt to an insurance benefit ai1d payn1ent1 and the an1ount of a benefit and pay111cnt to \vhich the pefson 
was entitled (fristar Risk Management--Shockwave), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 35 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 25, 20'14 and November 27, 20'15, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN Mr\RCIJ\L MJ\RTINEZ, did unlawfully 
conceal and kno\vi11gly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist nnd conspire \Vi th another person to 
conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right 
and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent> and the aniount of a benefit and payn1cnt to \vhich the person 
was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Ser\'iees--EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 36 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about July 11, 20'14, RONALD SELWYN GR USO, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1111ission1 prefercnce 1 patronage) diviclcnd1 discount anJ other consideration \vhcthcr in the for!Tl of n1oncy or 
other\vise, as con1pensation or inducement fOr referring clients or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 37 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about September 15, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEX1\NDER KIEV i\l!J\RTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate) refund, con1n1ission, preference, patronage) dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in die forn1 of 
rnoney or other\vise, as con1pensation or inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compcnsacion law, in violation of LABOR COD le SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 38 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about October 29, .2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate 1 refund, con1111ission, prcfercncel patronage 1 dividend, discount and other consideration \vhethcr in the forn1 of 
n1oncy or othcn.visc, as con1pcnsation or induccn1cnt for referring clients or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation ofJ"ABOR CODE SECTION 32Vi. 

COUNT 39 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COJ\IPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS /I' ATIENTS 

On or about November 7, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN lv!ARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate1 refund, con1111ission1 preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of 
n1oncy or othct\visc, as con1pensation or induccn1cnt for referring clients or patients. to pcrfonri or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 40 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December 3, 2014, RONALD SELW'YN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV l\!J\RTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate, refund, co1Y1n1ission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhcthcr in the forn1 of 
n1oney or othen.vise, as con1pensation or inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 41 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December 15, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate, refund, con111lission, preference, patronage, dividend 1 discount and other consideration \vhet11er in the-forn1 of 

money or othcr\vise, as con1pensation or inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECI'ION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 42 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December t7, 20H, RONALD SEL\'V'YN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, 
ALEXANDER KIEV l\fARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL l\!ART!NEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a 
rebate1 refund) con1n1ission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forn1 of 
n1oncy or othct\visc, as con1pcnsation or induccn1cnt for referring cLicnts or patiCnts to pcrforn1 or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 43 -OFFER,DELIVER,RECEIVEAND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or ab.out and between January 23, 2015 and July 16, 20'15, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD and GONZALO 
ERNESTO PAREDES, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or other\vise,_as con1pensation or 
induccn1cnt for referring clients or patients to pcrforn1 (con1pound crcan1s) or obtain services or benefits pursuant to 
the California·\'(lorkcrs' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 44 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about l\larch 4, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN ,\u\RCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1ission, preference, patronage, dividend) discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or 
otherwise (#3327--$8,500), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain 
services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 
3215. 

COUNT 45 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about !\larch 4, 2015, RONALD SEL\'VYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO P1\REDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1mission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhcther in the forn1 of n1oney or 
otherwise (#3328--$7,400), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain 
services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 
3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 46 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVEAND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about March 4, 2015, RONALD SEL\VYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
co111111issionJ prefe_rence,_ patronage, dividend, discouf1:t and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or 
otherwise (#3329--$8,400), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain 
services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 
3215. 

COUNT 47 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about April 6, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV 1'.!ARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
corr1111ission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the fo1·n1 of n1oney or 
other\visc, as cOJTlpcnsation or induccn1cnt for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain set\•ices or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 48 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about April 10, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
co1T1n·iission, preference, patronage, dividend} discount and other consideration \vhet.her in the forn1 of n1oncy or 
other\vise, as con1pcnsation or inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain SC1'\'ices or benefits 
plll'suant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 32.15. 

COUNT 49 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about May 27, 2015,RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, tefund, 
con1111ission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhcthcr in the forn1 at n1oney or 
otherwise (#3445--$6,000 to Desert Blue Moon); as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 50 ·OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about J\by 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV J\IARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1ission) preference, patronage) cLividend, discount and other consideration \vhcthcr in the forn1 of n1oncy 01· 
otherwise (#3447--$3,300 to Linc of Sight), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California \'('orkcrs' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 51 ·OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about July 16, 2015, RONALD SEL\'VYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO P1\REDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV J\It\RTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deli\'cr, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1ission, preference, pau·onagc, di\·idcnc\ 1 discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or 
otherwise (#3510--$2,500.00 to Line of Sight), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the·California Workers' Compensation bw, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 52 ·OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about July 16, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO P1\REDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV J\!ARTINEZ, and RUBEN l\IARC:IAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1ission, preference, patronage, di\·idend) discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or 
otherwise (#3520--$5,000.00 to Linc of Sight), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 53 ·OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about July 16, 2015, RONALO SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUDEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deli\'cr, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1ission, preference, patronage, dividend) discount and other consideration \Vhethcr in the forn1 of n1oney or 
otherwise (#3518--$9,500.00 to Desert J3lue Moon) as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation ofLAJ:lOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 54 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about July 16, 20·1s, RONALD SEL\X'l'N GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO P1\REDES, ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN i\lARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
con1n1issi'on> p1'cfcrcncc, patronage, div-idcnd, discount and other consideration \Vhcthcr in the forn1 of 111oncy or 
otherwise (#3519--$9,500.00 to Desert Blue Moon), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCD255519, CONSISTS OF 54 COUNTS. 

"A TRUE BILL" Bonnie i\1. Dumanis 
District t\ttorne)', CounL\' of San Diego, State o[ California 

Foren1an of the Grand Jur)' Deputy District I\ttorncy 

n ___ 1~ _r·!.j r~_ . r .. ,..1_ ('r~"r,ccc·1n 
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SUPERIOR COURT Of CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO f'flr i:otwt f}Mj On.\' 

MAY 2 6 2015 

PEOPLE vs Alexander Kiev Martinez, i?J ..,/ 
~-

O.f<11ndant ·_~ .... ~--: ~._ .. 

BY M.ALLEY 
-

PLEA OF GUIL'rf/NO CONTEST - FELONY Court Number. SCD2555 t 9 

DA Numbet:ADY479 

I, the d111fvndant In thlil abov1:1·entl!l<Jd cas., In support of my plea o·I Guilty/No Contest, personally declara as 
follows· 

1. Of those charges now f111)d against me in this case, I plead GUILTY to the following rQ ~. offenses ~nd admit the anhancements, allegations and erlor convictions as follows: 
COUNT CHAJ3GE ENHANCEMENT/ALLEGATION 

44 LC 321 S NIA 

29 pc_~.(3l lJLA 

' 

PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATION SECTIO~J, CONVICTlON DA iE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE) 
' . 

'----· -
,.--.. . 

2. I have not been induced to anlar this plea by any promise or reprasonta1ion of any kind, except: (State ~ 1 
any agro1m1ent with the District Attorney.) '---' 1 

3, I am ·entering my plea freely and voliJntarily, without fear or throat to me or anyone closely related to me. 

4. I understand that a plea of No Contest Is the same as a plea of Guilty for all purposes. 

5. I am sober and my judgment is not impaired. I have not consumed any dn.ig, alcohol or narcotic within 
the past 24 hours. 

CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS 

ea. .I understand l.hat I have the right to be rupresentad by a lawyer at alt stages of tt1a proceedings. I can hire my own ·~ 
lawyer or the Court will appoint a lawyer for me If I cannot afford one. ll@J 
1 unde111tand that as to all chargee, allagatlons and prior convictions mod against me, and u to any facts that 
may be used to Increase my aenteflf'..e, now or In Iha Mura, I also havo the fo!low!pg gorn;tltutlona! right!!. which 
1Jl.9W give up to enter my ploa of guilty/no contest: 

Sb. I have the rtght to a f!)!!!!dY and pybilc trial bv lwy. I now glvv up this right. 

6c. I have the right to confront and cross-;ixamlng all th9 wltnn•u against me. I now 
glva up this rtght. 

6d. I have the fight to ramaln !lltt!lt (unless I choose to testify on my own behalf). 
I now give up this right. 

Se. I have the right to present evidence In my behalf and to hava tt10 court subpoena my 
witnesses at no cost to me. I now glvo up this right. 

PLEA OF GU!L TY/NO CONTEST· FELONY 



Dafendant: 
Jexander Kiev Martinez 

I CASE NUMBER: 
SCD55fi519 

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GU!L TY OR NO CONTEST 

7a. I underatand that I may receive this maximum punishment as a rE!.'lult of my ple1t- 5y Smo years imprisonment or 
Imprisonment plus a term of mandatory supervision; $60,000 fine; and ,::t . years parole or p03t-ralaase 
community Sl.lpervlslon, with return to custody for avery violation of a condition thereof. If I am not sentenced to 
imprisonment, I may be granted probatjon for a period up to 5 years or the maximum term of imprisonment, 
whichever Is greater. A;s conditions of probation I may be given up to a year injall custody, plus the fine, and any 
other conditions deemed raasonabla by the Court. I understand that If I violate any condition of probation I can be 
sentenced to imprisonment for the maximum term as stated above. . 

7b. I understand that I must pay a restitution Hna (~200 - $10,000), that I will also be subject to a suspended fine In the 
same amount, and that I must pay full rastltuflon to all victims. 

7c. I unde that m1 n in thl a oorlou · y ('strike') in mandatory denllllo! 
pro on, s ally lnora penalties, and a mState Prls re felony case. ~ 

7d. I understand that if I am not a U.S. citizen, this plea of Guilty/No Conteut~aul! in my remov11Vdeportation, 
exclusion from admission to the U.S. end denial of naturalization. Addltionally, ifthia plea ls to an 'Aggravated 
Felony' listed on the br;ck of this form, then I Wiii be deported, excluded from admission to the U.S., and denied 
naturalization. 

7e. I unders1and that my plea of Guilty or No Contest in this case cculd result in revocation of iny probation, mandatory 
supervision, parole or post-rolease supervision In olhar cases, and consecutive sentences. 

7f. My attorney has explained to me that other poaalble consequences of this ploa may be: 
(Circle applicable consequences.) 

(1 l Consecutive sentancas 
(2
3 

Loss of driving privllegas 
( Commitment to Youlh 

Aulhoril,y 
(4) LHetime registration as en 

arson I sex offender 
(5) Raglstratlon as 11 narcotic I 

gang offender · 
(6) Cannot possess firearms or 

ammunition 
(7) Blood teat and saliva sample 
(6) PriorabJe (Increased 

punishment for futuro 
offenses} 

(9) Prison prior 
(10) Mandatory imprisonment 
( 11) Mandatory Slate Prison 
(12) Pmaurnptive imprisonment 
( 13) Prasump!Ml Stata Prison 
(14) Sex1Jally Violent Predal'Or 

Law 
(15) Possible/Mandatory 

hormone suppression 
b'Balment 

( 16) Reduced conduc:tlwork 
credits 

a. Limited local credits 
(290/serlousfprlor) 

b. Violent Felony (No crocttt 
or max.15%) 

c. Plior Strike( a) (No credit 
to max. 20%) 

d. Murder on/after 613196 
(No credit) 

{

17) Loss of public assistance 
18) AIDS education progrem 
19) Other: ___ · ___ _ 

] 

8. (App<11al Rights) I give up my right to appeal the following: 1) denial of my 1538.5 motion, 2) issues related to strike ~ 
prlom (under PC sections 667(b)-{1) and 1170.12), end 3) any sentence stipulated heroin. LMl!J 

9. (Harvey Waiver) The sentencing judge may consider my prior criminal history and the entire factual background of ~ 
the case, including any unflled, dlarnlsi;ed or s'lrlcken cl1arges or allegations or cases when granting probation, ~ 
ordering restitution or Imposing sentence. 

1 O. (8/akalywalv•r) I understand that GS to any fact In aggravallon that may be used to lncreaS& my sentence on any rfJrl. 
count or allegaUon to the upper or maximum term pro'Jided by law, I have the constitutional rights llstad In lW 
paragraphs 6b-6e. I now give up those rights and agree that the sentencing judge may determine the existence or 
non-existence of any fact in aggravation, either at the initial sentencing or at any future sentencing in the event my 
probation Is revoked. 

11. (Cruz Waiver) Negotiated Dispos!Uon pursuant to PC 1192.5: I understand lhat If pending sentencing I am 
arrested for or commit another crime, violate any condition of my release, or willfully fall to appear for my probation 
Interview or my sentonci11g hearing, the sentence portlon of this agreement will be cancelled. I Will be sentenced 
uncondltlonally, and I wlll not be allowed to withdraw my guilty/no contest plea(s). 

12. (ArlJuckle W!'llvar) I give up my right to be sentenced by the judge who accepts this plea. 

13. (Probation Report) I give up my right to a full probation raport before sentencing. 

SDSC ORM-012(Airv. a/11) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CON'TCST • FELONY 



I Defendant: 
!Alaxandar Klev Mar.J~· ~n_ez __ 

I CASE NUMBER: 

·----"'~<)~0~55519 

14. (Evidence Olspoaal Waiver) I give up my Interest in all non-biological property/evidence Impounded during the ,_Jri;;:.. 
lnvesllgatlon of this case except and acknowledge that if I listed any property ~ 
here, I must also file a claim with the impounding agency within 60 days af'.er pronouncement of judgment or my 
ability to make a claim will expire. 

PLEA 

15. I now plead Guilty/No Contest and admit the charges, ccnvictlons and allegations deacrtbad In paragraph #1, ~ 
above. I admit that on the data.s charged, I: (D!Mcribe facts as to each charge t'llJd a/legation) . 
Sae AttacbmooJ "A' altamed hernlp fer factual baala:Ea@ml Plea Acrnerr:ent In Casa NumbQr 15C/328?1-BAS 

Defendant's Right Thumb Print 
ATTORNEY'S STATEMENT 

I, the attorney for the dafendant in the abova-<intitlad case, personally re:id and explained to tho dafundant the entire contents of 
this plea form and any addendum thereto. I dlsctiss•}(J ail charges and possible defenses with !ha dafandan~ and the 
consequences of this plea, Including any imrni ration consequences. I personally obsaNe<.l the defendant fill in and Initial aach 
Item. or road and lnlt\al each itam to ackr:owle' e his/her underatanding and walvars. 1. Qbservecf"ffi0Cefandant data and sign U1ls 
form and any ::~dum. I concur in the def ndant:s plea nd vJeivar of C0!1Sti!lJ.!!~·=O=ri~i\~l ~· ~!z~~· 
Dated· /_..I.] · µ ' ' '."hr~ C. ·. · · ..::+\ ---- (Pn t Name i,=?.:n::11'.-:y7fo:'.~r= ~2n~d:;:11::n::t-:::----=:-:-:---, 

,1rcle Ot]!>"'1"D I APD I 0 
INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT ( A llcilble) i----__.l 

I, the sworn __________ language interprater in this pro edlng, truly translated fur defendant the entire 
contents of this fonn and any attached addendum. The defendant indicated understanding of the contents of this form and any 
addendum and than initialed and signed the farm and any addendum. 

Datud:_~-·-~-~~ 

SD!C CRM-012 (Jbrl, &/11) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTEST - FELONY 



AGGRAVATED FELONIES 

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CTl'IZ:J!d"I FOR A."! "AGGRAVATED FELONY'' AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C. 
1101(a)(43), WILL RESUI.T 1:'1 REMOV AUDEPORTA110N, EXCLUSION, A.'ill DK'-OAL OF NATURALIZATION. 

"AGGRAVATED li'ELONIES" include, but are not limited to, the following crimes and llllY attempt or conspiracy to commit 
such. crimes, even if the conviction i,q a misden1eanor under state law: [The only exception to the applicability of state 
misdemeanors is wh~-re the offense (as listed below) specifically require,q a fllli2!!Y conviction.] 

1. ANY CRIME OF VJOLID(CE· 
(Includes any offense that hM M all element the use, attempted use, or threatened use of physical force against the person or 
property of another, QI !!ID:'.1lllilnY offense that, by its nature, involves a substantial risk that physical force against the person 
or property of another may Ix used in the course of committing the offense. (18 U.S.C. § 16).) 

2. BURQLARX (Except vehicle or VMse1 rutleim JJJJed u a reoldence.) • 

3. QllLD PORi'l/OGRAPHY OFFENSES 

4. £:0NTRQLLE1? SUBSTANCES: 
a) FELONY POSSESSION OF A.''iY COl'iTROLLED SUllST • .\.'fCE. 
b) M1SDEMEA."iOR POSSESSION OF ANY CO:'<TROLLED SlJBSTA.'(CE when the defendanth1u pr;iviolllly been 

convicted of !lllV drug re!J!ted offen:re. 
c) POSSESSION FOR SAl,E OF A1'VY CONTROLLED SlJBSTAi'iCE 
d) SALE OF ANY CO'.'ITROLLED SUBSTA:.'ICE 
e) TRA'fSPORTA1'ION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTA,,,"ICE 
t) MAi~lll<'ACTURE/DISTRIBUTION OF A .. 'IY CONTROLLED Sl;BSTA.'iCE AND CULTIVATION OF 

MARJJUANA 

5. FELONY D.1;.I. (Any ty!l"-)* 

6. FAJ1UR.E IQ A~~~ FELONY CASE 

7. F.Ql!GEJU'. * 
8. Fl!..A.\!D (When !OS$ to vlciliu or victims excecii. $ J 0,000.) 

9. MONEY LAm.IDERING (ff ammmt over $10,000.) 

10. M!mmIB 
ll. PE.RJURX/SVB~AIIO.N of Per.Jury or Brlb<ery of a Wlin<ll'I•'' 

12. P™J'l.NG/l' A.NJ)EimfG/OPERATL"IG A l'.RQSTI:U,"fIQN DUSii'fE~S 

13.~ 

14. MQEIVING SIQLEN fROPERTY • 

15. ROBBERY • 

16. SEXQAL AllUSE 01' A MI'IOR (fouchlng is not required, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.) 

17. TIIEFI (Any cype or amount)* 

1s. TR.AFFICKJ:NG IN FJREA.RvIS AND EXfLOsms. 

19. TRAlFJCKI!'iG L"'I VEHICLES WTI'H ALIERED VINS* 

20. DEMAi"ID FOR OR R'EC£1l'T OF RANSO~ 

*Where the term Imposed hi at leart one year, whether or not any or all of that rerm ill stayed or iuspended at the 
time of sentencing. 

900CC~12 {Rev. W11l PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST· FELONY 



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255520 

v. 

Al;ITR OBAIDULLAH KI-IAN, 

dob 02/20/62; 

FARHAT FATIMA KHAN, 

dob 12/05/63; 

ALEXANDER KIE\' l\!ARTINEZ, 

dob 12/19/77; 

Plaintiff, DA No. ADY480 

INDICTl\fENT 

Defendants 

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY 

Defendant DNA Testing Requirements 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

KHAN, AMIR OBAIDULLAH 

KHAN, FARHAT FATIMA 

l'v!ARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIE\' 

DNA sample required upon conviction 

DNA sample required upon convktion 

DNA sample required upon conviction 

The Grnnd Jury of the County of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the County of 
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following crime(s): 

CHARGES 

COUNT 1 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AJ\UR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV i'<!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of1 an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 

·payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment towhich the person was entitled (York Risk Services--ADL), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 2 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Al\[JR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV l\!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and.knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person 1s initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (York Risk Services--pain 
assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 3 -INSURANCE• CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Al\l!R OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV l\!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence o( an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and ·payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the 
West--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 4 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or abmtt and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to distlose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the 
West--pain assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 5 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Aivl!R OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KI-IAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the 
West--EKG), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 6 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Al\JJR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfolly conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurr~nce of, an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the 
West--echo), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 7 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, A!vlJR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV !v!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the 
West--AIM study), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 8 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Al\IIR OB1\IDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ESIS Insurance--ADL), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 9 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, A:'vlJR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Hartford lnsurance--ADL), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 10 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAl-I Kl-IAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence ·af) and knowingly assist and conspire \vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Hartford Insurance--EKG), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 11 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, A:'vITR OBAIDULLAl-I KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occutrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly faiJ to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Hartford Insurance--echo), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 12 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLA1M 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Al\!IR OBAIDULLAl-I KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to di;close the 
occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance 
Fund--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(b)(J). 

COUNT 13 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAl-I Kl-IAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MAR TI NEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person 1s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insur~nce benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance 
Fund--pain assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 14 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AlvUR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfolly conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insura·nce benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Am Trust North 
America--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 15 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance b·enefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett--ADL), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 16 -INSURANCE -CONCEALEVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV lvlARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an<l knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett--pain 
assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 17 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence 0£1 an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insura.µce benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher BassethAIM study), 
in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 18 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLA!-1 KHAN, FARHAT 
FAT!i\LA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and kno\vingly -assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence o( an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance. benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zenith lnsurance--ADL), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 19 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Al\!IR OBAIDULLA!-1 KHAN, FARHAT 
FAT!i\LA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV l\LARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and coritinued right and entitle111ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and.the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zenith Insurance--echo), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3) .. 

COUNT 20 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBJ\IDULLA!-1 KI-IAN, FARHAT 
FAT!l\!A I<l-IAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person 1s initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich North America 
Insurance--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 21 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAI-1 Kl-IAN, FARHAT 
FATll\!A KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and lmowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and lmowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial .and continued right and· entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich NorthAmerica 
Insurance--pain assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 22 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATil\u\ KHAN, and ALEXANDER KlEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Preferred Employer 
Insurance--EKG), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 23 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an,d knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person 1s initial and continued right ~1nd entitlen1ent to an insuran~e benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Preferred Employer 
Insurance--echo), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 24 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Ai\IIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlen1cnt to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--EKG), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3) .. 

COUNT 25 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Ai\IIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATU,U\ KHAN, and ALEXANDER l<JEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--echo), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 26 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAlM 

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, Al\OR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person 1s initial and continued-right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--AIM study), 
in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 27 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about September 18, 2014, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, 
discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forin of nloney or other\visci as con1pensation or inducen1ent for 
referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California \Xlorkers1 

Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 28 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about January 23, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the fonn of n1oney or other\vise, as con1pensation or 
inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 O·t obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California 
Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215, 

COUNT 29 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between September 17, 2014 and April 1, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN and FARHAT 
FATIMA KHAN, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, 
discount arid other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or other\vise) as con1pensatlon or inducen1ent for 
referring clients or patients to perform (NCVs) or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' 
Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 
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THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCD255520, CONSISTS OF 29 COUNTS. 

"A TRUE BILL" 

Foreman of the Grand jury 

Bonnie M. Dutnanis 
District 1\ttomC}', Cmmty of San Die~o, St11te of California 

Deputy District 1\ttorney 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CAl.lFORNIA. COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO For Oout1 I.lot Only 

- \' \'/ ') :• ?1\1'' 'I;"\• " ~ .... ,j n 

PEOPLE vs Alexander Kiov Martinez,. Dlilf&ndant ., 
,•• ··'. : .; . ~ --~ ·:: :-: .. --

----.-
8Y ~.!.ALLEY 

·-

PLEA OF GUil.TY/NO CONTEST- FELONY 
Court Number. SCD255520 

DA Number.ADY 480 

I, tho defendant In tha above-illntlth1d caH, In support or my pl\la of Guilty/No Contest, personally doclar& n 
follows: 

~ 
1. Of those charges now fifed against me In this case, I plead GUILTY to the following Ii .,il!lk: offenses and admit the enhancements, allegations and prior convictions as follows: 
COUNT CHARG~ ENHANCEMENT/ ALLEGATION -.;;;;;:::;;; 

27 LQ 3215 MIN 

13 Df"'! 1<~11fbV3\ r::J.IAL 

PRIORS: (l!Sr ALL.EGA TlON SECTION, CONV1CTION DA :fE1 COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE) 

-·--
,...--;:. ... - . 

2. I have not t?een induced to enter this plea by any promise or repr'->sentatlon of any klnd, except: (State ~ 
any agreement with the Di.stric;t Attorney.) ., 

3. I am entering my plea freaiy and voluntarily, wit'1out fear or threat to me or anyone closely related to me .. 

4. I understand that a plea of No Contest is the same as a plea of Gui!\\; for all purposes. ~~\. 
5. lam sober and my judgment Is not Impaired. I hav<> not consumed any drug, alcohol or narcotic within 

Iha past 24 hows. 

CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS 

Sa. I understand that I have the right to be represented by a lawyer at all stages of the proceedings. I can hire my own ~ 
lawyer or Iha Court will appoint a lawyer for ma if I cannot afford one. l1@J 
I und&D!Jnd that as to all ch.arges, allaglltlons and prior convlc::tlons fl111d agalrnrt me, and Ill! to eny facts that 
may bo uaed to Increase my sentence, now or In th• Muni, I also have the fill!!illlt!Oll oonst!tutlonql dghts. wblch 
I now glva up to enter my plea of guilty/no contest: 

6b. I h11v11 the rlght to a J®edy and wbl!c trlal by lgiv. I now give ·up this right. 

6c. I have the right to collfront and qmu·11111mlM all the wlt[l!ll!Hll against ma. I now 
give up this right. 

6d. I have the right to rem11!n s!!w! (unless I chooae to testify on my own behalf). 
I now give up this right. 

Se. I have tho right to pru11nt 9yld11nce In mv bthalf and to hava lhe court subpoena my 
witnesses at no cost to me. I now give up thlc right. 

PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTI:ST • FELONY 



CMrendant: 
Jexander Kiev Martine~ 

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUil TY OR NO CONTEST 

7a. I understand that I may receive this maximum punishment as a result of my plea: 5y Brno years imprisonment or 
imprisonment plus a term of mandatory supervision; $ ~o ,000 ftne; and __ I./ · · years parole or post-release 
community aupervislon, with return to custody for evary violation of a oondlti0l1Fieroof. If I am not sentenced to 
imprisor1mant, I may be granted probation for a period up to 5 years or Iha maximum tflrm of Imprisonment, 
whichever is greater. As conditlons of probation I may oo given up lo a year in jail custody, plus Iha fine, and any 
other condltlons deemed.reasonable by the Court. I understand that if I violate any condition of probation l can be 
sentenood to Imprisonment for the maximum term as stated above. 

7b. I underatand that I must pay a fal.iitutlon fine ($200 - $'10.000), that I wiD also be subject to a suspended fine In Iha 
same amount, and that I must pay full restitution to all victims. 

7c. I understan y conviction In J,bi:I will be a serious/ · lent felony \!Itri • reBultlngjJJ.ma~ deRi 
probatlo , subirta 'ally inc ~ penaltie and a n Sta riso ny tu f l'fy ca~ · 

7d. I un erst.and that if I am not a U.S. citizen, this plea of Guilty/No Contest~sult In my removal/deportation, 
exclusion from admission to the U.S. end denial of natursllzation. Addltionally, ~this plaa is to an 'Aggrsvated 
Felony" listed on the back of this form, then I wlll be deported, excluded frorn admission to the U.S .. and denied 
naturalization. 

7a. I understand that my plea of Guilty or No Contsst in tl1is case could result In revocation of rny probation, mandatory 
supervision, parole or post-release supervision in other C8aes, and consecutive sentences. · 

71. My attorney has explained to me that oti1er possible consequences of this plea may be: 
(Circle applicable oonsaquances.) . 

1"11\'JconS>acutive sentences 
"i2r Loss of drlvin g privil 6\JSS 

(3) Commitment to Youth 
Auti1ority 

(4) Lifetime registrotion as an 
arson I sex offender 

( 5) Ragistration as a rar<XJtic I 
r<:'!:', gang offender lii'Y Cannot possess ftraanns or 

ammunition 

119)) Prison prior 
\10) Mandatory Imprisonment 
( 11 ) Mandatory State Prison 
( 12) Presumptive lmprlsonmant 
(13) Preaumptive State Prison 
( 14) Sexually Violent Predator 

Law 
(15) Possible/Mandatory 

hormone suppreasron 
1reatmant 

,.W\ Blood test and saliva sarnple (16) 
~ Priorabla (Increased 

Reduce<l conduct/work 
credits 

punishment for future 
offenses) 

a. Limited local credits 
(290/serlous/prlor) 

b. Vlolent Felony (No credit 
· or max. 15%) 
c. Prior Strika(s) (No credit 

to max. 20%) 
d. Murder on/after 613198 

(No credit) 
(17) Loss of public assistance 
(18) AIDS education program 
(19) Other: ______ _ 

8. (Appeal Rlghte) J give up my right to apf)<lal Iha followlng: 1) denial of my 1538.5 motion, 2) Issues related to strike I 
priors (under PC sections 667(b)-(i) and 1170. 12), and 3) any sentence stipulated herein. 

!l. (Horvt1yW11Jwr) The sentencing judge may consider my plior criminal history and the antlra factual background of 
the case, Including any unlllad, dismissed or stricken charges or allegations or cases when granting probation, 
ortiering restitution or Imposing sentence. . 

1 O. (B/111ke/y waiver) I unde. rstand that as tc any fact In aggravation that may be used to Increase my sentence on any ~ 
count or allegation to the upp11r or maximum term provided by law, I have the const1tutlonal rights listed in ~ 
paragraphs 6b-13e. I now give up those rights and agree that the sentencing judge may determine the existence or 
non..axlstence of any fact In aggravation, either at the lnltlal sentencing or at any future sentencing In the event my 

p~ls~~ . a 
11. (Ciw Waiver) Negotiated Disposition pursuant to PC 1192:5: ! understand that If pending sentencing I am 

arrested for or commit another crime, vlolata any condition of my release, or willfully fall to appear for my probation 
Interview or my senronclng hearing, the sentence portlon of this agreement will be cancelled. I will be sentenced 
unconditionally, and 1 will not be allowed to withdraw my guilty/no contest plea(s). I 

12. (Atbuckle Waiver) I give up my light to oo sentenced by the judge who accepts this plea. __ 

13. (Probation Report) I give up my right to a full probation report before sentencing. 

S011Cc1™-012t1'-"9111J PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST-FELONY _,.,. 



I Defendant: 
IAlexander Kiev Martinez I

CASE NUMBER: 

SCD555520 
' / 

\ 
14. (Evidence Disposal Waiver) I give up my interest in all non-biological property/evidence Impounded during the I \YL 

Investigation of this case except and acknowledge that If I listed any property -Y..", 
here, I must also file a claim with the Impounding agency within 60 days after pronouncement of judgment or my 
ability to make a claim will expire. 

PLEA 

15. I now plead Guilty/No Contest and admit the charges, convictions and allegallons described In paragraph #1, ® 
above. I admit that on the dates charged, I: (Describe facts as to each charga and allegation) 
See Attachment "A ... for fac!11a! hasjs· federal Plea Agreement jo Case Number 15CR2821~BAS 

Defendant's Right Thumb Print 
ATIORNEY'S STATEMENT 

I, the attorney for the defendant in the above-entitled case, personally read and explained to the defendant the entire contents of 
this plea form and any addendum thereto. I .discussed all charges and possible defenses with the defendant, ·and the 
consequences of this plea, Including any lmml9r on consequences. I personally observe~endant fill in and Initial each 
Item, or read and Initial each item to acknowled e ls/her understanding and waive s .. ·t Citiserved the efendant date and sign this 
fdrm and any addend\m. I concur in the defe nt's. plea an wa'var of c · · · his. 

Dated: d.J, ~ \ ,(. 
I '"' (Print Name) tt rne r Defendant (Signature) 

f.JC!rol one: PD I APD I OAC I RETAINED) 
INTERPRETER'S STATEMENTlJf Applicable) · 

I, the sworn language Interpreter In this proceeding, truly translated for the defendant the entire 
contents of this form and any attached addendum. The defendant indicated understanding of the contents of this form and any 
addendum and then Initialed and signed the fonn and any addendum. 

Dated:--------

Dated:---------

I 

Judge or the Superior Court 

SO&C CAM-017 (Rt-I. 111 I) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTEST· FELONY 



AGGRAVATED FELONIES 

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON·CITIZ.F.N FOR AN "AGGRAVAT.ED FELONY" AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C. 
l101(a)(43),?i:111RES'lJLTINREMOVAUDEPORTATION,EXCLVSION,ANDDENIALOFNATURALIZATION. 

"AGGRAVATED FELONIES" include, but are not .limited to, the following crimes Jl\ill llllY attempt or conspiracy to commit 
such crimes, even if the conviction is a misdemeanor 1mder state law: [The only exception to the applicability of state 
misdemeanors is where the offenae (118 liste<l b<!low) specifically requires a~ conviction.) 

1. ANY.CRIME OF V!OLENCE* 
(Includes any offen.se that has as an element the use, attempted Wle, or threatene\l use of physical force against the person or 
property of mother, m: ruu felony offense that, by its nature, involves a substantial risk that physical force agairult the person 
or property of another may be uaed in the courne of committing the offense. (18 U.S.C. § 16).) 

2. BURG~ (Except vehicle ar veslicl unless n~d a~ a rtsldence.) • 

3. QilLD POlli'IOGWHY OFFENSES 

4. CQNJROLLED SUBSTA:'.'ICES: 
a) :FELONY POSSESSION OF A.'\Y CONTROlLED SL"BSTA.1'/CE. 
b) MISDEi'i:IEA.i"<ORPOSSESSlON OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTA.'!CE when the defendantltasp,.,,vlouslybeen 

convicted of any drug related offen~. 
c) POSSESSION FOR SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE 
d) SALE OF A.."'IY CONTROLLED SUBSTA.'iCE 
e) TRANSPORTATION OF A...'N CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE 
f) MA.NlJFACTL'R.F.JDISTRlRL"TIO~i OF A.."iY CONTROLLED SU'BSTA..'iCE AND CULTIVATION OF 

MARJJUA..1\fA 

:5. fELO\VY !t.:Q1: (Any type.)* 

6. FAlU:R;f( TO AP.PEAR, ON A FE:LO:'<J:' CASE 

7. FORGERY" 

8. FI!AL'Q (When loJs to vlciim 01· vktlm~ e:u:eedtt $10,0IJO.) 

9. MONEY LAUNDERii,'fG (lf amolillt over $10,000.) 

10. Mu.RDF£ 
11. PERJYRYISUPQRNA'UON of Perjury ()r Bribery of a Wltnen* 

12. PIMPJNG/PAND!j:RING/OPERATL'IG A PROS'lTrttfION BUSINESS 

13.~ 

H. REGEIYL"IG STQI.EN PROPERTY* 

ts. ROBBER,¥ * . 
16. SEXUAL ABUSE OF A 1\-IlNOR (Touching 18 not required, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.) 

17. IHEFI (Any type or amount)• 

18. TRAFFJCKING IN fIREARMS A,."ID EXPLOSIVES. 

19. TRAFFICKING IN VEIDCLES WITH ALTERED YINS* 

20. DEMAt'ID FOR OR RECEIPT Of RA.'iSOM 

•Where the term Imposed Is at least one year, whether or not any or all of that term ls stayed or ruspended at the 
tlme of 1entendng. 

IJD8C CRM-012 (ROY. 9111) PLEA OF GUil TVINO CONTEST • FELONY 



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNlA, er No. SCD255521 

EM1V1ANUEL ED GO, 

dob07/11/63; 

v. 

CHRISTOPHER EMMANUEL GO, 

dob 01I20; 87; 

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, 

dob 12/19/77; 

Pl"iintiff, DA No. z\DY481 

INDICTMENT 

Defendants 

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY 

Defendant DNA Testing Requirements 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

GO, EMMANUEL ED 

GO, CHRISTOPHER EJ\L\!ANUEL 

MARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEV 

D N r \ sample required upon conviction 

DNA sample required upon co1wic1jon 

DNA sample required upon conviction 

The Grand Jury of the County of San Diego, State of Califorrua, accuses the Dcfendant(s) of committing, in the Count)' of 
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following crime(s): 

CHARGES 

COUNT 1 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER 
EMMANUEL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or olher\vise, as con1pensation or 
inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services (DNA) or benefits pursuant to the California 
Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 2 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and ,\pril 27, 2015, EM:-.fANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER 
E1vfJ\if1\NUEL GO did offer, c\ejjv~r, receive and accept a rebate, refund, con1n1ission 1 preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the fonri of n1oney L)t: other\vise, as con1pensation or 
inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services (prescription n1edications) or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 3 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, E1'f:MJ\NUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER 
ErvfM;\NUEJ_, GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, con1n1ission, ptefercncc, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or other\viseJ as con1pcnsation or 
inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services (EMGs) or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 4 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, EJ\,C\lr\NUELED GO and CHRJSTOPHER 
Ei'vfNft\NUEL GO did offer) deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, con1n1ission, preference, patronilge, 
dividend 1 discount and other consideri!tion \vhcther in the forn1 of money or othet\visc, as con1pens~tion or 
inducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services (NC\r s) or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 5 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER 
EMMANUEL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, [)atronagc, 
dividend, discount and other consideration \vhethcr in the forn1 of n1oney or othet\viseJ as con1pcnsation or 
inducement for referring c]jents or patients to perfor1n or obtain services (con1pound -creatns) or benetits pursuant to 
the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 6 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS. 

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, Elv!LvlA.NUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER 
EMMANUEL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other considcr-ation \vhether in the fo1:m of n1oney or othct\vise, as co1npensatjon or 
inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services (ivf!Us) or benefits pursrnmt to the California 
Workers' Compensation iaw, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. · 



CHARGES (cont' cl) 

COUNT 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about March 18, 2015, EiVJJV!ANUEL ED GO, CHRISTOPHER EM::Vli\NUEL GO and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver; receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the form of money (#1322 for $8,000.00 to Line of Sight) or 
ot..her\vise, as con1pensation or inclucen1cnt for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 8 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about March 20, 2015, EivLvfANUEL ED GO, CHRISTOPHER EiV!JVf1\NUEL GO rnd ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form 'of money ($8,000 cash) or otherwise, as compensation 
or iriducen1ent for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California 
Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCD255521, CONSISTS OF 8 COUNTS. 

"A TRUE BILL" Bon11ie M. Dumanis 
Distric.:t :\ttornq•1 County ofS11n Diego, State of California 

Foreman of the Grand Jury Deputy District /\ttotney 



" --·· FILED 
SAN DIE\-" ~1 IPFR!OR COURT 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO /'Or coorrn .. 0t1/y 

MAY 2 $ 20\6 

PEOPLE vs Alexander Kiev Martinez, O<afendant :;;_E.:-:·;< (:,· ::-·.:: :.;,._)?E;::;,:(,i:; CJUFi·r 

B'{ JVL ALLEY . 

PLEA OF GUU.TYINO CONTEST - FELONY 
Cou1t Numl>or. SCD25552 ·1 

DA Number.ADY481 .•. 
I, the defendant In the above-entitled caae, In support of my plea of Guilty/No Contest, personally daclant as 
folloW&: 

..-... 
1. Of those charges now ·filed against me in this case, I plead GUILTY 

offenses and admit the enhancements, allesations and Qrlor convictions as follows: 
to the following · 'A.t'N 

COUNT CHAR OE ENHANCEM£NT/ALLEGATI01 -· . ., LC32'15 WA 

PRIORS:_{LIST ALLEGATIONSECTION. CONVICT.ION DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGEl 

-
. . ,,... . 

2. I have not been Induced to enter this plea by any promise or raprasarrtatlon of any kind, except (State P4{AI 
any agr1>ement wltf1 the District Attorney.) -

3. I am e11tering my plea freeiy a.:d voluntarily, without fear or threat to me or anyone closely related to me. 

4. I underntand that a plea of No Contest Ju the l:lame as a plea of Guilty for all purposes. 

5. I am sober and my judgment i1;1 not lmpairei:!. I hav!l not consumad any drug, alcohol or narcotic within 
the past 24 hours. l.l!:~.a 

CONS'DTUTIONAL RIGHTS 

tla. 1 understand tllat I have the right to be raprasantad by a lawyer at all stages of the proceedings. I can hire my own ~ 
:awyer or the Court will appoint a lawyer for ma If I cannot afford cine. ~ 

1 ::nderstaaj that as to all chargos, allegations 11nd prior co1wictlons fl1111d against ma, Md 111!1 to any facts that 
may ba used to lncr11ue my Hnl>lnr;;a, now or In tho futi.ma, I also have tha f9!!ow!ng coM!ltutlon11! rlg$. which 
I now plve up to enter niy plea of gullty/no eooWst: 

Sb. I have the right to a •PtidV qnd public trl!!!I by Jury. I now give up this right. 

Sc. I have the rlght to ~mront and cro!JlHXam!ng pl! th11 wtt:num against me. I now 
give up this right. 

6d. I have the right to oimaln l!ill!nt (unless I choose to testify on my own behalf). 
I now give up thla right. 

6e. t have the right to rm;iunt 1vlden94 In mv behalf and to have the court subpoena my 
witnesses at no cost to me. I now give up this right. 

!JDtlC Cl"IM--01:2 (RbY, 9/11) PLEA OF OU!L TY/NO CONTES'T • FELONY 



f Dtiisndant; 
---------------------,--·------------~ 

CASE NUMBER: 
f.lexander Kiev Mar1lnez SCD250o2·t 

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUil TY OR NO CONTEST 

7a. I understand that I may receive this maximum punishment as a result of my ple9:_? years Imprisonment or 
Imprisonment plus a lllrm of mandalory supervision; $10,000 fine; and '1'. }"'lars parole or post·-releaire 
community supervision, with return to custody for every violation of a condition thereof. If I am not sentenced to 
Imprisonment. I rn.ay be granted probation for a period up to 5 years or the maximum term of Imprisonment, 
whichever is greater. As conditions of probation I may be given up to a year in jail custody, plus- the fine, and any 
other conditions deemed reasonable by the Cou1t. I understand that if I violate any condition of probation I can be 
sent&nced lo imprisonment for the maximum term as stated above. 

7b. I understand that I must pay a restltulfon flne ($200 • $10,000), that I will also be subject to a suspended fine in the 
sama amount, and that t must pay full restitution to all victims. 

7c. I und that my r,onvf~Qase will be~nt felon~ka!1-~~lting In mand~dfwial of 
pro tion, su anti lly11'1creased pen~rlcfa tann In Stata"?m.'lll'\ t~Mur~ ~ 

7d. I understand that If I am not a U.S. citizen, this plea of Guilty/No Contaat-may result in my removal/deportatlon, 
exclusion fmm admission to the U.S. arid. denial of natwralizatlon. Additionally, ~this plea is to an 'Aggravated 
Felony' listed on the back of this form, then I w!ll be deported, excluded from admission to the U.S., and denied 
naturalization. 

7e, I undarsmnd that my plea of Guilty or No Contastln tl1in r,.asa 001Jld resultin revocation of my probation, mandatory 
supervlsion, P<lrole or post-release sup<lrvision In otbar casas, and consecutive sentences. 

Tf. My attorney has explained to me that other possible conooquences of this plea may be: 
(Circle applicable conseq1;ences.) 

( 1) Consecutive sentences (9) Prtson prior a. Limited local credits 
(2) Loss of driving prMlages (10) Mandatory lmprisonmant (290/seriou.~/prior) · 
(3) Commitment to Youth 111) Mandatory State Prison b. Vlolant Felony (No credit 

Authority 12) Presump1iVl'I impriB<lnment or max. 15%) 
(4) Lifetime registration as an ( 13) Presumptive St.ate Prison c. Prior Sbike(s) (No credit 

arson I sex offender {'14) Sexually Violent Pfl'ldator to mai<. 20%) 
(5) Rogis!ration as a narcotic I Law · d; Murder on/after 613198 

gang offender (15) Possible/Mandatory (No credit) 
(6) Cannot posseoo firearmu or hcrmo111l suppression (17) Loss of public assistance 

ammuriitlon traatmant !18l AIDS educatlon program 
(7) Blood last amd selive sample (HJ) Reduced conduct/work. 19 Otfler: 
(8) Pliorablo (Increased credits 

punishment for future 
offenses) 

~ 

8. 

9. 

(Appeal Rights) I give up my right to appeal the follow!ng: 1) denial of my 1538.5 motion, 2) iss1JeS related to strike ~ 
prloro (under PC sections 667(b)-(i) and 1170.12), and 3) any santenca sHpulatad herein. 

(HarwyW11lv11r) The aentenc:lngjudge may consider my prior criminal history and the entire factual background of . 
the case, Including any unflted, dismissed or stricken charges or allegatlons or cases when granting probation, 
ordering restitution or Imposing sentence. 

1 o. (8f11kelywalver) I understand that as to any fact In aggravation that may be used lo Increase my sentence on any r?fiA.. 
count or allegation to the upper or maximum term provided by law, I have the constitutional rights listed In ~ 
paragraphs 6b-6e. I now give up thoss rights and agree that the sentencing judge may determine the existence or 
non-existance of any fact In aggravation, either at the lnlt!al sentencing or at any future sentencing In the event my 

~-~~. ·~· 
11. (Gruz Waiver) Negotlated Disposition pursuant to PC 1192.5: I understand that W pending sentencing I am 

arrested for or commit another crime, violate any condition of my release, or willfully fail to appear for my probation 
lntervfuw or my sentencing hoarlng, the S<iJntenca portion of this agreement will bG oancaUad. I will be sentenced 
unconditionally, and I will not be allowed to wfthdraw my guilty/no contest plea(s). 

12. (Aituclcfo Williver) I give up my right to be sentenced by the judge who accepts this plea. 

13. (Probation Roport) I give up my right to a full probation report before sentencing. 

808C CRM-012 (Ra\I. Jt11) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTEST • FELONY 



I Defendant: 
~jexander Klav Martll']~"'z'---------

I CASE NUMBER: 
SCD255521 

~ ~. (Evidence Olspo11a! Wa!v11r) I glVG up my interest in all non-blologlcal property/evidence Impounded during the 
lnvesHgn!ion of this case except end acknowledge the! If I l!Gted any property 
here, I mub"t also file a claim with the Impounding agency within 60 days after pronouncement of Judgment or my 
ab/lily to make a claim will expire. 

PLEA 

·1&. I now plead Guilty/No Contest and admit the charges, convictions and allegations described in paragraph #1, ~ 
above. I admit that on the dates charged, I: (Desr,rioo far::is ss to each charge and al/agatlon) L.00.J 
Ear factual ba!!ls aaa Attachment 'A"· F adaral ~mnnt la Case Number 15CR2821-BA.S 

16. I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read, underatol:ld1lan.~ ch !tam above and· any ~ 
attached ad ndurn, and everything on the form and any aittsl!l;icl ""'"""'n Is trua and correct. ~ 

Dated: l \~ ·--- Defendant's Signature -~-"-'-"¥V:.t,P..::.=b---------
Defendant's Address: _ _,_....._...\.-_.."'~.ll.>.u.:.=JJ.1J~,.,..,__,_=..:._ _______ _ 

_p_L_~~~~~~~~~~~·~~lf?~t~2~~3 
· Cl!y State Zip 

Telephone Number: Ll\i..\2.l nb-1./bi\'::s. 
Defendant's Right Thumb Print 

AITOi~NEY'S STATEMENT 
I, t[\tl at'.omay for the dafandant In the above-entJUed case, peraonaily raad and SJ<Plained to the defendant the enUre con1ents of 
this plea forrn and any addendum tharato. I discussed all charges and possible defenses with tli<i dofandant, and the 
consequences of this plea, including any irnrnig tion consequences. I perJonally observed the defendant fill In and Initial each 
item, or read arid initial eact1 item to acknowtedg his/her understand! g end waivers. I observe<L!f:l~ant data and sign this form and ~·J\.a~dtn. I concur In the def n ant's plea an walv r of con · · _. · · .--

Dated:_ l:::___ . .,_,'!'.: &!'.~~:::;z~;=::~,,._"""'"-------,=---,__,. 
(P Im Name) !t<lmtlly ~ efim iiiit (Signature) 

(Cl!-ele on · PD I APD I OAC I RETAINED) 
INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT If le} 

I, the sworn_ language Interpreter In this proceeding, truly translated for Iha dmandent the entire 
co11tents of this form and any attached addendum. The defendant indicated understanding of the contents of this form and any 
addendum and then initialed and signed Iha form and any addendum. 

Dated:------
{Signature) (?ri11t Narna) Court lntarpratar 

PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT 
The People of the State of California, plainttff, by its attorney, tl1e District Attomey for the County of lego, concurs wl1h the 
defenda};Zfs pie of G ty/No Contaat as sat forth above. 

Dated: / /6 ~' C· ~,, 
r!nt Name) I Deputy Dis 
COURTS FINDING AND ORDER 

c ,e:;.-, .--...... 

The Court, having questioned the defendant and defendanrs attorney concerning the detendanrs plea of Gullty/No Contest and 
admissions of the prior convictions and allagatii)n&, If any, finds that: The defendant understands and voluntarily and lntelllgently 
waives his/her constitutional right.a; the defendant's plea and admissions are freely and voluntarily made; the defendant 
understands the nature of the charges and the consequences of the plea and admissions; and there is a factual basis for same. 
The Court accepts tile defendanfs plea and adm' ns, and the d ant is convicted thereby. 

Dated: __._, ..<-f.>e>/,),q;}-!4, ?,"""1-Ll _ 
Judge of U1e Superior Court 

808C CRM--012 (~. Q/11) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTEST • FELONY 



AGGRAVATED FELONIES 

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CITIZEN F'OR AN "AGGRAVATED FELONY'' AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C. 
1101(11)(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION,AJ."ID DENIAL 01<' NATuRALIZATION. 

"AGGRAVATED FELONIES" include, but a.re not limited to, the following crimes llru! any attempt or consprracy to commit 
•uch crimea, even if the conviction is a miJ!derneanor under state law: [The only exception to the applicability of state 
misdemeanors is where the offense (as listed below) specifically requires a ft!9.!lY conviction.] 

1. t\+"IY CRIJ\:fE OF VIOLENCE* 
(Includes any offerum th11t has as au element the use, attempted use, or threatened use of physical force against the person or 
property ofanother,m:my filmlx offorue that, by its rniture, involves a substantial risk that physical force agalruit the person 
or property of another may be Med io the course of committing the offense. (18 U.S.C. §16).) · 

2. J!URGJ..&.BX (Except vehicle or vessel unle9S used aa a residence.) • 

3. CHILD PORNOGRAPHY OFFENSES 

4. CONTROLLED SUBSTAJ."ICES: 
a) FELONY POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLL.ED SlJllSTANCE. 
b} MISDE.\fEAN'ORPOSSF.SSION OF A.."IT CONTROLLED SUl:ISTAN'CE when the defe.ndanthasprnvionslybeen 

coirvicted of .LX\:f drug rel!!bed offense. 
c) POSSESSION FOR SA.LE OF A."IY CONTROLLED STJBSTA.~CE 
d) SALE OF ANY CON1".ROLLED SlJBSTANCE 
e) TRANSPORTATION OF Ai'IY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE 

· f) MANUFACTURE/IHSTRillG110N OF A.'fY CO:N'TROLLED SUBSTA..--iCE AND CULTIVATION OF 
MARIJUANA 

5. FELONY :QJJ,,L (Any type.)" 

6. FAILURE TO APPE:AR G?,,'l A YELO'.'fK C~ 

1. FORGERY• 

8. fMD;.Q (Where lo~s to vkthn -01· victims Mceed' $10,000.) 

9. MQNli:X LAIJ@:ERl!"iQ (If amount ovel' $10,000.) 

10. MTJRDER 

11. PER.TURXISUBQ.RNA TION of Perjury or Bribery of a Wltneu• 

11. PIMPING/P ANDE~/Ol'EMTING A PROffUU,'TIQN ID.JSitiES!l 

13.RAl'E 

14. RECEIVL."iG STOLEN PROPERTY • 

15, ROBBERY • 

16. SEXUAL ABUSE OF A l'tilNOR (fouchlng Is not required, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.) 

17. THJliFI' (Any type or amount)" 

18. TRAFFICKING IN FIREARi.'1-IS AND EXPLOSIVES. 

19. ~CKING DI VF.RICLES WITH ALTERED YINS* 

20. DEMA.1'ID FOR OR RECEIPT OF RA.!'!SOM 
• Where the term hnposed Is at leD.l!t one year, wl1ether or not any or all of that term Is stayed or suspended at the 
time or sentenclng. 

SDSC Cl™'-012 (Rev. Otl 1) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTEST • FELONY 



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

THE PEOPLl~ OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255522 

v. 

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, 

dob 12/79/77; 

ElUC JAY SCHJ\J'vlES, 

dob 09/07/83; 

JENNIFER LOUISE \\'.'HITE, 

dob08/03/80; 

Plaintiff, DA No. ADY535 

INDICT:..!ENT 

Defendants 

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SU.lvlMARY 

Defendant DNA Testing Requirements 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

l\IARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIE\' 

SCHAMES, ERlCJAY 

WHITE, JENNIFER LOUISE 

D N 1 \sample required upon conviction 

DN1\ satnplc required upon conviction 

DN1\ sample required upon conviction 

The Grand Jury of the Count)' of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Dcfcnclant(s) of committing, in the Count)' of 
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following crime(s): 

CHARGES 

COUNT 1 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between October 1, 2014 and November 1, 2014, ALE\XANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, clclivcr, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference, patronage1 dividencl 1 discount and other consideration \vb ether in the forn1 of lnoney or othcr\vise

1 
as 

compensation or inducement for referring clients or patic1its to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT $20,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between November 1, 2014 and December 1, 2014, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCH AMES, andJENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, comll')ission, 
preference) patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of money or othet'\vise) as 
compensation or induccn1ent for referring clients or pati.ents to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $10,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 3 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between December 1, 2014 and December 15, 2014, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC 
JAY SCH AMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, 
co1nn1ission, preference, patronage, dividend) discount and other consideration \Vhcthcr in the for1n of 1noncy or 
othet\.Vise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $14,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 
3215. 

COUNT 4 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between January 1, 2015 and January 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference) patronage, djvidcndJ discount and other consideration \Vhcthcr in the forn1 of inoncy or othct'\Visc, as 
compensation or inducen1ent for referring cUcnts or patients to perforrn or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO \X'IT, $20,100, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 5 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between February 1, 2015 and February 10, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhcther in the form of money or othcP,vise, as 
compensation or inducen1cnt for referring clients or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $20,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215, 

COUNT 6 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between February l, 2015 and February 2, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, andJENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as 
compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $27,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between i\larch 1, 2015 and March 30, 20·15, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCJ-IAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE ,Lid offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference> patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhcthcr in the forn1 of n1oncy or othcr\visc, as 
cotnpcnsation or inducc1ncnt for referring clients or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $l8,000 in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 8 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between April 1, 2015 and April 30, 2015, AIEXr\NDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCI-IAi\lES, and JENNIFr,:R LOUISE \'\'HITE did offer, deLiver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference> patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \vhcther in the forn1 of n1011ey or otl1et\vise, as 
con1pcnsation or induccn1cnt for referring clients or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or benefits. pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $17,000, 1n violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 9 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about ancl between April 1, 2015 and 1\pril 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KJEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCH AMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \'('HITE ,Lid offer, deLiver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference, patronage 1 dividend, discount and other consideration \vhcthcr in the forn1 of n1oncy or other\vise, as 
cotnpensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to pcrforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
.California Workers' Compensation law, TO \X'IT $10,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 10 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about and between April 1, 2015 and April 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHJ\MES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \'\'HITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference, patronage, <livid.end) discount and other consideration \vhether in the forn1 of n1oney or other\vise, as 
con1pensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the 
CaLifornia Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $20,000, in violacion of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 11 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about May l, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY SCI!J\1'1ES, and JENNIFER LOUISE 
WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount 
and other consideration \Vhcther in the forn1 of n1oney or othc1'\visc, as con1pcnsation or inducen1ent for referring 
clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, 
TO WIT, $7,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 12 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS /PATIENTS 

On or about and between June 1, 2015 and June 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV i\li\RTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \'\'HITE did offer, dcliv~r, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, 
preference, pau·onagc, dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhethcr in the for1n of n1oncy or othct\vise, as 
compensation or inducen1ent for referringcUents or patients to perforn1 or obtain se1viccs or benefits pursuant to the 
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $15,000, in violation ofLi\BOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 13 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September l, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHA:vIES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did lmlawfolly conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrct1cc of, 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and cntitlc1ncnt to an insurance benefit and payment, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - The Hartford), in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 14 -INSURANCE- CONCEALEVEN.T AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MAKfINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which tl1e person was entitled (Sleep Study- The Hartford), in violation of 
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 15 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, J\l.EXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and 
the amount of a benefit aod payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - ACE/ESIS), in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 16 -INSURANCE - CONCEAJ, EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERICJA Y 
SCHAl\!ES, andJENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly foil to djsclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to djsclosc the occurrence oC 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and.entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was cnticlcd (ANS - Magna Carta), in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 17 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAJM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV l\!1\RTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person's in..itial and continued right and entitlc111ent to an insurance benefit and pay1nent, and 
the amount of• benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - Magna Carta), in violation of 
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 18 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \'('HlTE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payrncnt, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was enticled (ANS - SCIF), in violation of PENAL CODE 
SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 19 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oc~urrcnce 
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and 
cl1e amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - Ilerkshire Hathaway) in violation 
of PEN1\L CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 20 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV i\IARTTNEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, clid unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of

1 

an event that affected a person1s initial and contin_ued right and cn-dtle1ncnt to an insurance benefit and payment> and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - J\mTrust) in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 21 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to cUsclose the occt11Tence of, 
an event that affected a person 1s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (1\NS - Liberty i\lutual) in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 22 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September ·1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHANIBS, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose \he occurrence 
of, and kno\vingl}1 assjst and conspjre \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence ofi 
an event that affected a pcrson1s initial and continued right and cntitlc1ncnt to an insurance benefit and payn1ent, and 
the amount of_ a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Sedgwick) in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 23 -INSURANCE- CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between Scptcmbci: 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCH AMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \'0-IITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurnnce benefit and payment, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Liberty Mutual) in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 24 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or abou't and between September 1, 20l4 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV 1\fAlJTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAi\fES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \\'HITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of> and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to Jisclose the occurrence of, 
an event tl1at affected a person's initial and continueCl right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and pay111ent> and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - Liberty Mutual) in violation of 
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 25 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEX1\NDER KIEV i\IARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCf-IAMES, and.JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and cntitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payment> and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (1\NS - ICW), in violation of PEN AL CODE 
SECTION SSO(b)(3). 

COUNT 26 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September ·J, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, EHlC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
oC and kno\vingly assist and conspiL·e \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that .affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent, and 
the amount of" benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - !CW),. in violation of PEN AL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 27 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September l, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV ivli\RTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \~'HITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payment, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - SCIF), in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 28 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHJ\?v!ES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly faU to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence oC 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and cntitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and payn1cnt, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which tl1e person was entitled (/\NS - Broadspire), in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 29 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC Ji\ Y 
SCH/\MES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly faU to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist ~ind conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence oC 
an event that affected a pcrson1s initial and continued right and cntitlc1ncnt to an insurance benefit and payn1cnt) and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which tl1e person was entitled (Sleep Study - Broadspire) in violation of 
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 30 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 acid September 1, 20·1s, ALEXANDER KIEV l'vL".RTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHA?v!ES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \'\'HITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
oC and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, 
an event that affected a person's initial and contfnued right and entitlen1cnt to an insurance benefit and pay1nent) and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the persotl was entitled (ANS - Am Trust) in violation of PENAL 
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). . 

COUNT 31 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCHJ\MES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \'\'HITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence oC 
an event that affected a pcrson1s initial and continued right and entitlcrnent to an insurance benefit and pay1nent, and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Stud\' - i\mTrust) in violation of 
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(?). 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 32 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAJM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JA y 
SCf-IAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \X'HITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose Lhe occurrence 
of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of

1 

an event t..hat affected a person1s initial and conti11ued right and entitlcn1ent to an insurance be11efit and payment
1 

and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Gallagher-Bassett) in violation of 
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 33 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY 
SCI-IA:VrES, and JENNIFER LOUISE \X'HlTE, did. unlawfully conceal and knowingly foil to disclose the occurrence 
o( and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of) 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1cnt to an insurance benefit and payn1enti and 
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - Gallagher Bassett) in violation of 
PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(b)(3). 

THIS INDICTl\fENT, NUMBERED SCD255522, CONSISTS OF 33 COUNTS. 

"A TRUE BILL" Bonnie M. Dumanis 
Distl'ict t\ttorne)', Count)' of San Diego, State ofC~liforni!I 

Foretnan of the Grand Jury fJcputy District J\Ltorncy 



~FILED 
SAN D'~ '"·"1:JR COURT 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

PEOPl.E vs Alexander Kiev Martinez Defendant LER:' - · -= ::c- =- ''"' ::)•;'F 
Y M ALLEY 

PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST - FELONY Court Number. SCD255522 

DA Numbor. ADY535 

I, the defendant In the above-entitled cue, In support of my plea of Guilty/No Contest, personally declare as 
follows: 

1. Of those charges now flied against me in this case, I plead GUil TY 
offenses and admit the enhancements. alleoations and prior convictions as follows: 

01\ 
to tha following JI /'. • ~ ) 

COUNT CHARGE ENHANCEMENTIALl.EGATlON -

1 LC 32·1.~5 ·-----· -----------·-------! 
PC 550(b\l:JL--·-----+----·-----------·-< 

2. I have not bean induced to antor t11is plea by any pmmliie or reprasentation of any kind, except: (State I f I• 
any agr&1Jment with the Dis!.ric:t A ttame y.) _ ' 
$.aaM.w;bJI!fillL'A::..Eirniaral Plea ~QHW!llill!Jn.~ru.u:ntar 15CR2621 ·BAS 

3. I am entering my plea freely and voluntarily, without fear or threat to me or anyone closely related to me. 

4. I understand that a ploa. of No Contest is the same as a plea of Guilty for all purpose11. 

5. I am sober and my judgmer1t Is not lrnpairad. I have not r,onsurnad any d11.ig, alcohol or narcotic within 
the past 2 4 hours. 

CONSTITUTIONAL RlGHTS 

Ba. I understand that I have the right to be represented by a lawyer at all stages of the proceedings. I can hire my own ~ 
lawyer or the Court wlll ap-point a lawyer for me If I cannot afford one. 1-@Y 
I und•nitaru.1 that 11t1 to 1111 charges, &UQ{l!rtlon11 and prior convletlom1 flied against ma, and as to any facts that 
may be used to Increase my sentence, now or In the future, I also have the f2f19'1'1lcig constitutional rights. whl!0h 
I now g!ye uo to vmar my plea of guilty/no conteat: 

6b. I have the right to a JPAAdY and publlc: trial ~Y Jury I now give up this right. 

6c. I have the right to confront and grOH=!JCllrnlne ell the w!IO!!!!P against ma. I now 
111lw up this right. 

6d. I have the right to rtmaln !Jlle(!1 (unless I choose to testify- on my own behalf). 
I now glvo up this right. -

60. I have the right to 9r1111ent MVld•nce In my behqlf and to have tho court subpoena my 
witnesses at no. cost to me. I now give up thia right. 

SD8C CflM-01l(ftm. 9{1i) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTEST - FELONY P'llQ6 1 of 4 



----·---·---· I CASE NUMBER: 

SCD2.55522 
·-~--~~~~~~~~~-~~~~~~· 

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST 

7a. I understand that I may receive this maximum punishment as a result of my plaa; 5y 8mo years Imprisonment or 
Imprisonment plus a term of mandatory supervision; $ 60,000 fine; and· '-!Yoora parole or post-raleaae 
community supervision, with retum to custody for every violatlon of a condlttOiiliiereof. If I am not sentenced to 
Imprisonment, I may ba granted probation for a period up to 5 years or the maximum term of lmpnsonrnant, 
whichever Is greater. As conditions of probation I may be given up to a year in jail custody, plus the fine, and any 
other conditions deemed reasonable by the Court. I understand that if I violate any condition of probation I can be 
sentenced to Imprisonment for the maximum term as statad above. 

7b. I understand that I must pay a restitution ffne ($200- $10,000), that! wrn also be subjoct to a suspended fine In the 
·same amount, and that I must pay full restitution to all victims. 

7c. I und d that my convlctjQ[l in this case wlll b s/vlolen ny trike'} iw · In mandalQ!'Ld!!nlal of 
p ation, b1rtantla -mmas~ nd a term 1 - Prison In a felon ~~ 

7d. I understand that if I am not a U.S. citizen, this plea of Guilty/No Contest ~ult in my removal/deportation, 
exclusion from admission to tha U.S. and denial of naturallzatlon. Additionally, If this plea I& lo an 'Aggravated 
FBlony' listed on the back of this form, then I wlll ba deported, excluded from admission to the U.S .. and denied 
naturallzatlon. 

7a. I undar11tand that my plei; of Guil~/ or No Contest In this cese could result in revocation of my probation, rnandatoiy 
supervision, parole or post-release $upervislon in otner cases, and consecutive sentences. 

7f. My attomay has axplalne<l to me tht•.I other possible con11<iquences of this plea may be: 

8 

(Circle applicable consequences.) 

( 1) Consecutive sentences 
(2) Loss of driving privileges 
(3) Commitment to Youth 

At.ltholity 
(4) Lifutima reglstratton aa an 

araon I sax offonder 
(5) Rflglstration as a narcotic I 

gang offender 
(6) Cannot possess ftrea1ms or 

ammunition 
\7) Blood test and saliva sample 
(8) Priorabla (incraasad 

punishment for future 
offenses) 

(9) Prlscn prior 
("IQ) Mandatory Imprisonment 
( 11) Mandatory Stat& Prison 
(12) Prnsumpttve lmprisonment 
(I 3) Pnn1um ptive State Prison 
( 1 4) Sei<ually Vlolent Predator 

Law 
(15) Possibla!Mandatory 

honnor.e. suppression 
treatment 

(16) Reduced conduct/work 
credits 

a. Limited local credits 
(200/serious/prlori 

b. Violent Felony (No credit 
or max. 15%) 

c. Prior Strike(s) (No credit 
to max.20%) 

· d. Murder on/after 613/98 
(No credit) 

(17) l.oss of public assistam:e 
(1 al AIDS education program 
(19 Other:. _____ _ 

(Appeal Rlghtu) I give up my right to appeal ttia following: 1) denial of my 1538.5 motion, 2) issw~s related t.o strike 
priors (under PC sectfons 6e7(b)-{I) and 1170.12), and 3) any s1.mtenca sflpulated herein. 

(H!llVllyWafwr} The sentencing judge may consider my prlorcr!mlnal history and the entire factual bec:kground of 
the case, Including any unfllad, dlemlal'!ed or stricken charges or allega~ons or cases when granting probation, U~T.Y 
ordering restitution or imposing sentence. 

10. (.!l/alre/ywal'1'9r) I understand that as to any fact in aggravation that may be used to increase my sentence on any rf--+Jri~ 
count or allegation to tl1e upper or maximum term provided by law, I have the constltutionel rtghts llstad In 
paragraphs 6b-l)e. I now giva up thosa rights and agree that the 3entencJng judge may determine the existence or 
non-existence of any fact In aggravation, either at the initial sentencing or at any future sentencing in the event my 
probation Is ravokad. 

; ·1. (Cru.: Waiver) Negotiated Dlsposltton pursuant to PC 1192.5: I undemtand that if pending sentencing lam 
arrested for or commit anothar crime, violate any condition of my ralease, or willfully fall to appear for my probation 
Interview or my sentencing hearing, the sentence portlon of thi~ agreement wlll be canc!llled. I will be sentenced 
unconditionally, and l wlll not be allowed to withdraw my guilty/no contest ploa(s}. 

12. (Amuckle Waiver} I give up my right to be sentenced by the judge who accepts this plea. 

13. (Probation Report) I give up my right to a Ii.ill probation report befora sentencing. 
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D<afondant: CASE NUMBER: 

lexander Kiev Martinez SCD2556~----------' 

14. (Evidence Disposal 'JI/giver) I give up my interest In all non-biological property/evidence Impounded during the 
Investigation of thi>' case except and acknowledge that ~ I listed any property 
hara, I must also Ille a claim with the Impounding eg<:incy witl1in 60 days after pronouncement of judgment or my 
ability to maf~a a claim w!ll expire. · 

PLEA 

~ 5. I now plead Guilty/No Contest and actmit the charges, convictions and allegations described in paragraph #1, 
above. I admit that on the dates charged, I: (D&scriblil facts as to each charge and allegation) 
S!l!I Mai;bmel)LA": EMeral Pies A.arae~Jw lSCB2f\21·BAalorfllctua! basis 

Defendant's Right Thumb Print 
ATTORNEY'S STATEMENT 

I, the attorney for the defandant in tha allCV(HJntitlad case, pornonally read and explained to !he defendant the entire conten\!l of 
this plea fonn and any addendum thereto. I diqc~ooed all charges and possible defenses wit~1...JJJQ defendant, and the 
consequanc.es of thla plea, includ!11g any lmmlgratl consequences. I personally observed tt11HJ<i!f.fAclaril fill in and Initial each 
item, or read and. initial aach il:(1m to acknowtadga hi bir understanding and waivers. J.,o~bserv ~tl\ii defendant dat;i and sign this 
form and an'.·~denrm. I concur In th<i defen a1 3 plaa ::_nd waiv r of c~t:i~' . 

Dated:-=£ ~-ti 1.-.:- - .~.<P" . /' = -· ---
(Pri Name) 1 A rney foyflaf<andant ~--;;ti.mi) 

' ircle pi::~ PD I APD I OAv RETAINED)! 
INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT {I cable) 

I, the sworn · language lnterpratar in this procaadlng, truly translated for the defendant the en~re 
contents of thls form and any attached addendum. The defendant indicated underntandlng of the contents of this form and any 
addand~a\nq ri;lnltlaled and signed the fom• and any addendum. . 

Dated: ~=--:-·--------.,,--..,..·,..,.-~-----
(Print Name) Court Interpreter (Signature) 

PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT 
The People of the State of California, plaintiff, by its attorney, the District Attomlly for tha County of San D!090, concurs with the 
dafandemt's plea of Guilty/No Contest as sat forth above. . \'::::-,.. --" 

Dated:~\"\ h \? f'i::oil-O,-,-_,,f-l_'(.Q __ ,.,_J1_l __ -r-::---:-::r~) -~--~ \ ___ ,,,.,.._ _ _, 
(Print Name) Deputy Dis 'ct Attorney (Signature) 

COUR'l"S FINDING AND ORDER 
The Court, having questioned the defendant and defendanrs attorney conCJ!lming the defendar;t's plea r>f Guilty/No Contest and 
admissions of the prlor convictions and allegations. if any, flnds that The defendant understands and voluntarily and intelligently 
.. ~ives his/her constttutional rlghts; the defe11dant's plea and admissions are fmely and voluntarily made; the. defendant 
understands the nature of tha charges and the coMaquences of the plea and admissions; and there is a factual basJs for same. 
The Court accepts the defendant's plea and adrnissio nd the dafundan · nvicted thereby. 

Dated: ___..<;...._,__lJti...._,__.,
1
/1 __ G 

Judge of the Supelior Court 
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AGGRAVATED FELONIES 

ANY CONVIC110N OF A NON-CITIZEN FOR AN "AGGRAVATED FELONY" AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C. 
1101(a)(43), filL1 RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLl:SJ:ON,AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION. 

"AGGRAVATED FELO:"UES" include, but are not limited to, the following crimes .@!!ll any attm:upt or conspiracy to commit 
such cri."'lles, even if the conviction is a mi•demeancr llrlder state law. [The only exception to the applicability of state 
misdemeanors is where the offense (as listed below) specifically requires a frJQl1Y conviction.] 

1. ANY CRL.)!E OF VIOLENCE' 
(Includes any offense that !us as an element the U8C, a.'tempted 11.'le, or threatened use of physical force against the penon or 
property of another, m: ru:iy felonv offense that., by its nature, involves a substantial risk that physical force again.st the person 
or property of another may be used in the course of committing the offerue. (!8 U.S.C. § 16).) 

2. BVRQLARY (Except vehicle or vessel unle'8 used a. a rellilence.) * 

3, gm.D PORNOGRAPHY OFFE+"'iSES 
-----. 

4. CQNTI!,Ol:Ji:im=SlJBSTANCES: 
n) F'ELONY POSSES3101'.QF A:'\"Y CONTROLLED SL!!STANCE. 
b) 1\-!JSDEi'liEANORPOSS.ESS.iL' <1;; ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTA.c"ICE wben the defend.antl1a; previously been 

convl.cted of J!l!.I'. drug related offen:ee. 
c) POSSESSION FOR SALE OF A.'lliY CONTRO.L:.~'D SUBSTA.."ICE 
d) SALE OF ANY CONTROLI,ED strBSTAc"'iCE 
e) TRANSPORTATIO.N OF Ac'lli'Y CO'.'iTROLLED SF.!ISTA.'i<,:-' 
!) MA.'fOFACTUREiDISTRIBUTION OF A.:"IY COl'iTROLLE!, .. _s_, ANCE AND CULTIVATION OF 

MARJJUA.'IA 

5. FELONY J).UJ. (Any type.r 

6. FAILURE TO l\PPEAR 0:-<,A:F-e;LO~ 

7. F'QR_QER.Y * 
3. llloilIP.. (Where Jo .. to vlctlm or vlctlms ru:ceeda $10,0-00.) 

9. M9NEY LAL'NDEJ,'\Dl_Q (If amount over $10,000.) 

10. 1"!URJ)E£ 

11. PERJURX!SUBQSi'!,iTJ:ON of Perjury or Bribery of a W!tneH* 

12. POOlli G!P A;'IDEWG/OPE;R.A TING A l'ROSTirV:rION BvSL'iE§~ 

13. :M.U 
14. R.ECEIYJNG STOLEN PROfERTX * 
l:'i. ROBBERY * 
16. SEXUAL 4!)USE OF A.JVIL.'IOR (Touching Is not requlre<l, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.) 

17. IHEFI' (Any type or amount)* 

18. TRA.FFICK!NG IN FIREAR'"1S AND EXPLOSIVES. 

19. TRAFFICKING IN VEBJCLES WITllALTERED VIN~· 
20. R!W.'1AND FOR QR RECfilll: QF RA,"fSQM 

*Where the term Imposed la at least one year, whether or not any or all of that term ls stayed or m•pended at the 
time of sentenclng. 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
Plaintiff, 

CTNo. SCD255523 
DA No. ADY526 

v. 

ULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA, 

dob 06/06/83; 

ALEXANDER KIEV i\!ARTINEZ, 

dob 12/19/77; 

INDICTMENT 

Defendants 

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY 

Defendant DNA Testing Requirements 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

GARCIA,JUL11\N ESTRADA 

i\!ARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEV 

DNA sample has been previously provided 

DNi\ san1pl.e required upon conviction 

The Grand Jury of the County·of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the County of 
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this lndicunent, the following crime(s): 

CHARGES 

COUNT 1 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about March 25, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, 
deliver, receive and accept a rebate1 refund, con1mission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other 
consideration \Vhether in the form of money or othet\vise, as cornpensation or inducement for referring clients or 
patients to perforn1 or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers1 Compensation la\v; in violation 
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about April 9, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and ALEXANDER KIEV i\IARTINEZ did offer, deliver, 
receive and accept a rebate) refund, cotnrnission, preference, patronage, dividend) discount and other consideration 
\vhethcr in the fortn of 1noney or othenvise1 as compensation or induce1nent for referring clients or patients to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 

Page 1 of 4, Court Case No. SCD255523 



CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 3 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfolly conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and 
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an 
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ACE Insurance - Dtv!E/hot/cold packs), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 4 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM . 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV tvL'\RTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and 
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an 
event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit and payrnent, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Am trust Insurance - DME/hot/ cold packs), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 5 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and ' 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and 
kno\vingly assist and conspire \vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence ofJ an 
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit and payment, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ESIS Insurance - DME/hot/ cold packs), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 6 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and 
kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person t.o conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, ·an 
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Insurance - Dl\fE/hot/cold 
packs), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 7 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARC!J\ and 
ALEXANDER KIEV ~fARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose tl1e occurrence of, and 
kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of

1 
an 

event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and paytnent, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (JC\'(/ Insurance - DME/hot/ cold packs), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 8 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and 
kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of

1 
an 

event that affected a pcrson1s initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit and paytnent, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Liberty Mutual Insurance - DME/hot/cold 
packs), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 9 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV lv!ARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and · 
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an 
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Preferred Employer Insurance - DME/hot/cold 
packs), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 10 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 20·15,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and 
kno\vingly assist and conspire \vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of) an 
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlen1ent to an insurance benefit and pay1nent

1 
and the 

amount of a benefit and payment to wbi.ch the person was entitled (Sedgwick Insurance - D11.!E/hot/ cold packs), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 11 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly foil to disclose the occurrence of, and 
kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an 
event that affected a person1s initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit arid pay1r1ent, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zenith Insurance - DME/hot/cold packs), in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

COUNT 12 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and 
kno\vingly assist and conspire \vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail ~o disclose the occurrence of, an 
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlernent to an insurance benefit and payn1ent, and the 
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich Insurance - Di'v!E/hot/ cold packs) in 
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCD255523, CONSISTS OF 12 COUNTS. 

"A TRUE BILL" Bonnie l\.l, Du1nan.is 
District Atturncy, CrJ1HH\' of S~n Diego, State of Calirornia 

Fore1nan of rhe Grand Jur:,' Deputy District Attorney 
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.. -_' .. 
·'"'' 

--
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ~I A 1"' 1''11 "eti%' . 

" -
PEOPLE vi Nexander Kiev Martinez 

\ .... .:: :~ . 
Defendant ...,__. 

' ' i. ~-'._. E -i· \;:; ~ 
~~--·-~-~-----~~-A··---

--------
PLEA OF QUILTY/NO <;!ONTES'T - FELONY Court Number: SCD255523 

DA Nurnber.ADY526 . 

I, the defendant In tho above-entitled case, In support of my plea of Guilty/No Contest, personally declare as 
follows: 

~ 
·1. Of those charg'ls now fi 

~~=~ 
lied against me in this case, I plead GUil TY to the following If A. \<J 
enhancema_rits, allegations a_nij or!or convictions as follows: 
, _____ CH~RGE ENHANCEMENT/ALLEGA'TION ~.:::;;-

~-L 
' ~-

-LC3215 
PQ 550(b){3l 

---

I -PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATIOl'_I SO:CTJON, CONVICTION DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, A2'lD CHARGE) 

,_ _________ _ --- -?'::""' 
-

2. I hfl'te not bean inducqd to ant:r t:;is pie.a by any promise or representation of any kind, except: (State I\ k1' I 
D1stnct Atornay.) , "'----" any agm<iment wit/? the 

SJlali.t!aclrn:filll.:A:.:..fer.ieraLP!aa.agr.a\ill:fillLiru.:.aatLUu.mber 15CR232.~ 

--·-------
3. 1 am entering my plea freely and voluntarily, without fear or threat to me or anyone closely related to me. 

4. I understand that a plea of No Contest is the same as a plea of Guilty for all purposes. 

5. 1 am sober and my judgment is not impaired. I have not consumed any drug, alcohol or narcotic within 
the past 24 hours. 

CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS 

ea. I understand that I have the right to be represented by a lawyer at all stagfls of the proceedings. I can hlra my own ~ 
lawyer or the Court will appoint a lawyer for me If I cannot afford one. ®J 
I L(J)deratand that as to all chargoo, allegations and prior convictions flied against mo, and as to any facts that 
may be usud to lncrnase my sont<>nce, now or In th• futura, I also h_ave the following conirt!tutlonal rlglll!...w.lll2h 
I now glvo yp to enter my plea of guilty/no contost: · 

6b. I have the right to a ru;godv and public trlal by Iuiy. I now. give up this right, 

Sc. I have the rtght to l<SUlfr.Q.n\ ~nd cr9ss11xamlo11 all tho wltnauu against me. I now 
give up this r!ght. 

6d. I have Iha rlght to r;maln sl!eo\ (unless I choose to tasttly on my own behalf). 
I now give up this rlght. 

8e. I have the rtght to ar?!!ertt tvldonce In my behalf and to hava the court subpoena my 
witnesses at no cost to ma, I now give up this rl11ht. 
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. ----- j CASE NUMBER; 

'SCD255523 
!Defendant 
f.\laxander Kiev ManJnez ·-----=-"- ~'--------~·----__) 

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST 

'la, I understand tl1at I may receive this ma~imum punishment as a result of my pL 5y Brno years Imprisonment or 
Imprisonment plus a term of mandatory supervision;$ 60,000 fine; and years parole or post-release 
community supervision, with return to custody for every violation of a conditi tharaof, If I am not sentenced to 
Imprisonment, I may be 9ra11ted probation for a period up to 5 years or the maximum term of Imprisonment, 
whichever Is greater, As conditions of probation I may be given up to a year in Jail custody, plus Iha flne, and any 
other conditions deemed reasonable by the Court I understand that ii I violate any condition of probation I can ba 
sentenced to Imprisonment for the maximum tenm as stated above, 

7b, I understand tl1at I must pay a restitution fine ($200 - $10,000), that I will also be subject to a suspended fine Jn the ~· 
same amount, and that I must pay full restitution to all victims, , ~ 

7c, I unders 1at my convl n this case will >IQl;sfl'iolenl felori;::," 'ka') rasulUng in mandatQIY denial of ~ 
probat , sub antla craas enaltl , nd a tenm ~ri In any fel e, ~ 

7d, I understand tl1at If I am not a U,S, citizen, this plaa of Gullty/No Contest"""'! result In my removal/deportation, ' c..x.tt r®J 
exclusion from admission to the U,$, and denial of naturallzation. Additionally, If this plea Is to an "Aggravated . 
Felonf listed on tho back .of this fonm, then I will be deported, excluded from admission to the U,S,, and denied 
naturalization. · 

7e, I understand that my plea of Guilty or No Contest in this case could result in revocation of my probation, mandatory ~ 
supervision, parole or post-release supervision In other cases, and consecutive sentences. ~ 

7f, 

8. 

' 9. 

My attorney has axplalned to ma that other possible consequences of this plea may be: r:tfirh 
(Circle applicable consequences,) ~ 

(1) Consecutive sentancas 
(2) Loss of driving prlvilegaa 
(3) Commitment to Yot1th 

Autholity 
(4) LlfuUma reglstta~on as ar. 

arson I sax offender 
(5) Registration as a narcotic I 

gang offender 
(6) Cannot possess fireanns or 

ammunition 
(7) Blood test and saliva sample 
(8l_Pnorable ('r.cr>"-'·" 
. punishment re· '.·"'a 

offenses) 

(9) Pnson prior 
('I 0) Mandatory Imprisonment 
( 11) Mandatory State Prison 
(12) Presumptive Imprisonment 
('13) Presumptive State Prison 
("14) Sexually Violent Predator 

Law 
(15) Posslble/Ma" ·' .. y 

hormi:r - .upprasaion 
1~~ ... ,nent 

" , o 1 Reduced conduct/work 
credits 

a, Limited local credits 
(290/sarious/prior) 

b, Violent Felony (No credit 
or max. 15%) 

c, Prior Strlko(s) (No credit 
to max. 20%) 

d, Murdor on/a~~~ G;j,98 
(N0 -:..dolt) 

(17) L0ss of public assistance 
(18) AIDS education program 
(19) Other: ______ _ 

(Appeal Rights) I give up my right to appeal the followlng: 1) denial of my 1538,5 motion, 2) Issues related to strike ~ 
priors (under PC sactlons t>67(b)-(i) and 1170, 12), and 3) any sentence stipulated herein. 

(Ha1Vey Waiver) The sentencing judge may consider my prior cr1mlnal history and the entire factual background of , 
the case, Including any unfilad, dismissed or stricken charges or allegattons or cases when granting probation, 
ordering restiMion or Imposing sentence, 

10, (Blakely waiver) I underatand that as to any fact in aggravatton that may be used to Increase my santenca on any ~ 
count or allegation to the upper or maximum tenm provided by law, I have the constitutional rights listed In lW 
paragraphs 6b-6e. I now give up those rights and agree that the sentencing judge may determine the existence or 
non-existence of any fact In aggravarton, either at the lnltlal sentencing or at any future sentencing in the event my 

~~~~- @ 
11. (Cruz Waiver) Negotiated Disposition pursuant to PC 1192.5: I understand that If pending sentencing I am, • 

arrested for or commit another crime, violate any condition of my release, or wlllfully fall to appear for my probation 
Interview or my sentencing hearing, the sentence portion of this agreement will be cancelled, I will be sentenced 
uncondltlonally, and I wlll not be allowed to witl1draw my guilty/no contest plaa(s), 

12, (Arbucldo Waiver) I give up my right to be sentenced by the judge who accepts this plea, 

13, (Probation Report) I give up my rtght to a full probatlon report before sentencing. 

aoec CAM-017 (Rw. W~1) PLEA OF GUil TY/NO CONTEST • FELONY 



i Defendant: 
~exandar Klev l\-1ar~tn"'"e"'z __ _ 

I CASE NIJMBE~: 
SCD255523 

14. (Evfdenco Disposal Walv@r) I give up my Interest in all non-biological property/evidence Impounded during the ® 
investigatton of this case except _ and acknowledge that if I listed any property 
hara, I must also ftle a claim with the Impounding agency within 60 days after pronouncement of judgment or my 
ability to make a claim will expire, 

PLEA 

15. I now plead Guilty/No Contest and admit the. charges, canvictior.s and allegations described In paragraph #1, ~ 
above·. I adrntt that on the dates charged, I: (Describe facts ss to each charge and allegation) ~ 
flaasa saa "AttacilmllD!.A:.;..fad.arallJ!Jm..aQE9Cmeot ln..cafilLlll;mber 15CB282'1-BAS for factual b•sl 

Dated:---------

9U1:> 
Zip 

(Print Name) Court Interpreter 
PROSE I""'., vft".> STATEMENT 

(Signature) 

Tha People of the State of California, plaintiff, ~- · . at~":ney, the District Attorney for the County of San Diego, concurs with the 
dafendanfs p~a I Gu· /No Contest a• sat for<:_.~ve. ~~' ,f 

Dated: 7, ,,./(.1~;.J (fl l{.t_d {i '/ .;./~<--===-~-~ 
(Print Name) . Depu tricrAornay (Signature) 

COURT'S FINDING AND ORDER 
The Court, having quaatloned the defendant and defandant's altOmay concerning the defendanfs plea of Guilty/No Contest and 
admissions of the prior convictions and allegations, If any, finda that: The defendant understands and voluntarlly and lntaillgently 
waives his/her constitutional rights;. the defendanfs plea and admissions are freely and voluntartly made; the defendant 
understands the nature of the charges and the ccnaaquences of the pl~nd admissions; and there Is a factual basis for same. 
The Court accep s the defendant's plea akd ad ions, and the d M"\dan is convicted thereby. 

Dated: /L 
Judge of the Superior Court 
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AGGRAVATED FELONIES 

A."fY CONVICTION OF A NON--ClTTZEN FOR A."I "AGGRAVATED FELONY" AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C. 
110l(a)(43}, lYI.LL RESuLT IN REiVIOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF N..\TURALIZATION. 

a AGGRAVATED FELO!'HES" include, but are not Emi'.~.<l to, the following crimes filill any attempt or conspiracy to co=it 
such crimes, even if the conviction is a misdemeanor under state law'. [The only exc<;ption to the iipplicability of state 
misdemeanors is where the offense (ns listed below) specifically requires·~ conviction.] 

1. ~'IX CRIME QE.YlOL&'l/CE' 
(Includes any offense that bas aa an element the use, attempted use, or threatened use of physical force against the person or 
property of another, Qr im:dhl2llY offense that, by im nature, involves a substantial risk that physical force against the person 
or property of another may be used in. the course of committing the offense. (18 U,S.C. §I 6),) 

2. BURGLARY (Except vehicle or ve~sel unless u.<ect as a residence.) • 

3, CWLD PORNOGRAPHY OFFENSES 

4. CONIRQLLED SUBSTANCES: 
a) FELONY POSSESSIOl~ OF ANY CONTROLLED SliBSTA."ICE. 
b) MISDEM:EA."IOR POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED STJBSTAN'CE when the dcfenc!Jlnt has previously been 

convicted of w drug reillted offense. 
c) POSSESSION FOR SALE OF A!'iY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE 
d) SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SU1lSTA."ICE 
e) TRA.1'fSPORTA110N OF ANY CONTROLLEDSUBSTA."iCE 
I) MAS("''"l.CTUREJDISTRIBTTfJON OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTA}iCE A."ID CULTIVATION OF 

JVfARn-. .... ~.~ 
5. :EJ:..1-0NXD.U.1. (An),,,,:.'* 

6. FAILURE TO APPE/lILQN A EEL~ ... L~E. 

7. FORGER')'• 

8. [RAUD (Where Joss to victim or victim• exceeds $10,000.) 

9. MONEY L{}!.;TNDERINQ (H amount over $10,000.) 

10.~~~R 

11. j'E.RJURY/S(JBORNATION of Perjury or Bribery of a Witness• 

12. LlMl'Ri~ANDER!!iG/ill'.]'.R;\IlliG A PRQSTITUTION fillSOO~~ 

13.~ 

14. RECEIVING STOLEN PRO,fERTY • 

IS. ROBBERY • 

16. SEXJJAJ,.j\,BUS;E OF A l\ffiiOR (Touching is not required, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.) 

17. rn:rr (Any type or amount)• 

18. TRAFFICKING IN FJREAKHS A.'il) EXPLOSIVES. 

19. :rn.4Jl[!Cl(JNG DI VEHICLES wr:m ALTERED YINS• 

20. DEMN'ID FOR.QR.RE<;EJP'T OF' M~SOM 
•Where the terlll imposed is at lea9t one year, whether or not any or all of that term is stayed or smpendOd at the 
time of sentencing. 

PLEA OF GU!L TY/NO CONTEST· FELONY 



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255524 
Plaintiff, DA No. ADY528 

v. Al'vffiNDED 
INDICTMENT 

PHONG HUNG TRAN, 

dobOl/12/65; 

DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, 

dob06/07/67; 

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, 

dob 12/19/71; 

Defendants 

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY 

Defendant DNA Testing Requirements 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

TRAN, PHONG HUNG 

NGUYEN, DAVID CUONG MANH 

MARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEV 

DNA sample required upon conviction 

DNA sample required upon conviction 

DNA sample required upon conviction 

The Grand Jury of the County of SanDiego, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the County of 
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indicunent, the following crime(s): 

CHARGES 

COUNT 1 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about December 30, 2013, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDERKIEV MARTINEZ did offer, 
dcliver1 receive and accept a rebate1 refund 1 cornmission) preference, patronage) dividend 1 discount and other 
consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 2877 - $5,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. 
to Desert Oasis 1'herapy Center)) as corripensation or inclucen1ent for referring clients o~ patient to perform or obtain 
services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE 
SECTION 3215. 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about January 24, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, 
receive and accept a rebate, refund, cornrnission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration 
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 2876 - $5,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert 
Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducetnent for referring clients or patient to perfonn or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to tbe California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 3 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about March 3, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, 
receive and accept a rebate, refund, co1111nission, preference, patronage, divi<lend 1 discount and other consideration 
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 2942 - $3,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert 
Oasis Therapy Center), as co1npensation or induce1nent for i;eferring clients or patient to perforrn or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 4 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about May 2, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, 
receive and accept a rebate, refund, con1n1isSion, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration 
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3064 - $4,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert 
Oasis Therapy Center), as co1npensation or inducetnent for referring clients or patient to perfonn or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215 

COUNT 5 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about June 20, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, 
receive and accept a i:ebate, refund, co1nmisSion, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration 
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3133 - $5,500 from Coastline Medicai Clinic, Inc. to Desert 
Oasis 'rherapy Center), as cornpensation or inducen1cnt for referring clients or patient to perfonTI or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 6 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about July 18, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, 
receive and accept a rebate, refund, co1nn1ission, preference, patronage, dividend) discount and other consideration 
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3184 - $4,500 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert 
Oasis 1'herapy Center), as cotnpensation or inducement for referring ·clients or patient to perfortn or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about August 4, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, 
receive and accept a rebate, refund, cotnrnission, preference) patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration 
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no, 3247 - $5,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc, to Desert 
Oasis Therapy Center), as cotnpensation or inducement for referring clients or patient to perfonn or obtain services or 
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 8 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS /PATIENTS 

On or about September 13, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER K.IEV l\lARTINEZ did offer, 
deliver1 receive and accept a rebate, refund 1 co!Tln1ission, preference, patronage, dividend, djscount and other 
consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3331 - $4,500 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. 
to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patient to perform or obtain 
services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE 
SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 9 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about September 13, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, 
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3330 -
$2,000 from Coastline 1\ledical Clinic, Inc. to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation or inducement for 
referring clients or patient to perfonn or obtain se1vices or benefits pursuant to the California \'V'orkers' Compensation 
law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 10 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about November 20, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG MANH NGUYEN, and 
ALEXANDER KJEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, 
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3447 -
$3,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for 
referring clients or patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation 
law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 11 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about November 24, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, 
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3460 -
$4,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation or inducement for 
referring clients or patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation 
law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 12 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PA TIEN TS 

On or about December2, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANI-I NGUYEN, and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, 
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1059 -
$5,000 from /I.ID Pharma, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referring clients 
or patient to perfortn or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California \\/orkers' Cornpensation law, in. 
violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 13 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about January 8, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1249 - $5,000 from 

· Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or 
patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the CaHfornia \V'orkers' Cotnpensation la\V, in violation 
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 14 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about January 8, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or othw.vise (check no. 1250 - $4,000 from 
Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or 
patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California \'V'orkers' Cotnpensation law, in violation 
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 15 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about January 21, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVJD CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER 
I<IEV i\1AR1'INEZ did offer, deliver1 receive and accept a rebate, refund, co1nn1issioni preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3563 - $4,000 from 
Coastline !\-fedical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis 1'herapy Center), as cornpensation or inducein.ent for referring clients or 
patient to perfonn or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California \Vorkers' Con1pensation la\v, in violation 
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 16 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or aboutJanuary21, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no, 3564 - $3,500 from 
Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Crosby Sc1uare Chiropractic), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or 
patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California \Vorkers 1 Con1pensation la\v, in violation 
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 17 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about February 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, 
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1373 _ 
$4,000 from MD Pharma, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as c0tnpensation or inducement for referring clients 
or patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California \V'orkers' Compensation la\v, in 
violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. · 

COBNT 18 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about February 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and 
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, 
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1374 -
$4,500 from MD Pharma, Inc. to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or 
pa.tient to perfonn or obtain services or .benefits pursuant to the California \V'orkers' .Con1pensadon la\V

1 
in violation 

of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 19 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about April 22, 2015, DAVID CU ONG l\IANH NGUYEN did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, 
refund, con1mission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration \Vhether in the form of mOney 
or other\vise, as con1pensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perforrn or obtain services or benefits 
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 20 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about April 28, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, Dt\VID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1383 - $7,500 from 
MD Pharma, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patient to 

perform or. obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 21 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING 
CLIENTS/PATIENTS 

On or about April 28, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG l\IANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER 
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, 
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1381 - $8,000 from 
MD Pharma, Inc. to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patient to 
perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR 
CODE SECTION 3215. 

COUNT 22 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Amtrust North America 
Insurance - prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PCSSO(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 23 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 20·1s, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occui:rence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly f~ji to disclose the 
occurrence oC an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insi1rarice benefit and 
payn1ent, and the a1nount of a benefit and paytnent to \vhich the person \Vas entitled (Berkshire Hatha\VflY Insurance -
prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG Mr\NH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 24 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
i\!ANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV i\lARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlc1nent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ESIS Insurance - prescription 
drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG i\!ANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 25 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 'JS, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlc1nent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett lnsurance­
prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).· 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 26 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occutt'ence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (fhe Hartford Insurance -
prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And ids further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DA V1D CU ONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 27 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
JvL\NH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (!CW Insurance - prescription 
drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 28 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
l\.!ANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Llberty Mutual Insurance -
prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PCSSO(a), case number C99214'19, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 29 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18', 20'14 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
l\!ANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entJtlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Meadowbrooldnsurance -
prescription drng benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CU ONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PCSSO(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(e). 

COUNT 30 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
lvlANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence 0£

1 
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitletnent to an insurance benefit and 

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Insurance -
prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, D1\ VID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PCS SO( a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 31 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the. 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance 
Fund - prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PCSSO(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(e). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 32 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANI-I NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV J\1AR'I1NEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occut-rence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Tris tar Insurance - prescription 
drug benefits), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANI-I 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(e). 

COUNT 33 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
J\!ANJ-I NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV J\JARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of) an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich Insurance - prescription 
drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANI-I 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PCSSO(a), case number C9921419, Santa Ciara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(e). 

COUNT 34 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
MANI-I NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV J\JARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person,s initial and continued right and entitlcn1ent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Am trust North America 
Insurance- toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION .550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG J\JANJ-l 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PCSSO(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECI10N SSO(e). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 35 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affecte~l a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Berkshire Hathaway Insurance -
toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION SSO(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation l'C550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 36 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANI-I NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ESIS Insurance- toxicology 
screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 5SO(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CU ONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 37 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of1 an event that affected a person's inidal and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Insurance -
toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 5SO(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), ease number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECfION 550(e). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 38 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 20'15, PHONG 1-IUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANI-I NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV J\[A.RTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith ·another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and endtlernent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (rhe Hartford Insurance -
toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG J\[A.Nl-I 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa c:tara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECI'ION SSO(e). 

COUNT 39 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG J-Il.JNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fall to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event tbat affected a person)s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Liberty Mutual Insurance -
toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANI-I 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 40 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, P~IONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CU ONG 
MANI-I NGUYEN, and ALEXr\NDER KIEV Mi\RTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of1 and kno\vingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitletnent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance 
Fund - toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CU ONG MAN H 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation P.C550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 41 - lNSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV i\[ARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vi th another person to conceal and kno\vlngly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued tight and entitlement .to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich Insurance - toxicology 
screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CU ONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 42 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlernent to an insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and paytnent to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Insurance -
compound cream prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3), 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense; the defendant, DAVID CU ONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 43 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence o( an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitletnent to Hn insurance benefit and 
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Meadowbrook Insurance -
compound cream prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of th.e above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 
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CHARGES (cont'd) 

COUNT 44 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUQNG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and kno\vingly assist and conspire \Vith another person to conceal and kno\vingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and 
payment) and the amount of a benefit and pflyn1ent to \vhich the person \Vas entitled (State Con1pensation Insurance 
Fund - compound cream prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CU ONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C992 I 419, Santa c:Iarn 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). 

COUNT 45 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM 

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG 
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose 
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the 
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitle1nent to an insurance benefit and 
p~1y1nent1 and the a1nount of a benefit and payn1ent to which the person \Vas entitled (Zurich Insurance- co1npound 
cream prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). 

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH 
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara 
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECI'ION 550(e). 

THIS INDICTMENT, NUl'vIBERED SCD255524, CONSISTS OF 45 COUNTS. 

"A TRUE BILL" Bonnie M. Duinai1is 
Distdct ,-\tturncy, Count\' of San Diego, State l.lf California 

Foren1an of the Grand jury Deputy District .Attorney 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

PEOPLE vs Alexander Kiev Martln"'"'"'z'--------- Defendant 

' 

PLEA OF GUILTYiN_;, CC'.'!TF.,;: - FO:LONY I CourtNcmbor:SCD25.::5::.52::.4:__ _____ -J 

~--------·----.-~---~ -----~---~-DA_N_um_o_oc_.A_D~Y.;...;_52;:;.:_8 _______ ___J 

I, the defendant In the above-entitled case, In supp or! of my plea of Gullty!No Contest, personally declare as 
follows: 

,r:-, 
, ,e \n this casF.i, I plead Gi .. r: ... T'(_. 
~s. allegations and prior convict.c...;: a~ fgilows: 

1. Of those cha:·ges r.ow n:ed agair.s'. ,~ 
offt>r'ses and addt tre anrancarnei-

to the follow'ng I ·-;p fVl 
... 

COUNT I . . . 

12 T-
'2 

I 
-----

CHARGE ---===f= ,:, . .-iA.'iCE~~ENT/ALLEGATION 
Ir- 3?·!5 

Pc-;so(;1(3} r 
I 

____ 

I 
~~-· 

-·------1--· ~----
-------

-
PRIORS: (LIST ALLEG1\Tt?N S~CT N'/!CT:ON DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE) 

--
--

;;ilea ";Jy a,...,y promlse or representation of a:iy·kind 1 except: (State ('. r'l/l ' 2. I havs not teen lr.ducad to enter tr.ls 
any agreement with the District Attar , , ) '!i'9'1. 

SF&~bme.r:.t ''A'" · feCe.t:l~J:il.e..a_,ac;.·,ae::::a.c.~ 1;~ sa .8.ilt".:i.'1e.r-15t;g?g? i -~--- ---------

3. I am entering n1y p!sia frseiy a:1d v:;fur.tarHy, wi~.'iOIJt fa.sir· or threat to me o. anyore closely related to nie:. 

4. I understand tnat a plsa of No Cor'.•.es'. is the sa;r.e as a plea of Guilty for ail purposes. 

5. I am sober and my judgt'1ent is r.ot im~airec. I r,a·1e not cons·,1med an/ drug, alcohol or narcotic witi1in 
the past 24 hours. 

CONSTITUTIONAL FUOHTS 

6a. I understand that I have tha right to be rs presented by a lawyer at all stages of the proceedings. I can hire my own ~ 
lawyer or the Cour1 will appoint a lawyer for rna if I cannot afford one. l\dilJ!l' 
Lim.s;l11ratqnd that as to all chargoa, allagatlons and prlor convictions Iliad against me, and as to any facts that 
may bu used to lncreasa my sentonca, now or In !ha future, I also have the following con1tlt1,1\foniil rlqh.£1. whlcfl 
I now qty, yp to enter my plea of guilty/no contest: 

Sb. I have the right to a sp9edy png public trial l>Y IY!Y· I now give up U1ls right. 

Be. I have the rtght to !fQnfro!Ji!nd cross-examine all the wltnHH! against me, I now 
give up this right. 

6d. I have the right to rDmatn alien! (unless I choose to testify on my own behalf). 
I now give up th!& right-

6e. I have the right to present avlgGnco In my behalf and to have the court subpoena my 
will1esses at no cost to ma. I now give up this rlght. 

::iosc C~12 ('fUIY. W' 1) PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST· FELONY 



--------· ----··-------··----
!Defendant 
f\11exandi:tr !<isv lvl.:i:rt!naz 

----~-------

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST 

7a. I understand that I may racaive this maximum punishment as a rssult of my plea: 5y 8mo years imprisonment or ~ 
Imprisonment plus a term of mandatory aup0r1ision; $§0.000 _ flne: and ~years parole or post-release ~ 

7b. 

7c. 

Id. 

community supe1visio11, w!tli return to custody for every violation ol a condition tharnof. If I am not sentenced to 
Imprisonment, I may be gra:ited probation for a period up to 5 years or the maximum term of Imprisonment, 
which aver Is greater. As conditions of pr::ibatlon I may be given up to a year In jail custody, plus tM fine. and any 
other conditions deamad reasonable by the Court. I understand that if I violate any condition of probation I can be 
sentenced to Imprisonment for t~.o maximum term as stated above. · 

?a. I understand that my plea of Guil';y or No Contest in tr.is '}l!Sa could resutt In revocation of my probation, manrJatory 
supervision, parole or pest-release supe,vision in other cases, ar:d consecutive sentancas. 

7f. My attorney has explained to ma that other pcsst:i:a consequences of ~Is plea may be: 
(Circle applicable consaquancas.) 

(1) Consecutive ser:te1~ces 
(2) Loss of driving privileges 
(3) Commitment to Youth 

Authority 
(4) Lifetime registration as an 

arson I sax of.01'.der 
(5) Registration Ma narcotic I 

gang oifander 
(6) Cannot possess fi1"arms or 

ammunition 
(7) Blood test and saliva sampie 
(8) Priorable (Increased 

punishment for Mura 
offenses) 

(9) PriS<.}l'l prier 
('IC) Mardator/ imprisonment 
(11) Mardatory Stata Prison 
(12) Presumptiv~ Imprisonment 
(13) Presumptive State Prison 
('14) SM'Ja!ly Violent Predator 

Law 
(15) i"ossible/Mandatorf 

hormona suppression 
traatmant 

(16) Reduced conduct/work 
credits 

a. Limited local credits 
(290/sertous/prtor) 

b. Violent Felony (No credit 
or max. 15%) 

c. Prior Strtka(s) (No credit 
to max. 20%) 

d. Murder on/after 6/3/98 
(No crad~) 

(17) Loss of public asalstanca 
(18) AIDS education program 
(19) Other: 

8. (Appeal Right>!) I give up my right to appeal the followirg: 1) denial of my 1538.5 motion, 2) Issues related to strike 
priors (under PC sections 667(h)·(i) and 1170.12), and 3i any sentence stipulated herein. 

9. (HarveyWalvor) The sentencing judge may consider my pr!or crtmlnal history and the ontlre Factual backgrow1d of 
the case, Including any unfflad, dismissed or stricken charges or allegations or cases when granting probation, L;lp;~,; 
ordering restitution or Imposing sentence. 

10. (B/11/re/ywalver) I understand that as to any fact In aggravation that may be used to Increase my sentence on any ~ 
count or allegation to the upper or maximum term provided by law, I have the constitutional rtghts fisted In L,WP 
paragraphs 8b-6e. 1 now give up those rights and agree that lhe sentencing judge may determine tha existence or 
non-exlstenca of any fact In aggravation, aithec at the initial sentencing or at any future sentencing in the event my 

~~~~- ~ 
11. (Cruz Waiver) Negotla\00 Disposition pursuant to PC 1192.5: I understand that if pending sentencing I am 

arrested for or commit another crime, violate any (,'OndiUon of my release, or willfully fail to appear for my proba~on · 
Interview or my sentencing heartr1g, the sentence portlon of this agreement will be cancelled. I will be sentenced 
uncondmonally, and I will not be allowed to withdraw my guilty/no contest plea(s). 

12. (Arbuckle Walvar) I give up my rtght to be santarced by the judge who accepts this plea. 

13. (Probation Report) I give up my right to a full probation report before sentencing. 
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1 uefendant: ---------------··-----------------icA_S_E_N_u;.-m--.,-R-: --·---·-· 

~exsr.dor !<lev f\rlartir?I ----·------ lsco2~5~:._~)·~~--- ·--- __ _j 

14. (Evldonco Dlsposal Walvar) I glva up rny lnters»t in ail non·blo!cglcal pi-operty/0vld1;nca Impounded during the ~ 
investigation of this casa except and acknowledge that if I listad any property ~ 
hare, I must also file a clalrn with the Impounding agency w~hir. 60 days after pronouncement of judgment or my 
ability to rnaka • claim w111 axplra. 

PLEA 

15. I now plead Guilty/No Contest and admit tl'a charga$, convictions and allegations described in paragraph #1, ~ 
above. I admit Iii.at on the dates charged, I: (Descnbe mets as to aach charge and allagation) ~ 
elllase oaa Altlicilll'.ent:'.A~r.alaJ!.ltUi~.11.u:llil!lc BCR2321-BAS for [aciyal b••is 

1'\. I declare under penalty of perjury trat I ha·19 read. understcod, a 
attached addendum, a.1d f.rrerytning on the form and any a::a r· 

fern above and any ~ 
' 1ue and correct. ~ 

Dated: t.i I I k \ l.b__ Defend11nt's Signature 

Defendant's Address: _J~r1q ~t.ci)o..iw'.c.L.L_ Ai n:: 
· Straat _n_fu:.k:Q__ ____ ---r;;,...,~t-"--

city. "mte 
Telephone Number: { 'j•n.1~.:.-':i~.-·--------

~~). 
Zip 

Def•J11dant's Right Thumb Print 
ATiORNEY'S STATEMENT --

1, thtl attorney for the dal'enda1cl In t~1e •>bov<r·il-"t:t:0d msa. e•)rsoraliy /'\lad and 9Xplaired to the dafendant the entlra conionts of 
tl'is plea fonn anrJ any adcendum themt i dis101;ssed ail r.t.argas aM possible defenses2ith th jjafendant, and the 
conseq1;enc..-as of this p!eia, including a:1y !mrnlg.~~lon ccr.seeji..;ances. l persar,ally observed tha,~def. , ant1tfl In and initial eact1 
itsrn, or read and initial 0ach itarn to acKncw!edge h,a/t sr 1mcerst1rndlng ar.d waivers. I obe!JJ"le<fl .e defendant date and sign this 

form and zy r~:1rr~ concur in the defaj6. ant's ploCi·. nd wt'vor of C(~t~ri!Jfits. 
Dated: • ~·n-4-/"' 6' -L-~";'7--

- · (Pr1rt Name;- ... A1t..itfiiY'"'10-r"'o"'~"'-n-d""a-nt--~----~-~,, nature) 
/(Circle ona:_J;!B' I APD I 0 " E.0)-" 

INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT @t Apa.ll<iei)'le) - · 
I, the sworn . language Interpreter In this prCcll!l"dlng, truly translated for the defendant the antire 
contents of this form and any attached add;indum. Tha tfafondant Indicated understanding of the contents of this ronn and any 
acldandum and then Initialed and signed the form and any addendum. 

Dated:_ 
(Print Nama) Court lntarpratar 

PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT 
(Signature) 

Tha People of tha St<1ta of Callfomia, plaintiff, by Its at!ornay, t~s District Ntomay for tl1a County of San Diego, concurs with tl1e 
defendanfs plea ol/ Gullty'No Contest aa sot forth above. 

Dated: l.f f1 / ( ( _.:liiLd_fl!f l f (I rf J_ _____ _ 
(Print Name) (Signature) 

COURT'S FINDING AND 0 DER 
The Court, having quastfoned the defendant and d~fandant'~ attomay concerning the defendant's plea of Guilty/No Contest and 
admissions of the prtor cc;nvi~iions and allegations, If any, finds that Tha defendant understands and vol.untarlly and Intelligently 
waives his/her constttvt!onal rtghts; the defendanfs plea and admissions are freely and voluntarily made; the defendant 
understands tlia nature of the charges ard the cons~n('.es of the plea and admissions; and thare is a factual basis for same. 
The Court accepts the defendant's plea and adrnissi :a, and lhe defondant Is lcted th,sraby. 

Da!ed:~-i~ .. 
Judge of the Superior Court 
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AGGRAVATED F.ELOl.VlES 

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CITIZEN FOR A~i "ACCRA VA TED FELONY" AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C. 
H01(a)(43}, 1YI!.J. RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, k'ID DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION. 

"AGGRAVATED FELONIES" include, but are not limited to, the foUowing crimes and any attempt or conspiracy to commit 
surli crimes, even if the conviction is a misdemeanor under state law: [The only exception to the applicability of state 
misdeme!lllora is where the offense (as listed below) speciffou.Uy requires a~ conviction.] 

1. ANY CRIME OF VJOLENCE;* 
(includes any offense that has as a.~ element the use, attempted use, or threatened use of physical force against the person or 
property of 1u1other, Qr !lllY AfQID'. offense that, by its uamrn, involves a suhst.antia! risk !hat physical force against the person 
or property of another roay be used in the course of committing the offeMe. (18 U.S.C. § 16).) 

1. BURGLARY (Except vehicle or veuel unhm used as a residence.) • 

3. CHILD j>OR.'IOG,BAPHY OFFENSE;i 

.;, . CONTROf,J,EQ..StIBST ANC:ES~ 
a) FEI,ONY POSSESSION OF Al'iY CONTROLLED SUBSTA.I•fCE. 
b) lVllSDEMEANOR POSS.ESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTA~ICE when the defendant bM previously been 

eon11lcred of any drug related offen•e. 
c) POSSESSION FOR SALE OF A.'fY COl'ffROLLED SUBSTANCE 
d) SAU~ OF Ai.'iY CONTROLLED SU1lSTANCE 
e} TRANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUllSTANCE 
I} MAN1JFACTU'REIDTSTR1llll10N OF 11...'IY CONTROLLED SlIBSTANCE AND CULTIVATION OF 

MARIJUANA 

5. FELONY D.UJ. (Any type.)* 

6, FAJI.u"'RE TO A_f P~.~ON A,F'l!;I.Ql'i'Y c~~J1; 

~. FQRGERY* 

8. fRAU;Q, (Wbe;·e lo" to vtctlm or victim~ ex<e01<fa $10,000.) 

9. ~'H2Nll'.Y LAUNDERING: (If amount aver $10,000.) 

10.MV@E!! 

11, PI!.RJ!)RY/SUJ;Olli'IATION of Perjury or Bribery of a Witness• 

12. ~IG/PANDEfilt{fil,Qfl,j:RAIJi'lG.JU'E.9JmI.!L.l.lQNl!~ 

13. RAPE 

1•1. RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY* 

15. ROBBERY .. 

16. SF:X:UAL All.mm OF A ML.'IOR (Toucb.lng is not requlrerJ, e.g.: Indecent Exposm·e.) 

17. THEFT (Any type or amouut)' 

18. Tl.t'\FF'ICKING IN FillEARM'S AND EXPLOSIVES. 

19. TI<AFFICKING IN Y.fillJCLES WITH ALTERED YINS'' 

itl. DEMAND FQg OR RECEIPT OF RAJ'ISOM 
•Where the term Imposed Is at least one year, whether or not any or all of th•! term ls stayed or suspended at the 
time or sentencing. 
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SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF fALIFORNIA 

June 2014 Grand Jury 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

RONALD GRUSD ( 1) ' 
GONZALO PAREDES ( 2) , 
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ ( 3) ' 
RUBEN MARTINEZ ( 4) ' 
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK 

MEDICAL GROUP ( 5) ' 
WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY 
LINE OF SIGHT, INC. ( 7) ' 
DESERT BLUE MOON ( 8) ' 

Defendants. 

( 6)' 

Case No. ·15 CR 282 J, BAS 
INDICTMENT 'l ---r----- ~ 
Title ·18, u.s.c., Sec. 371 -
Conspiracy to Commit Honest 
Services Mail Fraud, Mail Fraud 
and Violate Travel Act; Title 18, 
u.s.c., Secs. 1341 and 1346 -
Honest Services Mail Fraud; 
Title 18, U.S.C., 
Sec. 1952 (a) (1) (A) and (a) (3) (A) -
Travel Act; Title 18, U.S.C., 
Sec. 2 - Aiding and Abetting; 
Title 18, U.S.C., 
Sec. 981 (a) (1) (C), and Title 28, 
u.s.c., Sec. 2461(c) - Criminal 

20 ''-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~Forfeiture 

21 The Grand Jury charges, at all times relevant: 

22 INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS 

23 THE DEFENDANTS AND OTHER PARTICIPANTS 

24 1. Defendant RONALD GRUSD ( "GRUSD") was a physician who had 

25 been licensed by the State of California since 1987. Defendant 

26 GRUSD' s primary area of practice was radiology, and he was certified 

27 by the American Board of Radiology in Diagnostic and Nuclear 

28 Radiology. Defendant GRUSD was an officer of several entities, 

VHC:CPH:FAS: (2)nlv:San Diego 
11/5/15 



1 

2 

including defendants 

WILLOWS CONSULTING 

CALIFORNIA IMAGING 

COMPANY, and Oaks 

NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP and 

Diagnostics and Advanced 

3 Radiology. 

4 2. Defendant GONZALO PAREDES ("PAREDES") was an administrator 

5 

6 

7 

8 

for several of defendant GRUSD's entities, 

CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP and 

COMPANY, and Advanced Radiology. 

3. Defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ worke.d 

including defendants 

WILLOWS CONSULTING 

as a marketer and 

9 administrator on behalf of Dr. A, a licensed chiropractor with three 

10 clinics in the Southern District of California. Defendant ALEXANDER 

11 MARTINEZ owne.d and operated defendant LINE OF SIGHT, INC., a 

12 professional corporation incorporated in Nevada whose principal place 

13 of business was in Calexico, California. 

14 

'15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

4. Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ worked as a marketer for Dr. A, 

soliciting patients for treatment at Dr. A's clinic in Calexico, 

California. Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ owned and operated defendant 

DESERT BLUE MOON, a professional corporation incorporated in Nevada. 

5. Defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP 

("CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK") was a California Corporation formed in 

20 August 2007, which listed on its website locations in Los Angeles, 

21 Beverly Hills, San Diego, Fresno, Rialto, Santa Ana, Studio City, 

22 

23 

Bakersfield, Calexico, 

Visalia. According 

East Los Angeles, Lancaster, Victorville and 

to its website, defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING 

24 NETWORK' s principal business address was 8 641 Wilshire Blvd., Ste, 

25 105, Beverly Hills, California. Among the various services defendant 

26 CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK offered were diagnostic imaging services 

27 and "Extracorporeal Shockwave Therapy." Defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING 

28 NETWORK listed defendant GRUSD as its chief executive officer, chief 

2 



1 financial officer, secretary and only director. Defendant GRUSD was 

2 also the signatory on defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK'S bank 

3 accounts. 

4 6. Defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY ("WILLOWS CONSULTING") 

5 was a California corporation, formed in June 2011, which listed 8641 

6 Wilshire Blvd., Ste. 105, Beverly Hills, California as its principal 

7 business address. Defendant GRUSD was listed as its president and the 

s only signatory on defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING's bank accounts. 

9 7. Defendant LINE OF SIGHT, INC., a Nevada Corporation formed 

10 in October 2010, listed defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ as a director. 

11 Defendant LINE OF SIGHT' s principal place of business was in Calexico, 

12 California, and defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ was the only authorized 

13 signatory on ·defendant LINF OF SIGHT'S bank accounts. 

14 8. Defendant DESERT BLUE MOON, a Nevada Corporation formed in 

15 August 2001, listed defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ as a director. Defendant 

16 RUBEN MARTINEZ was the only authorized signatory on DESERT BLUE MOON'S 

1 7 bank accounts. 

18 9. The Oaks Diagnostics, a California corporation formed in 

19 1989 and doing business as Advanced Radiology, listed 8641 Wilshire 

20 Blvd., Ste. 105, Beverly Hills, California as its principal business 

21 address. Advanced Radiology provided Shockwave, nerve conduction 

22 velocity and electromyography testing and diagnostic imaging services. 

23 Advanced Radiology listed defendant GRUSD as its president. Defendant 

24 GRUSD was ·the only authorized signatory on Advanced Radiology's bank 

25 accounts. 

26 10. Dr. A was a chiropractor licensed to practice in California, 

27 who operated three clinics specializing in chiropractic medicine. 

28 

3 



1 

2 

11. Physicians, including medical 

owed a fiduciary duty to their patients, 

doctors and chiropractors, 

requiring physicians to act 

3 in their patients' best interests, and not for th~ir own professional, 

4 pecuniary, or personal gain. Physicians owed a duty of honest 

5 services to their patients for decisions made relating to the care of 

6 those patients, including the informed choice as to whether to undergo 

7 ancillary medical procedures and, if so, an informed choice ·as to the 

8 providers of such ancillary medical procedures. 

9 12. Defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT 

10 and DESERT BLUE MOON worked with and on behalf of Dr. A in the 

11 referral of workers' compensation patients for ancillary medical 

12 procedures. 

13 

14 13. The 

CALIFORHIA WORKERS' COMPENSATION PROGRAM 

California Workers' Compensation System ( "CWCS") 

15 required that employers in California provide workers' compensation 

16 benefits to their employees for qualifying injuries sustained in the 

1 7 course of their employment. Under the ewes, all claim.s for payments 

18 for services or benefits provided to the injured employee, including 

19 medical and legal fees, were billed directly to, and paid by, the 

20 insurer. Most unpaid claims for payment were permitted to be filed as 

21 liens against the employee's workers' compensation claim, which accrue 

22 interest until paid in an amount ordered by the Workers' Compensation 

23 Appeals Board or an amount negotiated between the insurer and the 

24 service or benefits provider. The ewes was regulated by the 

25 California Labor Code, the California Insurance Code, and the 

26 California Code of Regulations, and was administered by the California 

27 Department of Industrial Relations. 

28 
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1 

2 or 

14. ewes benefits were administered by the employer, an insurer, 

a third party administrator. The ewes required claims 

3 administrators to authorize and pay for medical care that was 

4 "reasonably required to cure or relieve the injured worker from the 

s effects of his or her injury," and includes medical, surgical, 

6 chiropractic, acupuncture, and hospital treatment. 

7 15. California law, including but not limited to the California 

8 Business and Professions Code, the California Insurance Code, and the 

9 California Labor Code, prohibited the offering, delivering, 

10 soliciting, or receiving of anything of value in return for referring 

11 a patient for ancillary medical procedures. 

12 ANCILLARY MEDICAL PROCEDURES 

13 16. · .. Extracorporeal Shockwave Therapy ( "shockwave") as used by 

14 defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Radiology was a treatment modality that used low energy sound waves to 

initiate tissue repair of musculoskeletal conditions. The treatment 

was not a surgical procedure and patients were not placed under 

anesthesia. Shockwave had been approved by the Federal Drug 

Administration only for the treatment of chronic lateral epicondylitis 

(tennis elbow) for which the symptoms were unresponsive to standard 

therapy for more than six months. 

22 17. Nerve condu,ction velocity ( "NCV") was a test employed in 

23 electrodiagnostic medicine to see how · fast electrical signals move 

24 through a nerve and was used to diagnose nerve injury or damage. 

25 18. Electromyography ( "EMG") was a test employed in 

26 electrodiagnostic medicine to evaluate and record the electrical 

27 activity produced by skeletal muscles and was used to diagnose nerve 

28 
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1 injury or damage; an EMG was ofte·n performed in conjunction with NCV 

2 testing. 

3 19. Diagnostic imaging services include magnetic resonance 

4 imaging ("MRI") . 

5 

6 

7 20. 

Count 1 
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT HONEST SERVICES MAIL FRAUD 

AND VIOLATE THE TRAVEL ACT, 18 USC § 371 

Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are realleged and 

8 incorporated by reference. 

9 21.· Beginning on a date unknown and continuing through at least 

10 August 2015, within the Southern District of California and elsewhere, 

11 defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

12 MARTINEZ, CALIF.ORN IA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING 

13 COMPANY, LINE OF .SIGHT, INC. , DESERT BLUE MOON, and others known and 

14 unknown did knowingly and intentionally conspire with each other to: 

15 a. commit Honest Services Mail Fraud, that is, knowingly and 

16 with the intent to defraud, devise and participate in a material 

17 scheme to defraud and to deprive patients of the intangible right to 

18 Dr. A's honest services, and cause mailings in furtherance of the 

19 scheme, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 

20 and 1346; 

21 b. commit Mail Fraud, that is, knowingly and with the intent to 

22 defraud, devise a material scheme to defraud, and to obtain money and 

23 property, by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, 

24 representations, promises, and omissions and concealments of material 

25 facts, and cause mailings in furtherance of the scheme, in violation 

26 of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341; and 

27 

28 

6 



1 c. use and cause to be used facilities in interstate commerce 

2 with intent to promote, manage, establish, carry on, distribute the 

3 proceeds of, and facilitate the promotion, management, establishment, 

4 carrying on, and distribution of the proceeds of an unlawful activity, 

5 that is, bribery in violation of California Labor Code Sections 139.3, 

6 139.32, and 3215, California Business and Professions Code 

7 Section 650, and California Insurance Code Section 750 and, 

8 thereafter, to promote and attempt to perform acts to promote, manage, 

9 establish, carry on, distribute the proceeds of, and facilitate the 

10 promotion, management, establishment, carrying on, and distribution of 

11 the proceeds of such unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, 

12 United States Code, Section 1952 (a} (1) (A) and (a) (3) (A}. 

13 FRAUDULENT PURPOSE 

14 22. It was a purpo'se of the conspiracy to fraudulently obtain 

15 money from ewes insurers by submitting claims for ancillary procedures 

16 that were secured through a pat.tern of bribes to Dr. A, and to those 

1 7 acting with him and on his behalf, in exchange for the referral of 

18 patients to particular providers of ancillary medical procedures, in 

19 

20 

violation of Dr. A's fiduciary duty to his patients, 

from insurers the bribes that rendered the claims 

21 California law. 

22 MANNER AND MEANS 

and concealing 

unpayable under 

23 23. The conspirators used the following manner and means in 

24 pursuit of their fraudulent purpose: 

25 a. It was a part of the conspiracy that defendants GRUSD, 

26 PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING, knowing 

27 that the payment of per-patient referral fees was unlawful, offered to 

28 pay bribes to Dr. A, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT 

7 



1 and DESERT BLUE MOON in order to influence the referral of Dr. A's 

2 workers' compensation patients to defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK 

3 and other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and PAREDES. 

4 b. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

5 ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT BLUE 

6 MOON agreed to accept per-patient referral fees from defendants GRUSD, 

7 PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others - -

8 either directly or indirectly - in exchange for the referral of Dr. 

9 A's workers' compensatioll. patients to defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING 

10 NETWORK and other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and PAREDES. 

11 c. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

12 ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON 

13 and others a;r-ranged to have defendants GRUSD, P.'\REDES, CALIFORNIA 

14 IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others conduct ancillary 

15 medical procedures on Dr. A's workers' compensation patients in 

16 exchange for unlawful per-patient referral fees. 

17 d. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

18 concealed from patients, and intended to cause Dr. A to conceal from 

19 patients, the bribe payments Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, 

20 RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, AND DESERT BLUE MOON received from 

21 defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS 

22 CONSULTING in exchange for referring patients for ancillary medical 

23 procedures, in violation of Dr. A's fiduciary duty to Dr. A's patients 

24 and in violation of the California Labor Code. 

25 e. It was a further part of the conspiracy that proceeds from 

26 insurance claims paid to defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK were 

27 funneled through bank accounts by defendants GRUSD and PAREDES to a 

28 bank account in the name of defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING, which 

8 



1 supplied the kickback payments to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

2 MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON and others. 

3 f. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

4 GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING, 

5 ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON 

6 and others obscured the true nature of their financial relationships 

7 in order to conceal their corrupt bribe payments for patient 

s referrals. 

9 g. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

10 PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ discussed via telephone 

11 

12 

calls, emails, 

patients who 

and in-person meetings the 

had been corruptly referred 

workers' compensation 

for ancillary medical 

13 procedures to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK in 

14 exchange for kickbacks. 

15 

16 

h. 

GRUSD, 

It was 

PAREDES, 

a further part of 

ALEXANDER MARTINEZ 

the conspiracy that defendants 

and RUBEN MARTINEZ utilized 

17 interstate facilities, including cellular telephones and email, 'in 

18 order to coordinate the referral of patients for ancillary medical 

19 procedures, knowing that such referrals were predicated on unlawful' 

20 per-patient kickback payments. 

21 i. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

22 ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ falsely labeled correspondence 

23 concerning lists of workers' compensation patients who had been 

24 corruptly referred for ancillary medical procedures as pertaining to 

25 "marketing hours" and similarly misleading phrases. 

2 6 j . It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

27 GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

2 s falsely characterized the bribes to Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER 

9 



1 MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT BLUE MOON as 

2 payments for "professional services," when in fact the corrupt 

3 payments were made exclusively for the referral of patients for 

4 ancillary medical procedures. 

5 k. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

6 GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

7 used the mails to send bribes to Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER 

8 MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON, in exchange 

9 for the referral of Dr. A's patients for ancillary medical procedures. 

10 1. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

11 GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

12 used the mails to send bills to insurers for services provided to 

13 pC<tients they had procured by paying bribes to Dr. A and other 

14 conspirators. 

15 m. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

16 GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and 

17 others acting on their behalf concealed from insurers and patients the 

18 material fact of the kickback arrangements, which were in violation of 

19 California state law, that, led to the referrals. 

20 n. Using the manners and means described above, defendants 

21 GRUSD, PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING 

22 NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING, LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT BLUE MOON 

23 submitted and caused to be submitted claims in excess of $1 million 

24 for ancillary medical procedures procured through the payment of 

25 bribes. 

26 // 

27 // 

28 // 
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OVERT ACTS 1 

2 24. In furtherance of the conspiracy and in order to effect the 

3 objects thereof, 

4 following overt 

5 elsewhere: 

the defendants and other co- conspirators caused the 

acts in the Southern District of California and 

6 a. On or about November 7, 2014, defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ 

7 emailed defendant PAREDES a list of patients that had been referred to 

8 defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, . CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced 

9 Radiology for ancillary medical procedures. 

10 b. On or about November 7, 2014, in consideration for the 

11 referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

12 caused a bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF 

13 SIGHT acting on behalf of Dr. A. 

14 c. On or about November 25, 2014, defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ 

15 emailed defendant PAREDES a list of patients that had been referred to 

16 defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced 

17 Radiology for ancillary medical procedures. 

18 d. On or about December 3, 2014, in consideration for the 

19 referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

20 caused a bribe to be paid to defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE 

21 MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A. 

22 e. on or about December 15, 2014, in consideration for the 

23 referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

24 caused a bribe to be paid to defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE 

25 MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A. 

26 f. on or about December 17, 2014, in consideration for the 

27 referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

28 
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1 caused a bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF 

2 SIGHT acting on behalf of Dr. A. 

3 g. On or about December 17, 2014, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ 

4 and RUBEN MARTINEZ exchanged emails in an effort to reconcile the 

5 lists of Dr. A's patients referred for ancillary medical procedures 

6 and the bribes that had been paid and were due and owing from various 

7 providers, including defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING 

8 NETWORK and WILLOWS CONSULTING. 

9 h. On or about January 12, 2015, defendants RUBEN MART.INEZ and 

10 DESERT BLUE MOON caused payments to be made to Dr. A and defendant 

11 ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, which represented a portion of bribe payments 

12 received from various providers, including defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, 

13 CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS CONSULTING, while acting on 

14 behalf of Dr. A and his patients. 

15 i. 

16 message 

On or 

to Dr. 

about March 2, 2015, defendant GRUSD sent a 

A in order to facilitate a meeting to discuss 

text 

the 

17 referral of patients for ancillary medical procedures and the payment 

18 of bribes. 

19 j . On or about March 4, 2015, defendants GRUSD and PAREDES met 

20 with Dr. A in order to discuss the referral of patients for ancillary 

21 medical procedures and the payment of bribes. 

22 k. On or about March 4, 2015, in consideration for the referral 

23 of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING caused 

. 24 bribes to be paid to Dr. A and to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and 

25 

26 

27 

28 

LINE OF SIGHT acting on behalf of Dr. A 

1. On or about March 6, 2015, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and 

LINE OF SIGHT caused a payment to be made to Dr. A, which represented 

a portion of bribe payments from various providers, including 

12 



1 defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS 

2 CONSULTING. 

3 m. On or about April 2, 2015, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and 

4 RUBEN MARTINEZ caused an email to be sent to defendant PAREDES with a 

5 list of patients that had been referred to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, 

6 CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced Radiology for ancillary 

7 medical procedures. 

8 n. On or about April 6, 2015, in consideration for the referral 

9 of patients, defendants .GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING caused a 

10 bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF SIGHT 

11 acting on behalf of Dr. A 

12 o. On or about June 5, 2015, defendant GRUSD spoke with Dr. A 

1::. and confirmed the amc;1mt of bribes to be paid for the referral of 

14 patients to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and 

15 Advanced Radiology for ancillary medical procedures. 

16 p. On or about July 16, 2015, in consideration for the referral 

17 of patients referred, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

18 caused bribes to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

19 MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT BLUE MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A 

20 All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. 

21 Count 2 
HONEST SERVICES MAIL FRAUD, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1346 AND 2 

22 

23 25. Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are realleged and 

24 incorporated by reference. 

25 26. Beginning on a date unknown and continuing through at least 

26 August 2015, within the Southern District of California and elsewhere, 

27 defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

28 
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING 

13 



1 COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON knowingly and with 

2 the intent to defraud, devised a material scheme to defraud, that is, 

3 to deprive patients of their intangible right to Dr. A's honest 

4 services. 

5 27. Paragraphs 22 through 24 of this Indictment are realleged 

6 and incorporated by reference as more fully describing the scheme to 

7 defraud, that is, to deprive patients of their intangible right to 

8 Dr. A's honest services. 

9 28. On or about March 10, 2015, within the Southern District of 

10 California and elsewhere, defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, 

11 ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL 

12 GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC. , and DESERT 

··-· 13 BLUE MOON, for the purpose of executing the scheme and attempting to. 

14 do so, knowingly caused the following mail matter to be placed in a 

15 post office and authorized depository .for mail matters to be delivered 

16 by the United States Postal Service: a claim for reimbursement for 

17 ancillary medical procedures for J. F. secured through the payment of 

18 bribes to Dr. A and those acting on his behalf. 

19 All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346 

20 and 2. 

21 Counts 3-8 
TRAVEL ACT, 18 use §§ 1952 (a) (1) (A)' (a} (3) (A) AND 2 

22 

23 29. Paragraphs 1 through 19 are realleged and incorporated by 

24 reference. 

25 30. Beginning on date unknown and continuing through at least 

26 August 2015, within the Southern District of California and elsewhere, 

27 defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

28 
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING 

14 



1 COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON knowingly used and 

2 cause to be used facilities in interstate commerce with the intent to 

3 promote, manage, establish, carry on, distribute the proceeds of, and 

4 facilitate the promotion, management, establishment, carrying on, and 

5 distribution of the proceeds of an unlawful activity, that is, bribery 

6 in violation of California Labor Code Sections 139.3, 139.32, and 

7 3215, California Business and Professions Code Section 650, and 

8 California Insurance Code Section 750 and, thereafter, to promote and 

9 attempt to perform acts to promote, manage, establish, carry on, 

10 distribute the proceeds of, and facilitate the promotion, management, 

11 establishment, carrying on, and distribution of the proceeds of such 

12 unlawful activity as follows: 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

I Ct 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~-.,.~~-c-cc-c-~-,-~~~.-~~~~~cc-~--,~-,-~~~~~-! 

Use of Facility in Acts Performed Thereafter 

4 

5 

Date 
Interstate Commerce 

:l'l/7/14) .•. ·.•-' '-· 

...... 
.' : .. ,' 

''·· 
11/25/14 Defendant ALEXANDER 

MARTINEZ emailed defendant 
PAREDES a list of patients 
that had been referred to 
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, 
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK 
and Advanced Radiology for 
ancillary medical 
procedures. 

15 

.. : ., :·. ~·,:: .. 

Defendants GRUSD, PAREDES 
and WILLOWS CONSULTING 

.... -. 

caused bribes to be paid to 
defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ 
and DESERT BLUE MOON acting 
on behalf of Dr. A on 
December 3 and 15, 2014, 
and to ALEXANDER MARTINEZ 
and .LINE OF SIGHT acting on 
behalf of Dr. A on 
December 17, 2014. 



Ct 
1 

2 

3 

4 
;, 

5 

6 

7 

i·. 

8 

9 
7 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 ·9 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Date 

'·-· 
.. ·,:.· 

3/2/15 

Use of Facility in 
Interstate Commerce 

Defendant GRUSD sent a 
text message to Dr. A to 
facilitate a meeting to 
discuss the referral of 
patients for ancillary 
medical procedures and the 
payment of bribes. 

Acts Performed Thereafter 

On or about March 4, 2015, 
in consideration of 
patients referred for 
ancillary medical 
procedures, GRUSD and 
PAREDES met with and paid' 
bribes to Dr. A and to 
defendants ALEXANDER 
MARTINEZ and LINE OF SIGHT 
acting on behalf of Dr. A 

',4/2/1,5 De'ferida)l.tS/MEXf\NDER.. :T 

...... 
'<_:· 

MARTIJ:{EZ and !<\]BEN , .·.·· . ··. • .. ·· 
MAB.1'iNEZ c~;~~:~cJ:a;n. •emai1. · ·· 
to:,he. ·~ent. ·~a ,defei;~al'!t. 
PAREDES with a:.li~t<of 

-, 1",' ·'' .. ,, • ' ··.-.. :; .. ;·.:_.1.,,.·.·:-·,,i.-··1:·'. 
P?tt;,ien~·s· t):lat pad .been 
·;r:e f erreq ;t.9, ,def en¢la11t;:s .·.·. · " PQt:i§UI,'l'H:lG.}:'i,:!iX1Ai'l~·p: i;i!l;i·:J;i't".~pe t ' ·::·.· 

·i~di~d~~fu~~~~k.~~~l,F·0~1~- .•. ·. ~~~~~~7~~w~~~~~.~~}£i·J~·.·.··' 
A,dvancect!E~t)iology. for' ·./ QF)'SIGHT •a¢t;'iP,g:c.~n .peh<'tlf 

.. ...... _.Panrca.• .. •.;i.c·.·18•.•·.--~·.·· .. ~u·.•cY.>e:·s:.;ro· .. · •. ·•· __ e~tca( · ·... > 6±: :nr:·:~ •·J:]::::;;>•i'\ · · · 
. -.. ::.: u .L. .. " ·'. :'. :::·.:_,_-·.:: ':i" _,:_._:·, ·i{' .;:,·.;:_:.,::::;;:,) . . :-;;' .. ::.: :. 
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1 I Ct 
Date Use .of Facility in 

Interstate Conunerce 
Acts Performed Thereafter 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

9 6/5/15 

All in 

Defendant GRUSD spoke on 
the telephone with Dr. A 
and confirmed the amount 
of bribes to be paid for 
the referral of patients 
to defendants GRUSD, 
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA 
IMAGING NETWORK and 
Advanced Radiology for 
ancillary medical 
procedures. 

violation of Title 

Sections 1952 (a) (1) (A), (a) (3) (A) and 2. 

18, 

On or about July 16, 2015, 
in consideration of 
patients referred for 
ancillary medical 
procedures, defendants 
GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS 
CONSULTING paid .bribes to 
defendants ALEXANDER 
MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, 
LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT 
BLUE MOON acting on behalf 
of Dr. A 

United States Code, 

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION 

31. Paragraphs 1 through 30 of this Indictment are realleged and 

incorporated as if fully set forth herein for the purpose of alleging 

forfeiture pursuant to Title 18' United States Code, 

Section 98l(a) (1) (C) and Title 28, United States Code, 

Section 2461 (c) . 

32. Upon conviction of the offenses of Conspiracy, Honest 

Services Mail Fraud and Travel Act as alleged in Counts 1 through 9, 

defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING 
21 

COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON shall forfeit to 
22 

23 
the United States all right, title, and interest in any property, real 

24 
or personal, that constitutes or was derived from proceeds traceable 

25 
to a violation of such offenses, including a sum of money equal to the 

26 
total amount of gross proceeds derived, directly or indirectly, from 

such offenses. 
27 

28 

17 



1 33. If any of the above described forfei table property, as a 

2 result of any act or omission of defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO 

3 PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING 

4 NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, 

5 INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON: (a) cannot be located upon the exercise of 

6 due diligence; (b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, 

7 a third party; (c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the 

8 Court; ( d) has been substantially diminished in value; or ( e) has been 

9 commingled with other property which cannot be divided without 

10 difficulty; it was the intent of the United States, pursuant to 

11 Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p) and Title 18, United 

12 States Code, Section 982 (b), to seek forfeiture of any other property 

13 of defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN 

14 MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING 

15 COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT. BLUE MOON up to the value of 

16 the forfeitable property described above; 

17 All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 981 (a) (1) (C), 

18 and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 (c). 

19 DATED: November 5, 2015. 

20 A TRUE BILL: 

21 

22 
LAURA E. DUFFY 

23 United States Attorney 

25 By: J~2 
Assistant U.S. ttorney 

FJ~~ {o, 

By: 

24 

26 

27 
By: 

28 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

18 



1 LAfJRA E. DUFFY 
United States Attorney 

2 FRED SHEPPARD 
Assi~tant Onited States Attorney 

3 California Bar No, 250781 
VALERIE H. CHU 

4 Assistant United States Attorney 
California Bar No. 241709 

5 CAROLINE P. HAN 
Assistant United States Attorney 

·6 California Bar No. 250301 
Federal Office Building 

7 880 Front Street, Room 6293 
San Diego, California 92101-8893 

8 
Attorneys for United States o.f America 

9 

10 

11 

UNI'l'E.D STJU'Jll.'! DIS'J!RIC'l' COURT 

SOUTmmN DlSTlUCT 011' CALI:t!'ORNll 

12 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

13 

14 
v. 

Plaintiff, 

ALEXANDER MARTINEZ (3), 
15 LINE OF SIGHT, INC. ( 7) , 

16 

17 
Defendant". 

Case No. 15CR2821-BAS 

-

18 I'f IS HEREBY AGREED between the plaintiff, UNITED STATES OF 

AMERICA, through. its counsel, J,aiira E. Duffy, United States Attorney, 
19 

and E'red Sheppard, Valerie H. Chu and Caroline P. Han, Assistant 
20 

011.lted States Attorneys, and defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF 
21 SIGHT, INC. (hereafter "Line of Sight"}, with the advice and consen.t 

22 of Knut Johnson, counsel for defendant, a.s follows: 

23 11 

24 I( 
II 

25 
II 

26 I I 

27 11 

28 // 

Plea. Agreement Def. Initials~ 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

I 

Tlnl !'Lll'J\ 

1. Thie agreement ia intended to bind the follow;lng partia3: 

2. 

a. Defendant Alexander Martinez; 

b. Defendant Line of Sight; 

c. The· United States Attorney's Office ("USAO") as to Criminal 

Case Numbe.r 15CR2821-BAS pending in the United States 

District Court for the Southern District of. California 

(hereinafter "the federal case"); and 

d. The San Diego County District Attorney's Office ("SDCDAO"} 

as to Criminal. Case Numbers SCD255519, SCD255520, SCD255S21, 

SCD255522, SCD255523, and SCD255524 currently pending in the 

Supe.r:lor Court of California, County of San Diego 

(hereinafte.r "the stat a cases") , 

This plea agreement cannot bind any other federal, state or 

local prosecuting, ad..'llinls tra ti ve, cir regulat:ory authorities, although 

14 the> USN.l or SDCDAO w:Lll br:Lng th.is plea agreement to the attention of 

15 other ;;n;thoritiea if reque$ted by Defendants. 

16 

17 

18 

3. 'rhis plea agreement is part of a "par:k.ar;a" disposition. E'or 

Defendants to receive the benefits of this agre<"..ment, co-defendants 

Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon, Inc, (he.reinafter "Pleading Co­

Defendants"), must agree to a separate plea agreement with the OSAO 
19 and SDCDAO and all four defendants muat enter pleas of guilty, 

20 pursuant to their r11spectiva pl.ea agreements, in each federa.l and 

21 state case in which they are currently charged no later than l\.pril 22, 

22 2016. 

23 

24 

4 • With regards to the federal. case, defendants Alexander 

Martinez and Lj.ne of Sight agree to waive Indictment and plead guilty 

to a Superseding Information charging Conspiracy to Commit Honest 
25 Services Mail Fraud and Heal th Care Fraud, in viola ti on of lB lJ, s. c. 
26 s 1349. 

27 5. In exchange for Defendants' guilty plea in the federal case, 

28 the lJSAO agrees to: (1) move to d\amiss the charges l.n the :lnd~t 

Plea Agt·eement Def. Initials ~ 



against Cefend,1nts without prejudice when Defendants are sentenced, 
1 

and (2) net prosecute Defendants thereafter on such dismissed charges 
2 unless either Defendant or either Pleading Co-Defendants breacl1es the 

3 plea agreement or a:1y of the guilty pleas entered pursuant to this 

4 plea ag.reemant is aet aside for: any reason, Defendant.s eKp.ressly waive 

5 all constitutional and statutory defenses to the .re.lnsta.tement of any 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

charges dism.issed pu.rsuant to this agreement. 

6, With regar.ds to the state caae::i,. defendant lUexander 

Martinez agrees to plead guilty to the following charges in the 

foll.owing cases: 

a.£~ N•J:nb~::.- S2.Pl~55J:.~.t Pe'.)p.~.L.Y-· -~:r.11.sd, et al~.~ Count 44, 

unlawfully receive and accept comperisation for referral of 

pati.ent.s in violation of California Labor Code sect.ton 3215; 

and Count 29, unlawfully conceal an event affectJ.ng an 

irniurance claim in violation of California Penal. Code 

section 550 (bi (3). 'l'he combined maK.lmum penalty for both 

counts is 5 years, 8 men th~ in p.r.ison and a $ 60, 000 fine. 

b. g,aL~-~--~:1!10t3r S\_~i:225552CJ_ Pe9_ple v. !Ca_~~3;._al,: Count 27, 

unlawtully re::aivs a.~d accept compensation for referral of 

patients, in violation of California Labor Code, Section 

3215; and Count 13, unlawfully conceal an event affecting an 

insurance c.la.Lm, in violation of Cali.fornia Penal Code, 

Sect.ion 550 (b) (3). The combined maximum penalty for both 

counts is 5 years, 8 months 1n p.riaon and a $60,000 fine. 

c. Case Number Sg:>255521, · People v. Go, et al.: Count 7, 

unlawfully receive and accept compensation for referral of 

patients, in violation of California Labor Code, Section 

3215. The maximum penalty ia 3 yea.rs in prison and a $10, 000 

fine. 

d. Casa N=be::- SCD253522, People v. Schamea, et a.l,: Count 1, 

unlawfully receive and accept compensation for referral of 

patients, in violation of .California Labo.r Code, Section 

3215; and Count 13, 

Plea Agreement 

unlawfully conceal 

3 

an event aft'ect~n 
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l 

2 

3 

4· 

5 

6 

7 

B 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 7, 

insurance cla.im, in vio.lation of California Penal Code, 

Section 550(b) (3). Th.e combined maximum penalty for both 

coi.:.nta is 5 years, a months in prieon and a $60, 000 f:lna. 

unlawfully receive and accept compen~a ti on for referral. of 

patients, in violation of California Labor Code, Section 

3215; and Count 3, unlawfully conceal an event affecting an 

insurance claim, in violation of California Penal Code, 

Sect.ton 550 (b) (3). The combined maximum penalty for both 

counts is 5 years, S months in prison and a $60,000 fine. 

f. Ca.~1$_ N\.:irnb~_lJCD2S5524L._~J.e_~ ·v. 'I'r~~-- et~.~~ Co\Jnt 12, 

unla•,ifully receive and accept compensation for referral of 

patients, in viola ti on of California Labor Code, Section 

3215; and Count 22, imlawfully conceal an event affecting an 

.Lnauranc•3 claL"'ll, in v.1.olatlon of Californ.ia Penal Code, 

3<;ction 550 (b) (3). 1'.he combined maximum penalty for both 

conn:s is 5 years, 8 rnonths ln prison and a $60,000 fine. 

Pursuant to Cal.ifo:cnia sentencing law, the overall maximum 

16 penalty for all the ata•:e casas is 13 years in prison and a $310,0DO 

fin 1~. 17 
8. 

18 
ln exchange for Defendant Aleirnnder Martinez' 6 plea to the 

abOV(J-referenced ele,ren counts in the state cases, the SDCDAO agrees 
19 to dismiss the rema:lning counts against him with a waiver purs.uant to 

20 People v. Harvey, 25 Cal.3d 754 (1979). The SDCDAO further agrees to 

21 recommend that Defendant be sentenced to no more than 10 years in 

22 prison to 

23 
case, that 

be served concurrently wlth his sentence in the federal 

he receive the standard restitution fine, and that the 

court order full rest:itlltion. Copies of the written and signed plea 
24 

agreements in the state cases are incorporated herein. 

~s I I 

26 11 

27 11 

28 // 
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II 
l 

NA~ OF T!ili: OF!l'ENSE 
2 

A, FEDERAL CASE: ELEMENTS EXPLAINED 

3 Defendants i'llexa:>der Martinez and I,J,ne of Sight understand that 

4 the off.enae to which Defendants a.re pleading guilty haa the following 

5 elements: 

6 

7 

B 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Consoiracv !13 C.S.C. § 1349] 

1. There was an agree.rnant between two or more per.sons to 

commit P.one;t Services Mail Fcaud and Health Care 

Fraud; and 

2. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5, 

6. 

The defendant entered into the agreement knowing of at 

.lea3t one of its objects and intending to ·help 

accm'lplish it. 

The defendant devised o.:: knowingly participated in a 

scheme to depr.i'le a 'l:Lctim of his or her right to a 

doctor's honest services; 

The scheme consisted of soliciting and facilitating the 

receJ.pt of kick..':lack p.'l.yments from suppliers of health­

care ser<r.i.ces and products to be paid to the doctor in 

exchange for refenals; 

The docto.r, as a l).aalthcara profeasi.onal, owed a 

fiduciary duty to the victim; 

The defendant acted with the intent to defraud by 

depr.·i ving the victim of his or her right to the 

doctor's honest services; 

The defendant's act was material; that is, it had a 

natural tendency to influence, or waa capable of 

in.fl.uencing, a person's acts; and 

The defendant u!!lacl, or caused someone to use, the mails 

to carry out or to attempt to carry out the scheme or 

27 plan. 

28 

Plea Agreement 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

The defendant knowingly executed, or attempted to 

execute, a scheme or artifice to defraud a health-care 

benefit program, or to obtain money or property owned 

by, or llnder the custody or cont:~ol of, a health-care 

benefit program by means of false or fraudulent 

pretenses, representations, or promises. 

The false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or 

promisea related to a material fact. 

The defendant acted willfully and intended to defraud. 

The defendant did so in connection with the de.livery 

of or payment for health·-care bene.f.i ts, i terns, or 

.9£Lrvice3. 

C1::._~r·:;ra. :_,::.! C:cJ.1ninal J .. iaJ:>il.i. ~y 

Oeferidant · !.ine of Sight acknowledges that a corporation is 

responaible for the acts of its agents or employees, done within ·the 

15 scope of thai.r authority. The defer:dant further acknowledges that the 

16 acts of a co;:poratio:1' s agsnt or employee are within the scope of his 

17 
or he.r authority J.f those acts a:r:e done on the corporation's behalf or 

for its benefit in the performance of the agent's general duties. 
lB 

B. FEDE:RAL CASE h'ACTUAL BASIS: ELEMBNTS UNDERSTOOD AND ADMIT1'ED 
19 Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of· Sight have fully 

20 discussed the facts of the federal case and the state caaea with 

21 defense counsel. .Defendants Alexander Martinez and tine of Sight have 

22 committed each of the elements of Conspiracy to Commit Honest Services 

Ma.il Fraud and Health Care Fraudi in violation of lB U.S.C. § 1349, 
23 

24 

25 

and admit that there is a factual basis for the guilty pleas in the 

federal case. Specifically, both defendants admJ.t: 

Defendant AJ,BXANDER MARTINEZ worked as a marketer and 

26 administrator on behalf of Dr .. Steven Rigler, a licensed chiropractor 

27 with three clinics in the Southern District of California. Defendant 

28 
ALEXANDER MAF.'l'INTI:Z ownad and operated defendant LINE 

Plea Agreement 
6 
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1 

2 

3 

a professional corporation incorporated in Nevada wh•)Se p.rinc.ipal 

place of buai.ness was in Calexico, California. 

2. The California Workers' Compensation System ("CWCS") 

required that employers in Ca1.ifornia provide workers' compensation 

benefits to thei.r employ<aea for qui!lifying inju.rie.J sustained in the 

5 course of th~3ir employment. Under the ewes, all claims fo.r payments 

6 

7 

8 

for s<irv.ices or benefits provided to the inju:ced ewployee, ir:c.lu1:llng 

medical and legal fees, we.rn billed directly to, and paid by, the 

insurer. ewes ber:efits were administered by the employer, an insurer, 

or a third pa.tty admL"l.ist rator. ewes .requirad claims 

9 administrators to authorize and pay for medical care · that was 

10 "reasonably requl.red to cu.rs or rslieve the injured worker from the 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

effects of his or h;;r .injury," and includes medical, surgical, 

chir.opractic, acupunct1Jre, and hospital treatment. ewes :lmrnrers were 

private plans, a.ffect.ing commerce, under which medical benefits, 

itema and ser»rice~ wer•> provided to individuals, and therefore were 

"health c.>re benefi~ programs" unde.r 18 u.s.e. § 24(b). 

3. From 2012 through August 2015, within the Southern District 

16 of Ca.l.:lfornia a.;od elsewh<:re, defendants ALEXANDER M,\R'rINEZ and LINE 

17 

1a 

OE' SIGHT knowingly .and intar.tional.J.y agreed with each other and with 

others, including RO~l.l\LD GRUSD, GONZALO Pi\REDhiS, ROBEN Ml\.RTINEZ, 

CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, 

DESERT BLUE MOON, to commit the offenses of Honest Se.rvices Mail 

20 Fraud, in violation of 18 O.S .c. §3 1341 and 1346, and Health Cara 

2:L Fraud, in violation of 18 u.s.c. § 1347. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

A. pu.rpoae af the conspiracy waa to f.raudule.ntly obtain money 

from California Workers' Compensation System ("CWCS") insurers by 

submitting claims for anc:l..llary procedures that were secured through 

a pattern of bribes to Dr. Rigler, and to those acting with him and 

on hia behalf, in exchange for the referral of patients to particular 

pro·viders of ancilla.ry medical procedures, in violation of Dr. 

Rigler' s fiduciary duty to hh patients, and conce,3ling from insurers 

the bribes that r.enderad the claims unpayable under California law. 

Plea Agreement 
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l 

2 

3 

Jj 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

20 

5, It wa.~ a part of the conspiracy that defendants ALEXANDER 

MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARl'INEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT BLOE MOON agreed 

to accept per-patient referral fees from co-defendants GRUSQ, 

PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IM.<"IGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others -­

either dir:ectly or indirectly - in exchange for the referral of Dr. 

Rigler' s workers' compensation patients to defendant CA.L!li'ORNIA 

IMAGJNG NETWORK ornd other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and 

PAREDES. 

6. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

ALEXANDER MAR TIN:~z I RUBEN MA..t\'l'XNEZ, LINE m· s IGHT' DESER'r BLUE MOON 

and others arranged to hava defendants GR!JSD, l?AREDES, CALIFORNIA 

IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and othara conduct ancillary 

medical procedures on Dr. Ri\fler' s workers'· compcmsation patients in 

exchange for unlawful pe,r-patient referral fees. 

7. H Wa3 a further part cf the conspiracy that defendants 

concealed from patJ.ent>l, and intended to cau.se Dr. Rigler to conceal 

from Pil ti en ts, the bribe payments Dr. Rig:Ler and defendants ALEXANDER. 

Ml\RTil)LT.Z, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, AND DESERT BI,UE MOON 

received from defenchmt.!l GRUSD, PAREDES, CAI,U'ORNIA IMAGING NETWORK 

and WILLOWS CONSULTING in exchange fo1· referring patierita for 

ancillary medical procedures, in vi() la ti on of Dr. Rigler' a fiduciary 

duty to Dr. Rigler' a pat.ienta and in vi()lation of ete Californ.l.a 

Labor Codi). 

8, It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

GROSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORX, and WILLOWS CONSO:LTING 

used the maila to send bribes to Dr. Rigler 

MARTINEZ, ROBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, 

and defendants A.LEXANDER 

DESER'.r BLOE MOON, in 

exchange fer the referral of Dr. R.igler' a patients for anoilla.ry 

medical procedures. 

9. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants 

GROSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTlNG 

used the mails to send bill.' to insurers for services provided to 

Plea Agreement B 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

patients thay had procured by paying bribes to Dr. Rigler :lnd other 

conspirators. 

10. rt was a further part of the conspl.racy that defendants 

GRUSD, Pl\REDES, CALIFORNIA !M<\GrnG NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and 

others acting on their behalf concealed from insurers and patients 

the material fact of the kickback arrangements, which were in 

violation of California state J.aw, 'that led to the referrals. 

11. Os ing the man.r.ers and means described above, defendants 

GRUSD, l?A.REDES, .l\'LEXAND!i:R MART INSZ, ROBEN MAR':r INEZ 1 CALIFORNIA 

IMAGING NETWORI<, WILLOWS. CONSOLTING, LINE OF SIG!iT and DESER'r BLUE 

MOON subm.l.tted and caused to be submitted clal.ms in excess of $1 

million for ancilluy medJ.ca.l procedures procured through the payn1ent 

of bribes. The defendants further admits that each of the 

allegations at paragra.phs 21, 22, 23, and 24 of the ind:Lctrnent .in the 

federal case are true and c()rrect and can be proven beyond a 

reasonable doubt, including eac.h of the manner and means in paragraph 

23, and eacl: of the overt acts listed in pac::agraph 24, In 

particular, defendants admit that on or about March 6, 2015, 

defendant• ALEXA.~;)g(, MI\.R'rINEZ and LINE O.i" SIGHT caused a payment to 

be made to Dr:. R.1.gler, whlcb represe.nt ed a portJ.on of. bribe paymen1:s 

from var:Lou.s providers, · including de.fendants GRUSD, PAREDES, 

CALH'ORNIA IM.\GING NE:'f'llOR..~ a::id WILLOWS CONSULTING. 

In addition, 

20 loss encompassl!d 

21 million. 

the defendants. agree and admit that the intended 

by their tot.al criminal conduct exceeded $3. 5 

22 11 

23 II 
II 

24 II 

2s II 

26 /1 

27 II 

28 I I 

Plea Agreement 
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C. STATE CJ\S!.!;3: E'.:tEMEN':':3 EXPLAINED 

Defendant Al&xander Martinez understands tl1at the of.tenses to 
2 ~hich he is plead.i.rig guilty in the s-::ate cases !lave the following 

3 elements: 

4 Onla':lfully Acce2..!__~<;>~e'\,~t..ion for Referral of Patients 

5 [Calitornia Labor Code, Section 3215) 

6 

7 

a 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

10 

19 

20 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Defendant Alexander Martinez did, acting indi viduaJ.ly, 

or thrm19h their employees or agents offer, deliver, 

receive o:r: accept; 

Any ccn31deration to or fr.on1 any peraon; 

As COI:lpensation or inducement for; 

I'lle referral r;:!; patients, clients or customers to 

perfor.n or obtain services or benefits; and 

Involving worker9' compensation insurance. 

[CaJ.ifo.rn.ia Penal Code, Section 550 (b) (.3) J 

D. 

1. De.Eendant d.id, knowingly assist, or conspire with 

2' 

3. 

anothe.?:·, to co:1c:eal or fail to disclose the occurrence 

of an e'v·ent; 
1rhat affects ar.y pereon' s right or ent1tlemt~nt to an 

inaurance benefit or payment, or amount ot benefit or 

payment; and 

With the specific .tntent to defraud. 

21 Defendant Alexander Martinez has fully discussed the facts of 

22 the state cases with de.Een.se counsel. 

23 
has coromi tted eac11 of the elements 

·oefendant Ale:{ander Martine.z 

of unlawfully receiving and 

accepting compensation for referral of patients, in violation of 
24 

California Labor Code, Section 3215, and unlawfully concealing an 

25 event affecting an insurance claim, in violation of California Penal 

26 Code, s.ection 550 (b) (3), and admits that there is a factual basis for 

27 the guilty pleas in the state cases, The following facts are true 

28 and undisputed: 

Def. Initials~ Plea Agreement 
10 



a. SCD.?.55519 
1 

On or about and between December 16, 2012 and July 16, 2015, 
2 Defendant Alexander Kiev Mart.inez and Ruben Marcial Martinez d:ld 

3 unlawfully receive and accept 34 checks totaling approx.i.mately 

4 $150, 000 prepared by Gonzalo Ernesto l?are·des and s.igned by Ron.1ld 

5 Selwyn Gruad ao compensation for referring workers' compensation 

patient~ of Dr. Ste<rnn Rigler from Rigler' s San Diego, }]scondido and 
6 

Calexico clinics. 
7 

On or about Marer; 4, 2015, defendants Defendant Alexander Kiev 
a Martinez and Ruben Marcial Martinez did unlawfully receive and accept 

9 check •3327 for $8, 500. 00 prepared by Gonzalo }]rnesto Paredes and 

10 signed by Ronald Selwyn Grusd as compensation for referring workers' 

ll compensation patients ot Dr. Steven Rigler. 

12 
On or about and betw8en Deceniber 16, 2012 and November 27, 2015, 

Defendant AJ.eJrnnder K:Lev Martinez and Ruben Marc.ial Maiti.naz d:td 
13 

unlawfully aid and aba~ and conspire with Rondd Selwyn Grusd and 

14 Gonzalo Ern.;,3to Paredes to fraudc1.lently bill at least 13 insurance 

15 companies for EMG/NCV, MRI, and Stwckwava testing of workers' 

16 compensation patients of Dr. Steven Ri9ler from Rigler' s San Diego, 

Escondido and Calexico clinics by concealing the payment of kickbacks 
17 

18 
for these patients, 

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, 
19 defendants Alexander K.iev Martinez and Ruben Marcial Martinez did 

20 unlawfully aid and abet and conspire w_il:.h Ronald Selwyn Grusd and 

21 Gonzalo Ernesto 1?arede3 to fraudulently bill State Compensation 

22 Insurance Fund (SCH') tor EMG/NCV, testing of workers' compensation 

of Dr. Steven Rigler from Rigler' s San Diego, Escondido and· 

clinics by concealing the payment of kick.backs for these 

b. SCD25552.0 

o:c about September 18, 2014, defendant Alexander Kiev 

did unlawfully receive and accept a check for $3, 000.00 

20 
signed by Amir Obaidullab K.'1an and aided and abetted by Farhat Fatima 

J?lea Agreement 
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Khan, as CO!llpensation for referring workers' compensation patients of 
1 

Pr. Steven Rigler from Rigler' B San Diego, Escondido and Calexico 
2 

clinics. 

3 On or about January 23, 2015, Defendant Alexander Kiev Ma.rtinez 

4 did unlawfully receive and accept another check for $1, 500. 00 signed 

5 by Am.ir ObaiduJ.lah Khan and aided and abetted by Farhat Fatima Khan, 

6 
as compensation for referring workeL's' compen.::iation patients of Dr. 

Steve.n Rigler from Rigler'·" San Diego, Escondido and Calexico 
7 

clinics. 
8 On or about -and between June 23 2014 and November 27 1 2015, 

9 Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did unlawfully aid and abet and 

10 conspire with Amir Obaidullah Khan and Farhat FatJ.ma. !i'.han to 

11 fraudulently b.ill at least: eleven insurance companiea :for ADLs, AIM 

12 
studies, echocardiograms workers' aaae.saments, EKGa, and of 

compensation patJ.enta of Dr. Steven Rigler from Rigler' a San Diego, 
13 

Escondido and Calexico clinica by conceding the payment of kickbacks 
14 for these patients. 

15 On or about and betwean Juna 23, 

16 Defendant Alexa.nder Kie'I Mar·tinez did 

2014 and Nmrember 27, 2015, 

unlawfully a.id and abat and 

17 

18 

J.9 

conspire w:l th Amir Oba.Ldu.llah and Farhat Fatima Khan to 

fraudulently bill State Comp•~naa.tion Insurance Fund (SCIF) for pain 

assessments of works:cs' compensation patients of Dr. SteV'en Rigle:r.: 

from Rigler' s San Diego, Escond:ido and Calexico clinics by concealing 

20 the payment of kickbacks for these patientll. 

21 c. SCD255521 

22 On or about March 18 1 2015, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez 

did unlawfully receive a check for $8,000.00 signed by Emmanuel Ed Go 
23 

and aided and abetted by Christopher Ell\lllanuel Go aa compensation for 
24 

referring workers' cornpensat.ion patients of Dr. Steven Rigler from 

25 Rigler' s San Diego, Escondido and Calexico cl.inics. 

26 011 or about March 20 1 2015 Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did 

27 unlawfully rece.lve credit for a $8 1 000 cash kickback handed to Dr. 

Rigler by Ch.dstopher Emmanuel Go at the behest of Errananuel Ed Go :for 

Plea Agreement 
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1 

2 

3 

referring workers' compensation patients of Dr. Steven Rigler frQm 

Rigler's San Diego, Escondido and Calexico clinics. 

d. SCD255522 

On or about October 1, 2014, Defendant AJexander Kiev Martinez 

4 did unlawfully receive a check for .$20, 000 signed by defendant 

5 Jennifer Louise White and aided and abetted by Eric Jay Schames as. 

6 
compenaa ti on for referring workers' compen~ation patients .of.Dr. 

Steven Rigler from San D:i:ego, Escondido and Calexico clinics. 
7 

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015 

a Defendant Alexander.· Kiev Martinez did un.lawf.ully aid and abet and 

9 conspire w:Lth Jennifer Louise White and Eric Jay Schames to 

10 fraudulently .bill at leagt eleven insurance companies for ANS atudj.es 

and Sleep studies o.f worke.ra' compensation patients of Dr. Steven 11 
Rigler from San Diego, Escondido and Calexico clinics by concealing 

12 
the payment of kiclc.'oaclcs for these patients, 

13 Or,. or about and between September 1, 2014 and Septembe,r 1, 2015, 

14 Defendant Alex:mder Kiev MartJ.ne:z did tmlawfully aid and abet and 

15 conspire with Jennifer Louise White and E.ric Jay Scha:mea to 

16 fraudulently bill The Hartford Insurance Company for ANS studies of 

workers' compensation patients 
17 

Escondido and Calexico cl:Lnic.s 

of Dr. Steven Rigler from San Diego, 

by concealing the payment of kickbacks 
1a 

19 
for these pat1.ents. 

e, SCD255523 

20 on or about April 9, 2015, De:Eendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did 

21 unlawfully receive and accept $1, 300 in cash as compensation for his 

22 role in referring ·patients to obtain benefita pursuant to the 

CalJ.fornia Workers.Compensation law. 
23 

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, 
24 

Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did knowingly assist and conspire 

25 with another person to conceal the existence of illegal kickback 

26 payments for the referral o.f patients for whom services were rendered 

27 (hot/cold packs) and based upon which were bills sent to insurance 

28 companies {.including 

!?lea Agreement 
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Compensation system, which constituted the occur:r:ence of any event 
l 

that affected a person's right and entitlement to an insurance 
2 benefit and payment. 
3 On April 9, 2015, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martine·i accepted a 

4 $1,300 cash payment from his aasociate, Dr. Steven Rigler. Defendant 

5 Alexander Kiev Martinez knew that $1, 300 cash payment came directly 

6 

7 

a 

from a $5, ooo cash payment made earlier that same day from Julian 

E:Strada Ga.rel.a to R.igler. Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez knew at 

the time he received and accepted the $1,300 

that the money was 

9 payment by G1:i.rcia to 

pa.rt of the proceeds 

Rigler in exchange for 

cash payment from Rigler 

of an· illegal kickback 

the referral of patients 

10 by Rigler to Garcia, so that Garcia could provide to the patients 

11 durable medical equipment known ae "hot/cold therapy units•, and so 

that Garcia could send bills for the hot/cold therapy unite to 
12 

various cal.ifornia Workers compenr;ation insurance companies, 
13 

On or about and between October 14, 2015 and November 27, 2015, 
14 did unlawfully aid, abet, and conspire with Gai;cia to fraudulently 

15 bill at least 10 inauran1;e compan.ies for the hot/cold therapy unita .. 

16 The $1, 300 cash payment to Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez was 

compensation for hie role in aiding, abetting, and facilitating the 
17 

18 
illegal 

patient 
19 patients 

20 insurers 

21 Martinez 

referrals of hot/cold therapy units by providing Garcia with 

information necessary ·for Garcia to send the units to 

and for Garcia to process the paperwork needed to bill 

for. the hot/ cold therapy uni ts. Defendant Alexander Kiev 

waa aware that Garcia intended to and did send bills to 

22_ multiple California Workers Compensat.ion insurers for the hot/cold 

23 
therapy unita illegally referred to Garcia by Rigler. 

f, SCD2555ll 
24 

on or about November 24, 2014, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez 
25 did unlawfully receive and accept $5, ooo check #1059 from MD Pharma 

26 as compensation for his role in referring patients to obtain benefits 

27 pursuant to the California Workers Compensation law, 

29 

... ' 
14 
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l 

2 

On or about and between September 18, 2014, and November 27, 

201S, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did knowingly a."list and 

conspire with another person to conceal the existence of illegal 

3 kickbad: payments for the referral of patients for whom services were 

4 rendered (prescription drug benefits) and based upon which were bills 

5 sent to insurance companies (including Amtrust North Amer.ica 

6 
Insurance) in the California Work.ers Compensation System, which 

constituted the occurrence of any event that affected a person's 
7 

right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment. 
8 On or about and between December 30, 2013 and November 27, 2015, 

9 Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez d:ld unJ.awfully receive and accept, 

10 eithe.r. personally or th.rough Or. Steve,1 Rigler a3 an intermediary, 20 

11 checks totaling approx.imately $91, 000 written on the accotmta \).f 

either Coastline M~d.ical Clinic or MD Pharma, Inc. 1 aa compensation 
12 

for re eerring workern' compensation patients of Dr. Steven Rigle.r 
13 

from R.Lgler'a San Diego, Escondido and Calexico clinJ,cs. 
:t4 patients were ref'erred to Phong Hung Tran, M. D. for pain management 

15 service.•, including but not limited to prescript.ion drug benefits, 

16 toxicology screen . .Lng3, and compound cream prescription drug benefits, 

17 
The approximately $91 1 000 in checks were illegal k.Lckback payments 

made as compensation for the referral of patients to Tran, 
18 

On or about. and between September. 18, 20.14 and November 27, 
19 2015, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did unlawfully aid, abet, and 

20 conspire with Tran and David Cuong Manh Nguyen to fraudu.lently b.Ul 

2l. at lea,,t 24 insurance companies for pain management services, 

22 including but not l.im.J.ted to prescription drug benefits, toiticology 

screenings, and compound cream prescript.ion drug benefits. DefE>ridant 
23 

Alexander Kiev Martinez did eo, by among other acts, providing Tran, 
24 

Nguyen, and others with patient referrals, patient information, and 
25 other information necessary for Tran to treat the patients and for 

26 Tran to process the paperwork needed to bill insurers for the 

27 treatment provided by Tran for pain management services, Defendant 

20 Alexander Kiev Martinez was 

Plea Agreement 
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1 
intended to and did send bills tc mµltiple California Workers 

Compensation .insurers for the pain management services illegally 
2 referred to Tran. 

3 III 

l?ll:NA.!,~ 4 

5 

6 

7 

a 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

A. E'E~? ... ~ CASE 

The defendants unde.rstand that conspiracy to Commit Honest 

Services Mail Fraud, in viola ti on of 18 u.s.c. § 13 4 9' to wl1ich the 

defendants are pleading guilty in the federal case carries the 

following pena . .l t.ies as to De.fondant Alexander Martinez: 

A. 

B. 

a 111!.,xintwn 2 0 years in prison; 

a maximum $250, 000 f:l.ne, or twice the gross gain or loss 

deri vad from the offense; 

c. 
D. 

a mandatory special asse<isment o.f $100 per collnt; and 

a term of supervised release of 3 years. Defendant 

Al.;ixander Martinez understands that faJ.l.m::a to comply with 

ar.y of the cond~tions of superd.sed release may reslllt in 

revocatJ.oo of supervised release, requ:Lring defendant to 

serve in prison, upon any such revocation, all or part of 

the statutory max.i.m1:un tenn o.f. supe.rvised release for the 

offense that i;esulted in such term of supa.r.visad release. 

E. an order from the Court purst:ant to 18 o.s.c. § 3663!\ that 

Defendants Alexanda.r Martinez and Line of Sight make 

mandatory restitution to the victims of the offense of 

conviction, or the estate (s) of the victim.s (a). Defendants 

Alexander Martinez: and Line of S.ight understand that the 

Court shall also order, if agreed to by the parties in this 

plea agreement, restitution to persons other than the 

victims of the offense of conviction. 

F. an order of forfeiture of any property, real or personal, 

wh.ich constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to 

the offense. 

Plea Agreement 16 
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The defend<'tnts understand tha~ Conspiracy to Commit Honest 

Services Mail Fraud, in violation of 18 o.s.c. S 1349, to which the 
2 defendants are pleading guilty in the federal. case carries the 

3 following penaltie3 aa to Defendant Line of Sight: 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

2B 

.to: 

A. a maximum 5 years of probation, and a minimtun of 1 year of 

probation; 

B. a maximwn fine of $500,000, or twice the gross gain or loss 

derived from the offense; 

c. a mandatory special assessment of $400 per count; 

D. an order from the Court pursu:;rnt to 18 U.S. C, § 3663A that 

defendant maka restitution to tha victim(s) of tha offense 

of conviction, . or the estate (s) of the victima (a); and 

E. forfei t.ure. o.f all pr.op~rty that cons t.i tut ea or ia derived· 

from proceeds traceable to the offense to which Defendant 

ia pleading guilty (lB U.S.C. § 981(a) (1) {C) anc\ 28 U.S.C. 

§2461(0)). 

F. Defendant un.derstands that the Court may also order, if 

a1;reed to by the parties .in thl.s plea agreement, 

· restittitl.or. t.o persons other than the victim(e) of the 

offense of conviction. 

IV 

P-!_Flmnl!l.'l'!'' S WAr'fEl<. 011'....LRI.1\L lU:GJ:i't'S IN .Tl'l!lDl!l.lilAL C'.l\SK 

The defendants 1lnderstand that this g1lilty plea waives the right 

A. C<,nt.i.nue to plead not guilty and require the Government to 

prove the elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt; 

B. A speedy and public t.da.l by jury; 

c. Tha aas:latance of counael at all stages of trial; 

D. Confront and croas-exa~ine adverse witnesses; 

E. •rest.i.fy and present evidence and to have witnesses testify 

on behalf of defendant; and, 

F. Not testify or· have any adverse inferences d:r:awn from the 

failure to tE»3tify. 

Plea Agreement 
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l 
The defendanta knowingly and voluntarily waive any rights and 

defensea the defendants may have under the Excessive Fines Clause of 
2 the Eighth Amendment to the United· Statea Constitution to the 

3 forfeiture of property in this proceeding or any related civil 

4 proceeding. 

5 

6 

7 

v 
DEFEND-WT ACIINOW.tJIDGES NO l?MTRJ:AL IUGHT TO Bll: 

l?IWVID!W WITH IM!?!!'.ACl!MlllN'l.' AND Al!'ll'IRM.ll.TIV!'l DElfll:NSl!l INll'OIIMATIOl>i 

The USAO and SDCDAO represent that any information establishing 
8 the factual innocence of Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of 

9 Slght known to the undersigned prosecutors in thi3 case has been 

10 turned over to de.fendant. The OSAO and SDCPAO will continue to 

11 provide such J.nfor.nation establishing the factual innocence of 

defendant. 
12 

Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of S.ight understand that 
13 

·if thi.9 case proceeded to trial, the USAO and SDCDAO would be required 

14 to pr.ov.ide impaachme:it information relating to any informants or other 

15 witnesses, In add.it.ion, if defendant raised an affirmative defense, 

16 the USAO and SDCDAO would be requlred to provlde information in its 

17 
possession that . supports such a defen.se. Defendants Alexander 

Martinez and Line of Si9ht acknowledge, however, that by pleading 
18 

guilty, Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight will not be 
19 provided th.ls information, .if any, and defendant also waives the right 

20 to this information. Finally, Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line 

21 of Sight agree not to attempt to withdraw the guilty plea or to fi1e a 

22 collateral attack based on the existence of this information. 

23 

·24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

VI 

Pll:.ll'lllNDAN'l'S I aEPru:SlllN'l!lU'ION Tl!'.ll.T OOILT! 

~_JUUi: ltNOW!NG AND V"Ol'.iON'l.'AR.Y 

Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight repres1;1nt that: 

A. Defendants Alexande1: Martinez and Llne of Sight have had a 

full opportunity to discuss all the facts and circumstances 

of this case with defense counsel and 

Plea Agreement 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

!l . 

c. 

D. 

undarstanding of the charges and the consequences of this 

plea. Both def ehdanr.s understand that, by pleading gu.il ty 1 

the defendant.s m11y be giving up, and rendered ineJ.igible to 

receive, valuable government benefits and civic rights, such 

a.9 the r.i.ght to vote, the right to possess a firearm, the 

right to hold office, end the right to serve on a jury, 

Defendants A.lexander Martinez and Line of Sight further 

understand that the comriction in this case may subject 

defendant to various coll.ateral consequences, including but 

net limited to deportation, removal or other adverse 

iir.rnigration consequence3; revocation of probal:ion, pa.role, 

or supervised release .in another case; debarment from 

government contracting; and suspension or revocation of a 

pro.Eess:lonal license, as well as civil and administrative 

liability, none of which will ser.'7e as grounds to withdraw 

d<ifendilnt' s guilty plea. 

N<) one has made any promise.~ or offered any rewards in 

rettun for this guilty p:Lea, other than those contained in 

th.is agree;nen:t or otherwise disclosed to the Court. 

No ona has threatened Defendants Alexander Martinez or Line 

of. S:lght or Defendant Alexander Martinez' a family to 

induce this guilty plea. 

Defendan'I:.~ Alexander Mart.Lnez and Line of Sight are pleading 

guilty becau.,e in t.ruth and in fact the defendants are 

guilty and for no other reason. 

v.n: 
APYLirABILITY OF SENTENCING GOIDELIN&S 

Defendants understand the sentence imposed will be based on the 
24 

factors set forth in 18 U.s.c. § 3553(a). Defendants understand 
25 further that in imposing the sentence, the sentencing judge must 

26 consult the united States Sentencing Guidelines (Guidelines) and take 

27 them into account. Defendants have discussed the Guideiinea with 

28 defense counsel and understand 

Plea Agreement 
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not mandatory, and the court may impose a sentence more severe or less 
1 

severe than otherw.iae applicable under the Guidelines, up to the 
2 maximum .ln the statute of conviction. Defendants understand further 

3 that the sentence cannot be determined unt.ll a presentenoe report has 

4 been prepared by the U.S. Probation Office and both defense counsel 

5 and the OSAO have had an opportunity to review and challenge the 

6 
presentence repo::t. Nothing .in this plea agreement ahall be construed 

as limiting the lJSAO' s duty to provide complete and accurate facts to 
7 

6 

9 

10 

11 

the district court and the U.S. Probation Office. 

:rx 
fil'~E !S i'l!Tl'!IN SOLlil DISC!UllTION Oil' JUDGE 

Tnis plea agreement is made pursuant to r'ederal Rule of Criminal 

Procedure 11 (c) (l) (B). Tha defendants understand that the sentence is 

within the sole d.tseretion of the sentenci.ng judge. 1'he USAO has not 
12 

made and wi.1.1 n::>t make any .rnpresentation as to what sentence the 
13 

defendants will receive. The defendants understand that the 

14 sentencing jtidge may impose the maximuni. sentence provi.ded by statute, 

15 and is also aware that any e3timate of the prob,.tble sentence by 

l.6 defense counsel is a pre<Hct.ion, not a promise, and is not binding on 

17 
the Court. Lilcaw.i.sa, tha. recoromend<1tion made by the USAO is not 

binding on the Court, and it is Lmcerta.1.n at this time what the 
18 

defendants' sentence w.ill be. The defendants also have been adv.ised 
19 and understand that if the aentenc.lng jud9'1" does not follow any of the 

20 part.Les' 

21 no right 

22 

23 
A. 

sentencing recomrne:hdat.ions, the defendants nevertheless have 

to withdraw tha.ir pleas. 

x 
PAR.TIES' Sll:N~'ENCING !Ul:Cet<!MEN.DA~IO!!!! 

SENTENCING GUIDE!,!NE CALCULATIONS 
24 

Although the parties understand that the Guidelines are only 

25 advisory and just one of the factors the Court wiU consider under 18 

26 u.s.c. S 3553(a) in impo3ing a sentence, the parties will jointly 

27 recommend the following !laae Offense Level, Specific Offense 

28 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Characteristics, Adjustments and Departures as to Defendant Alexander 

Martinez: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Base Offense Level [I 2Bl.1J 

Intended los.9 mo:ce than $3. 5 million 

[I 2Bl.1 (b) ( f) (J)] 

Sophisticated Means [§ 2B1 .1 (b) (10) (C) l 

Aggravated Role [I 381.l{a)) 

Abuse of Pos.l ti on of Trust [I 3Bl. 3] 

Acceptance of Responsibility [§ 3El.1] 

7 

·HS 

+2 

+3 

+2 

-3 
8 The p,;rties agree that Defendant Line of Sight cannot pay, and is 

9 not likely to be able (even on an installment plan) to pay, the 

10 minimum fine set by the Gi.lidelines for the offense conduct in the 

11 federal case and the state cases, and therefore under u.s.s.G. 
§§ 8C2.2(b) and 8C3.3, will recommend a reduced fine of $45 1 000. 

12 

13 

14 to 

NotwithstandJ.ng pi:l.ragr.aph A above, the USAO will not be obligated · 

recommend any adjustment for Acceptance of Responsibility under · 

15 u.s.s.G. §§ 3El.1 or 8C2.5 if the defendants engage in conduct 

16 inconsistent with acceptance o.f re.sponsibility including, but not 

17 
limited to, the following; 

lB 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1. Fails to truth.fully admit a campl ete factual basis as 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

stated in the plea at the time the plea ia entered, or 

fa.1sely denies, or makes a statement inconsistent 

with, the factual basia set forth in this agreement; 

Walsely denies prior c.dminal conduct or convictions; 

Is untruthful . with the Government, ·the court or 

probation officer; 

Materially breaches this plea agree..~ent in any way; or 

Contests o.r asol'ists any third party in contesting the 

forfeiture. of property ( ies) aei zed in connection with 

this case, and any property(ies) to which the 

defendant has agreed to forfeit as set forth in the 

attached forfeiture addendum. 

21 
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1 
C. E'URTBER ADJUS'fMENTS AND SE:NTENCE REDUCTIONS 

INCLUDING THOSE UNDER 18 O.S.C, § 3553 

The parties agree that the defendants may request or recommend 

3 additional. downward adjustments, departures, including criminal 

4 history departures under USSG.§ 4A1.3, or sentence reductions under 18 

5 o.s.c. § 3553. The USAO may oppose any downward adjustments, 

6 
depa.~ture3 and aantence reductions not set forth in Section K, 

paragraph A above. 
7 

D. 
8 l'he parties howe no agreement aa to De.tendant. Alexander 

9 Ma.rtinez' s criminal Hietory Category. 

10 

11 

"h'AC'rtlAL BASIS" AND "RELEVANT CONDUCT" IITT'ORMATION 

The pa:r;ties a(p:ea that th<> fa eta in the "fac;tual basis" section 

of t}1if~ ngree:Jnent as to both tbe fader-al case and the state cases are 
12 

tr'\1a, and may be cor:s id~red as 11 rele·11ant condt1ct" under OSSG § 1Bl. 3 
13 

and as the nature and circum3tancas of the offense under 18 U.S.C. § 

14 3553(a)(1). 

16 The partiea agr<ae that the OSAO w.i.11 recommend that Defendant 

Alexander Martinez be sentenced within the advisory guideline :r:ange 
17 

18 

19 

20 

calculated aboire. 

G. s ?ECIAL AS SI!;S si1r~~T I v~INE /R.E.:rr:rTu·r r ON/_ FORFEI ·rURE 

1. §j?ecial A:rne3sment_ 

The parties will jointly recommend that Defendant Alexander 

21 Martinez pay a special assessment in the amount of $100.00 per count 

22 of conviction in the federal case to be paid forthwith at the time Of 

sentencing. The pa:r:tias will jointly recommend that Defendant Line of 
23 

Sight pay a special assessment in the amount of $400.00 per count of 
24 

conviction in the federal case to be paid forthwith at the time of 

25 sentenc.lng. The spacial assessments shall be paid through the office 

26 of tha Clerk of the District Court by bank or cashier' a check or money 

27 order made payable to the "Clerk, United States District Court." 

28 
Plea Agreement 
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1 

2 

3 

2. F.est.ituti\~-~1 ---·----
The partir~a do not recommend imposition of a restitution orde.t· in 

the federal case in light 

individ•Jalized loss an1ounts 

of the diff.icul ty of 

suffered by each 

determining the 

victim due to 

4 Defendants' conduct. SeB 18 use § 3553A(c) (3) (B). However, any 

5 agreement as to restitution herein applies only to the federal case 

and not the state cases. 
6 

The defendants understand Lh~t restitu~lon 

may be ordered in the state cases pursuant to Defendant Alexander 
7 

Martinez's guilty pleas in those matters. 
8 3. 

9 The part.lee do no~: recommend impoaition of a fine upon Defendant 

10 Alexander Martinez due to this defendant's lim.ited financial prospects 

11 and because the · co3t of collection, even takJ.ng into account the 

Inmate Responsibility Prograrn, likely would exceed the amounts that 
12 

could reasonably be expected to be collected. As outlined above, the 
13 

parties will recommend that: Defendant Line of Sight pay a fine of 
14 $45, 000 w.it:iin 60 months of pleading guilty. These firies ahall be 

15 paid through the Office of the Clerk of the District Couri by bank or 

16 cashier's check or money order made payable to the "Clerk, United 

States District Court.v 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

4 . 

Defendants agree to forfeit $5 1 620. 58 in funds from the Wells 

Fargo bank a:::count xxx-1808 in the name of Defendant Line of Sig.tit, 

In,c. 

agree 

wa1ve 

4 3 (a.) 

as proceeds of their illegal conduct. Defendants consent and 

to the entry of an Order of forfeiture for such property and 

the requirements of Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 32.2 and 

regarding notice of the forfe.iture in the . charging instrument, 

announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and incorporation of the 

forfeiture in the judgment. Defendants understand that the forfeiture 
25 of assets is part of the sentence that may be imposed in this case and 

26 waive any failure by the Court to advise Defendants of this, pursuant 

27 to Rule 11 (b) (1) (J), at the time the Court accepts the gu.Uty plea. 

29 

Plea Agree1'1ent 
23 

Def. Initials~ 



1 

2 

Defendants further agree to wa.ive all constitutional and 

statutory challenges .in any manner (including direct appeal, habeas 

corpus, or any other means) to any forfeiture carried out in 

3 accordance with this agreement on any grounds, including that the 

4 forfeiture const.itutes an excessive fine or punishment. Defendants 

5 agree to take all steps as requested by the United States to pass 

6 
clear title to forfeitable assets to the united States, and to testify 

7 

8 

truthfully in any judi~ial forfeiture proceeding. 

De:Eendants agree that the forfeiture provisions of this plea 

agreement. are intended to, and will, survive Defendants, 

9 notwithstanding the abatement of any underlying criminal conviction 

10 after the execution of this agreement. The forfei tability of any 

11 particular property pursuant to this agreement shall be determined as 

12 

13 

14 

if Defend11nt had survived, and that deterl!\inaU.on shall be binding 

upon Defendant's heirs, s~ccessors and assigns until the agreed 

forfeiture is colle2ted in f 111 1 .... ..:.,1... 

H. SUPERl/J:SED RELEASE 

15 If the Cou.rt imposes a term of supervised release as to Defendant 

16 .1\lexander Martlnez, the parties agree that Defendant Alexander 

17 
Martl.nez will not seek to reduce o.r terminate early the term of 

18 

19 

20 

supervised release. 

A. 

XI 

:9.!:.ll'END.11..'ITT ~.S APPEAL AND COL!..ATERl\.L ATTACK 

~VER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL CONVICTION 

21 In exchange for the concessions by the USAO and SDCDAO in the 

22 federal and state cases in this plea agreement, Defendants Alexander 

Martinez and Line of Sight waive, to the full extent of the law, any 
23 

24 

25 

right to appeal the convictions and sentence in either the federal or 

state cases. 

8. WAIVER Oil' RIGHT TO COLT..J\TEM.L AT'l'ACK 

26 Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line ·of Sight waive, to the 

27 full extent of the law, any right to collaterally attack the 

28 
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1 

2 

conviction and/or sentence, except for a post-conviction collateral. 

attack based on a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. 

c. OB.JECTIONS '.l'O UNITED STA'rES' RECOMMENDATION 

3 If Defendants .Alei{ander Martinez or Li.ne of Sight believes the 

4 recommendation by the USAO or.· SDCDAO is nol: in accord with this plea 

5 agreement; the defendants will object at the time of sentencing; 

otherwise the objection will be deemed waived. 
6 

7 

8 A. 

XII 

.BR'!Ul.Cl'l Oll' Tt!l!l PJ,EA AGrurul:.~ ----
MATERIAL BREACH OF PLEA AGREEMENT 

9 Defendants Alexander Mar:tir.ez and Line of Sight acknowledge, 

10 understand, and agree that if the defendants violate or fail to 

11 perform any of their obligations i.:nde:::: this agreement, such violation 

or fal.lure to pe.rforn·. w.Ul constitute a material breach of this 
12 

agreement. 
13 

Defendants lllexander Martinez and Line of S.ight acknowledge, 

1 4 understand, and agree further that the following non-exhaustive list 

15 of conduct by the defer.dan~s 1mquesti.onably constitutes a material 

16 breach of this plea agreement: 

17 

18 

19 

20' 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1. 

2' 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Pl.ea .l\greemEor1t 

Failing to plead guilty pursuant to this agreement; 

Withdrawing the g'..1il ty plea or attempting to withdraw 

the guilty plea; 

Failing to fully accept responsibility as established 

in Section X, paragraph B, above; 

Failing to appear in court; 

Failing to abide by any .lawful court order . related to 

this case; 

Appealing or collaterally attacking the sentence or 

conviction in violation of Sect:l.on XI of this plea 

agreement; or 

Engaging :l.n add.itional criminal conduct from the time 

of arrest until the time of sentencing. 

25 
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1 

2 

B. CONSEQUENCES OF BREACH 

In the event of a material breach by either defendant of this 

plea agreement,. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight will 

3 not be able to enfo.rce any of its p:::ovisions, and the GSAO and SDCDAO 

4 will be relieved of all obligations llnder this plea agreement. E'or 

5 example, the USAO or SDCDAO may pursue any charges including those 

6 

7 

B 

that were dis:nissed, p::omised to be dismissed, or not filed as a 

result of this agreement. De.f•rndants Alexander Martinez and Line of 

Sight agree that any statute of limitations relating to such charges 

is tolled as of the date of this agreemen:; Defendants Alexander 

9 Martinez and Line of Sight also waive any double jeopardy defense to 

10 

11 

J.2 

l. 3 

14 

such charges. In addition, the USA::J or SDCDAO may move to set aside 

the defendants' guilty pleas. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line 

o.f Sight may not withdraw their guilty pleas based on the pursuit of 

remedies for their breach by the USAO or SDCDAO. 

XIII 

.~ ... .f~Flll'I'J:i! '11.A!VliJR Oli' l?LEA-D!SCUss:roN F.XC!L!JSI9!!_~!.§!IT!! 

15 In exchange for the concessions· .in this agreement, Defendants 

16 Alexander Ma.i:tinez and Line of Sight aciree that: (i) the stipulated 

17 

18 

19 

factual basis statement.9 in this agreement; (ii) any statements made 

by the defendants, under oath, at the guilty plea hearings in federal 

and sate court; and (iiJ.) any evidence derived from such statements, 

are adm:i.ssible aciainst either defendant in the prosecut.ion' a case-in-

20 chief and at any other .stage of the proceedings in any prosecution of 

21 or action against either defendant on the current charges and/or any 

22 other charges that the OSAO and SDCDAO may pursue against the 

23 

.24 

defendants. Add.i tionally, Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of 

Sight 

under 

knowingly, 

the United 

voluntarily, and intelligently waive any a.i-gument 

States Constitution,. any statute, Federal Rule of 

25 Evidence 410, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure J.1 (f), and/or any 

26 other federal or California rule, that these statements or any 

27 evidence derived from these statements should be suppressed or are 

28 inadmissible. 

!?lea Agre~111<?1:t 

'rhe waiver of the afo.rement.ioned 

26 
rights by Defe\its 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight is effective as soon as the 

parties sign this agreement, and is not contingent upon a federal or 

state court ultimately accepting the defendants' guilty pleas. 

XIV 

SUBll'l'.l'l.N'rIAL ASSIS'rANCE 

A. If Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight attempt 

to assi.st in the investigation and prosecution of othe.rs, there is no 

guarantee that this future cooper.at.ion, if any, will be deemed 

"substant.ial," or whet.her it will merit a downward departure from the 

Sentencing Guidelines. 

B. If requested by the USAO or SDCDAO, Defendants Alexander 

10 MarU.nez agrees to be interviewed again by federal and state law 

11 enforcement agents and attorneys and to tell everything Defendants 

12 
A.1.exande:c Martinez. and Line o:E Sighc knows about every person involved 

presently or in the past . in the charged criminal offense (s), as well 
13 . l . f l f j l d ' as other. v.io. atlons o aw. De .enc ants A e:x:an er MartJ.nez and Line of 
14 Sig·ht also agrees to produce all documents and other evidence in their' 

15 possession or control related to these violations. 

16 C. Defendant Alexa:1der Martinez. agrees not to do any undercover 

17 
work or tape record any conversations or gath~r evidence unless 

18 
instructed by the agent assigned to Defendant. Defendants Alexander 

Martinez and Line of Sight can be prosecuted for any criminal activity 
19 undertaken without instruction. 

20 

21 under 

22 grand 

D. Defendant Alexander Martinez agrees to provide statements 

penalty of ·perjury and to testify before any federal or state 

jury, and at any pretrial, trial, or post-trial proceedings in 

federal· or state court, 
23 

Defendant will provide complete, · truthful 1 

and accurate information and testimony. Defendant agrees to submit to 
24 

a polygraph examination to test the truthfulness of Defendant's 
25 statements, upon request by the USAO or SDCDAO, 

26 E. As d.iscussed in sect.ion XIII above, the factual admissions 

27 in this plea agreement and any statements made by Defendants Alexander 

28 Martinez and Line of Sight at any guilty plea hearings (as well ~y 

?lea Agreement 
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evidence derived from therl) are admissible against the defendants in 
1 

this and all future proceedings. However, the OSAO and SDCDAO agree 
2 that 1 if the defendants· fully c.omply with this plea agreement 1 the 

3 USAO and SDCDAO will not make use of any of their statements to law 

4 enforcement in the course of cooperation and during the period of 

5 post-plea cooperation in any further prosecution of the defendants for 

6 

7 

any offense, or .in Defendant's sentencing as provided in USSG § lBl. 8. 

If Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight do not fully comply 

with this ple.a agreemen':, all stater.te:1ts made by the defendants 

B before, dllring, and after this plea agreement, and any leads or 

9 .evidence der.i ved from such statements, can be used against the 

10 defendants and are admissible in court. 

11 

12 

F. Statements made by Defendants Aiexander Martinez and Line of 

Sight pu.rGuant to th.ls plea agreement are not statements "made in the 

cou.rse of any proceeding.s under Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of 
13 

Criminal l?roced1ire" and are not statements "made in the course of plea 

14 discussions." 

15 G. If the OSAO decides that Defendants Alexander Martinez and 

16 Line of Sight· ha11e p.rovided additional substantial assistance after 

17 
the ·date of this agreement, and have fully complied with this plea 

agreement, :Lt will file a motion for a downward departu,re under 
18 

18 u.s.c. § 3553 and/or !JSSG § SKl.1. Defendants Alexander Martinez 
19 and Line of Sight understand that the starting point for any 

20 aubstantia.1 a.9sistance departure will be the pre-departure Guidelines 

21 range. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight acknowledge 

2 2 that even if the OSAO makes a motion, ·the Court may reject the OSAO' a 

motion and recommendation for departure and refuse to depart downward, 
23 

and neither defendant would be allowed to withdraw their guilty pleas. 
24 

IL If the OSAO' s decides to make a substantial assistance 
25 motion, it will in.form the sentencing judge o.f: (1) this plea 

26 agreement; (2) the nature and extent of any assistance provided by 

27 Defendants Alelj:ander Martinez and Line of Sight in the federal and 

28 
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1 

2 

state cases; and (3) all information in the possession of the USAO 

relevant to sentencing. 

I. If Defendants Alexander Martinez or Line of Sight provide 

3 materially false, incomplete, or misleading testimony or information, 

4 or breach this plea ag.re~-'llent in any ot:her way, the USAO or SDCDAO may 

5 prosecute the defendants in connection with all criminal violations of 

which the OSAO and SDCDAO are aware, as set fo.rth in Section XII 
6 

7 

8 

above, inc.ludiri.:;; a prosecution for false statements, perjury, and/or 

obstruction of justice. The USAO may also pursue any other .remedy for 

breach of the plea agreement, as set forth in section XII above. P.ny 

9 prosecution or sentence resulting from a breach of this plea ag.reement 

10 may be based on infoi:-mation provided by Defendants Alexander Martinez 

11 and U.ne of Sight, 

12 

13 

14 

xv 

ENTI:RE AG!tfilEMENT 

The plea agreements in the state cases, which a::"~ incorporated 

hereJ.n, together with the plea agreement :Ln the :Eederal case embody 

15 the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any other 

16 agreement, written o.c oral. 

17 

18 

19 

20 in 

21 

22 

23 

xv:i: 

MODI1l'IC.1!i.:r:tON OF AGJU!: ..... ~ MUST BE IN WRITING 

No modification of this plea 

writing signed by all parties. 

agreement shall be effective unless 

XVII 

Dlr.ll'E.NDANT AND COUNSEL FULLY tTNDERBTANO AGlUi.tl1:.MlllN 

By signing this agreement, Defendants Alexander Martinez; and Line 

of Sight certify that the defendants have read it. Defendants 
24 

Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight have discussed the terms of this 
25 agreement with defense counsel and fully understands its meaning and 

26 effect. 

27 

28 
29 
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2 

XVIII 

DEJ!'ENDANT SJl.TISll'Il'!J:J N'.ITEi COUNSE!, 

Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight have consulted 

3 with counsel and are satisfied with counsel's representation. This is 

4 the independent opinion of Defendants Ale.xander Martinez and Line of 

5 Sight (and its Board of Directors), and their counsel did not advise 

the defendants about what to say in this regard. 
6 

7 
LAURA E. DOETY 
United Sta 

11 

BONNIE DUMANIS 
San Diego County District Attorney 

-/4.hOTT-=--· 
Deputy District Attorney 

~.~-
.~uty D~ict A~torney 

~( ·~I. 
PERDRO BERNAL 
Deputy District Attorney 
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. ~~--;:::::::::;>-
~SON 

Counsel for ALEXANDER MARTINEZ 

4 

9 
Defendant's Signature: As corporate representative for Defendant Line 

10 of Sight, I have consulted with counsel for the defendant and fully 

11 understand all rights of the Defendant with respect to this Plea 
/l.greement. Further; I fully understand all rights with respect to 18 

12 U, S. C, § 3553 and the provis:Lons of the Sentencing Guidelines that may 
apply in this case. .r have read thi.s Plea ·Agreement and carefully 

13 reviewt1d every part of it with counsel for the defendant. I understand 
this agreement and voluntarily accept it on behalf of the defendant. I 

14 have valid authority to sign on behalf f he Defendant. 

15 

16 -~~-'<; -
17 DATED 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

I 
ALEX TI NEZ 
President 
Defendant LINE OF SIGHT 1 INC. 
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Defense Counsel's Signature: I am counsel for defendant Line of Sight 
1 in this matter. I have fully explained to defendant's representative 

2 
the Defendant's rights with respect to this Plea Agreement. F'urther, I 
have reviewed 18 U.S.C. § 3553 and the Sentencing Guidelines, and I 

3 have fully explained to the defendant the provisions that may apply in 
this case. I have carefully reviewed every part of this Plea Agreement 

4 with the defendant. To my knowledge, the defendant's decision to into 
this agreemer.t is an inforr~ed and voluntary one, and one by agent with 

5 valid authority to sign on behalf o.f. Defendant. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

lB 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

DATED 

Plea Agr"e:usr:.t 

.... ,---, 

~ounsal for Defendant 
LINE OF SIGHT, INC. 
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